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Our Purpose

To strengthen the clinical success and financial health of

caregivers by solving their biggest problems

market-leading Fortune 1000 company with annual revenue of more than $2 billion P55 World Medical

Inc is national distributor of medical services and products to physicians and extended care providers

in all 50 states We are focused exclusively on serving caregivers in the U.S alternate site healthcare markets

providing industry-leading products and services designed to improve their efficiency contain their costs

and increase their effectiveness PSS World Medical is leader in the two market segments it serves

with focused approach that combines consultative sales force strong partnerships with product

manufacturers high-touch service model and unique culture of performance Our approach is

summed up by our corporate identity Expertise Delivered
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Five-year performance metrics
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Fiscal year 2011 was year of continued performance for PSS World Medical Our Purpose to

strengthen the clinical success and financial health of caregivers by solving their biggest problems

has sharpened our focus on what matters most our customers and their patients

Earnings per diluted share EPS was $1.32 for fiscal year 2011 at the high end of our goal of

$1.30 to $1.32 am very proud of our teams performance this year and throughout our recently

completed three-year strategic plan Over the past three years revenue grew by $179 million

EPS grew at compounded annual growth rate of 18% and our operating margin grew 159

basis points to 6.6% the highest in the Companys history Even more gratifying we achieved

these results in complex and uncertain environment marked by fundamental changes in

the utilization of the United States healthcare system

Our new three-year plan for fiscal

years 2012-2014 is just as ambitious

with an initial goal for EPS growth

of 18% compounded annually over

the three-year period We are making

significant investments to expand

our reach and add competencies

to help us address opportunities

in the markets we serve

Our country faces the continued

expansion of healthcare costs if for no other reason

than the reality of our changing national demographics

Baby boomers will need more primary and extended

care Healthcare reform will expand access to millions of

the previously uninsured who in the past either went

without care or utilized the local hospital emergency

room To help meet this new demand for care the federal

government is investing in the expansion of primary

care including significant funding for community

health centers CHCs and training and education for

Our customers are an important part of the answer to

efficiently deliver the increasing demand for care The

physician and extended care markets historically have

the lowest cost per episode in healthcare while

providing desired outcomes

Our company is well positioned to help these essential

caregivers adapt and succeed in the changing and

challenging environment Our significant resources

combined with our exclusive focus on the alternate site

market enable us to bring to market solutions that

help current and new customers provide new services

control costs and operate their practices and facilities as

efficiently as possible

Our business strategies REACH STRENGTHEN OUR

HEALTH and LEAN will continue to be the vehicles for

delivering these results Investments we are making to

advance these programs will provide value to customers

and returns to shareholders

To Our Fellow Shareholders

Gary Corless

President and CEO

ss world Medical Inc

new caregivers
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We will significantly grow our sales force to meet

the needs of caregivers we do not reach today

We will expand our industry-leading offering of

products and will continue to add new professional

services These services will help us achieve our

stated purpose of solving the customers biggest

problems that cannot be accomplished with

products alone

We will utilize Our strong balance sheet to continue

program of strategic and fold-in acquisitions We

acquired over $100 million of annualized revenue

in fiscal year 2011 The two largest acquisitions

Linear Medical Solutions Inc and Dispensing

Solutions Inc furthered our goal of expanding

professional services that strengthen our customer

and improve care

We will invest in systems and technology increasing

our efficiency and competitive differentiation

We will develop our people to continue to take on

new responsibilities and opportunities This past

year we saw promotions of proven performers

Eddie Dienes to President of the Physician Business

and Mark Steele to President of the Elder Care Business

We saw expansion of roles and responsibilities as Brad

Hilton became Chief Service Officer Kevin English

became Chief Sourcing Officer and Josh DeRienzis

became General Counsel In addition we added new

talent when Kimberly Marshall joined our company as

the new Senior Vice PresidentHuman Resources

As the countrys largest distributor to the alternate site

markets we are in the right place at the right time

delivering the expertise our caregivers need so that

they can deliver the care we all need

Gary Corless

President and CEO

PSS World Medical Inc
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18% compounded annual growth of earnings per diluted share

$308.8 million of cumulative cash flow from operations

159 basis points of operating margin growth

63% cumulative increase in stock price
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Cautionary Statements

Forward-Looking Statements

Management may from time-to time make written or oral forward-

looking statements with respect to the Companys annual or long

term goals including statements contained in this Annual Report on

Form 10 Quartedy Reports on Form 10 Current Reports on

Form 8-K reports to shareholders press releases and other

communications These statements are subject to risks and

uncertainties that could cause actual results to differ materially from

historical earnings and those currently anticipated or projected

Management cautions readers not to place undue reliance on any

of the Companys forward looking statements which speak only as

of the date made

Words such as anticipates expesintends plans

believes seeks estimates may could and similar

expressions identify forward looking statements Forward looking

statements contained in this Annual Report on Form 10 that

involve risks and uncertainties include without limitation

Managements belief that the medical products distribution

industry is expeded to experience continued growth due to

the aging U.S population increased healthcare awareness the

introduction of new medical technology new pharmacology

treatments recently enacted health care reform legislation and

expanded third party insurance coverage

Managements belief that the physician market is expected to

grow due in part to the shift of procedures and diagnostic

testing from hospitals to altemate sites particularly physician

offices recently enacted health care reform legislation and

expected changes in medical reimbursement rates offset by

slower growth in the near term due to economic conditions

Managements belief that the elder care market is expected to

continue benefiting from the increasing growth rate of the U.S

elderly population and the expansion of provider care into the

patients home

Managements belief that the healthcare services industry will

continue to be subject to extensive regulation at the federal

state and local levels and the Company has had and will con

tinue to have adequate compliance programs and controls to

ensure compliance with the laws and regulations

Managements belief that any new legislation or regulations or

new interpretations of existing statutes and regulations govern

ing the manner in which the Company conducts its business

could have material adverse impact on the Company and

could adversely affect its profitability

Managements belief that failure of manufacturer to comply

with the requirements of the Food and Drug Administration

the Drug Enforcement Administration and other Federal state

and local authorities or changes in such requirements could

result in recalls seizures manufacturing suspensions or other

interruptions in the production supply and sale of its products

that may result in material adverse impact on the Companys

business

-4 Managements belief that the Companys costs associated with

complying with the various applicable federal and state statutes

and regulations as they now exist and as they may be modi

fied could be material

Managements helief that the outcome of
legal proceedings or

claims which are pending or known to be threatened will not

have material adverse effect on the Companys consolidated

financial position liquidity or results of operations

Managements intention to retain earnings for the growth and

development of the Companys business and not declare cash

dividends in the immediate future

Managernents expectation that the remaining federal and state

net operating loss carryforwards will be utilized prior to their

expiration date that the Companys deferred tax assets as of

April 2011 will be realizable to offset portion of projected

future taxable income and that changes in the Companys

current uncertain tax positions will not have material impact

on the results of operations or financial position

Managements expectation to make and integrate strategic

business acquisitions in order to increase revenues and market

share

Managements expectation that the overall growth in the busi

ness will be funded through combination of cash flows from

operating activities borrowings under the revolving line of

credit capital markets and/or other financing arrangements

Managements belief that the Company may seek to retire

portion of its outstanding equity through cash purchases and/or

reduce its debt and may also seek to issue additional debt or

equity to meet its future
liquidity requirements

Managements intent to either renegotiate existing leases or

execute new leases upon the expiration date of such agree

ments

Managements intention to permanently reinvest undistributed

eamings attributable to foreign operations

Managements expectation that the Companys business strat

egies will have positive impact on future periods

Managements estimation and expectation of future payouts of

long term incentive compensation

Managements expectation that near term revenue growth

rates excluding acquisitions will remain lower than historical
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growth rates due to economic conditions and lower patient

utilization and

Managements estimation that capital expenditures will be

approximately $29.2 million during fiscal year 2012

In connection with the safe harbor provisions of the Private

Securities Litigation Reform Act of 995 management is identifying

important factors that could affect the Companys financial

performance and could cause actual results for future periods to

differ materially from
any opinions or statements expressed with

respect to future periods in any current statements about the

Companys goals or expectations The Companys future results

could be adverseFy affected by variety of factors including those

discussed in Item IA Risk Foctors In addition all forward looking

statements are qualified by and should be read in conjunction with

the risks described or referred to in Item IA Risk Factors

Third Party Statistical Data

This report contains estimates and other information concerning

the Companys industry including market size and growth rates

which are based on industry publications surveys and forecasts

These estimates involve number of assumptions and limitations

and you are cautioned not to give undue weight to these esti

mates Although the Company believes the information in these

industry publications surveys and forecasts is reliable it has not

been independently verified and therefore the accuracy or com

pleteness of the information cannot be guaranteed

Item Business

The Cam pany

PSS World Medical Inc the Company or PSSI Florida

corporation began operations in 1983 The Company is national

distributor of medical products and equipment pharmaceutical

products healthcare information technology physician dispensing

solutions and
billing

services to altemate site healthcare providers

including physician offices long term care and assisted
living

facili

ties home health care and hospice providers The Company has

full service distribution centers strategically located to
efficiently

serve all 50 states throughout the United States U.S.

The Companys stated purpose is to strengthen the clinical success

and financial health of caregivers by solving their biggest problems

The Company uses its purpose to guide its business decisions and

strategies

The Company currently conducts business through two operating

segments the Physician Business and the Elder Care Business

which serve diverse customer base third reporting segment

Corporate Shared Services includes allocated and unallocated

costs of corporate departments that provide services to the

operating segments For intormation on comparative segment

revenue segment profit and related financial information refer to

Footnote Segment Information of the consolidated financial

statements

PSSI is market leader in the two segments it serves as result of

value-added solutions based marketing programs differentiated

customer distribution and service model consultative sales force

with extensive product disease state reimbursement and supply

chain knowledge unique arrangements with manufacturers full

line of the Companys own brand Select Medical Products and

specialty brand products collectively Select innovative

information systems and technologies that serve its core markets

and culture of performance

The lndustty

According to industry estimates the market size of the medical

supply and equipment home health care and office administered

pharmaceutical segments of the U.S healthcare industry exceeds

$61 billion These market segments consist of medical products

medical equipment information systems and pharmaceutical prod

ucts which are distributed to alternat site healthrare prnviderc

including physician offices long term care and assisted living
facili

ties home health care providers and agencies dental offices and

other alternate site providers such as outpatient surgery centers

and veterinarians The Companys business strategy focuses on the

estimated $28 billion sub segment of this market that includes the

distribution of medical products medical equipment healthcare

information technology and office administered pharmaceutical
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produds to physician offices long term care and assisted living facili

ties home health care and hospice providers and equipment deal

ers

The medical products distribution industry is expected to experi

ence continued growth due to the aging U.S population increased

healthcare awareness the introduction of new medical technology

new pharmacology treatments recently enacted health care reform

legislation and expanded third-party insurance coverage The elder

care market is expected to benefit from the increasing growth rate

of the U.S elderly population and the expansion of provider care

into the patients home The most recent U.S Bureau of the Cen

sus report estimated the U.S elderly population will more than

double within the next40 years with Americans age 85 years and

older the population in the greatest need of long term and elder

care services projected to more than triple during this period The

physician market is expected to grow due in part to the shift of

procedures and diagnostic testing from hospitals to alternate sites

particularly physician offices recently enacted health care reform

legislation and expected changes in medical reimbursement rates

offset by slower growth in the near term due to general economic

conditions

The healthcare industry is subject to extensive governmental regu

lation licensure and operating compliance procedures National

healthcare reform has been the subject of number of legislative

initiatives by Congress and also the subject of the Patient Pro

tection and Affordable Care Act and Reconciliation Act of 2010

the 20 10 Health Care Act Currently government and private

insurance programs fund significant portion of medical costs in

the United States In recent years state budget deficits and federal

and state-imposed limits on reimbursement to hospitals long-term

care and assisted
living facilities physicians home health care and

other healthcare providers have affected spending budgets in cer

tam markets within the medical products industry With the signing

of the 2010 Health Care Act the Company expects govemment

funded programs will become more prevalent and as such

reimbursements may become more reliant on federal and state

budgets In addition to these changes the nursing home and home

health care industries have been impacted by shifts in operations

and business strategies facility divestitures by elder care providers

migration of patient care to private homes as well as overall general

economic conditions

The Physician Bus mess

The Physician Business or the Physician Sales Service division is

leading distributor of medical supplies diagnostic equipment phar

maceutical related products and healthcare information technology

to alternate site healthcare providers in the U.S based on rev

enues number of physician office customers number and quality of

sales representatives diagnostic equipment revenues and number

of products distributed under exclusive arrangements The Physi

cian Business has approximately BOO sales professionals trained in

solution focused selling disease state management and diagnostic

and therapeutic products used by physicians

Customers

The Physician Business distributes products to office based physi

cians who specialize in internal medicine family practice primary

care pediatrics OB/CYN general practice and other specialties

The Physician Business target market consists of approximately

496000 physicians practicing at approximately 217000 offices in

the United States

Customer pricing for each product is either negotiated directly with

the physician or contracted through group purchasing organizations

CPOs CPOs negotiate directly with medical product manu

facturers and distributors on behalf of their members establishing

exclusive or multi-supplier relationships

Distribut/on
/nfrostn.icture

As of April 2011 the Physician Business operated distribution

network consisting of 29 full-service distribution renters

37 break-freight locations service center and redistribution

facilities to serve customers throughout the United States The

operations of full-service distribution center include sales support

and certain administrative functions such as customer billing collec

tions cash application and customer service as well as general

warehousing functions inventory management and product deliv

ery Inventory purchasing is centralized at the Companys shared

services segment in Jacksonville Florida Full service distribution

centers receive inventory directly from manufacturers and redis

tribution centers The distribution centers deliver product to cus

tuniers and break freight locdtions on daily basis via the

Companys fleet of leased vehicles or third party transportation

providers Break freight locations are warehouse facilities that

receive packaged customer orders from full-service distribution

centers and distribute them directly to customers on daily basis

The sales channel is complemented by myPSS.com customer

Internet ordering portal Instant Customer Order Network

ICON laptop-based sales force automation tool which

enables the Physician Business to extend customer specific services

with local market product and pricing flexibility
and SmartScan

handheld inventory management device that allows customers to

order product electronically and provides basic inventory manage

ment functions

Products

The Physician Business distributes approximately 80000 different

products consisting of disposable supplies pharmaceuticals diag

nostic equipment non-diagnostic equipment Additionally the
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Physician Business offers healthcare information technology sol

utions and physician dispensing solutions

Bronded Medico Surgical Disposable Supplies This product category

includes broad range of medical supplies including paper goods

needles and syringes gauze and wound dressings surgical instru

ments sutures examination gloves orthopedic soft goods tongue

blades and applicators sterilization and intravenous solutions

specimen containers reagents for diagnostic equipment and diag

nostic rapid test kits The Physician Business offers broad array of

branded products sourced from various medical product manu

facturers

Select Medical Surgical Disposable Supplies and Equipment The

Company offers its own brands in connection with its strategy of

sourcing through global channels to drive enhanced customer sat

isfaction and profitability This product category includes broad

range of medical supplies including paper goods needles and

syringes gauze and wound dressings surgical instruments sutures

examination gloves orthopedic soft goods tongue blades and

applicators sterilization products specimen containers diagnostic

equipment reagents and rapid diagnostic test kits marketed under

various Company brands During fiscal year 2011 the Company

added diagnostic equipment to its product offering

Pharmaceutical Products This product category includes various

vaccines injectables inhalants topicals opthalmic ointments and

solutions otic solutions and oral analgesics antacids and antibiotics

and controlled pharmaceutical products which are used or

administered in the physicians offce Controlled pharmaceutical

products include injectable anesthesia agents narcotics and pain

management drugs

Diagnostic Equipment This product category includes various

equipment lines such as blood chemistry analyzers automated cell

and differential counters immunoassay analyzers bone densi

tometers electrocardiograph monitors and defibrillators cardiac

stress systems cardiac and OB/GYN ultrasound holter monitors

flexible sigmoidoscopy scopes and microscopes Sales of certain

diagnostic equipment generate recurring orders of disposable diag

nostic reagents consumed in the operation of the equipment

Non Diagnostic Equipment This product category includes all other

equipment used in medical practice such as aesthetic lasers auto

claves examination tables medical scales and furniture

Healthcare Information Technology This product category includes

healthcare information technology products and services designed

to improve the accuracy efficiency and effectiveness of physician

business practices

Physician Dispensing Solutions This product category includes van

ous medications dispensed on site within physician business practi

ces using the Companys proprietary systems

Competition

The Physician Business operates in highly competitive industry

where products and services are readily available to customers

from number of manufacturers distributors and suppliers

Competitors of the Physician Business include large national

full line distributors many smaller regional and local distributors

and manufacturers who sell directly to customers Competitive

factors within the medical/surgical supply distribution and services

industry include pricing product availability sales force capabilities

delivery time electronic commerce capabilities and relationships

with customers and the
ability

to meet customer specific require

ments

The Elder Core Business

The Elder Care Business or the Gulf South Medical Supply Inc

division is national distributor of medical supplies and related

products and solutions to the long-term and elder care industry in

the United States The Elder Care Business serves the nursing

home home care and hospice industries as well as the assisted

living
market segment In addition the Elder Care Business also

provides Medicare Part
billing services either on fee for service

or full assignment basis and Medicaid billing services to the

assisted living
market The home care industry refers to providers

companies agencies and care givers of medical services medical

supplies and equipment to patients in home or residential setting

The Elder Care Business has approximately ISO sales professionals

Customers

The Elder Care Businesss target market consists of approximately

40000 independent regional and national nursing home facilities

home health agencies assisted living centers hospices and home

medical equipment dealers Approximately 65/o 15% and of

the Elder Care Business net sales for fiscal years 2011 2010 and

2009 respectively represent sales to its largest five customers

Distnbutian Infrastructure

As of April 2011 the Elder Care Business operated distribution

network consisting of full service distribution centers

break freight locations service centers and redistribution cen

ters which serve customers throughout the United States The

operations of full-service distribution center include general

warehousing functions such as inventory management warehouse

management and product delivery directly to customers on daily

basis Full-service distribution centers receive inventory directly

from manufacturers and redistribution centers and distribute prod

uct to customers and break freight locations Break freight locations

receive packaged customer orders from full-service distribution

centers and distribute them directly to customers on daily basis

Product is delivered using either the Companys fleet of leased
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delivery vehicles or third party transportation providers Accounts

receivable collections cash application customer
billing

and

inventory purchasing are centralized in the Companys shared serv

ices segment in jacksonville Florida while customer order process

ing customer service and sales support are centralized in Jackson

Mississippi Coupled with team of sales professionals myGSOn
line an automated customer Internet platform and SmartScan the

Elder Care Business provides service to customers ranging from

nursing homes to providers of home health hospice sub acute

rehabilitation and transitional care

Products

The Elder Care Business distributes approximately 43000 different

medical and related products consisting of medical supplies incon

tinent supplies and personal care items enteral feeding supplies

point of care testing devices advanced wound care home medical

equipment and other supplies required by the long-term care

patient The Elder Care Business offers broad array
of branded

products from various manufacturers In addition the Company

offers its own brand Select in connection with its strategy of

sourcing through global channels to drive enhanced customer sat

isfaction and profitability

Services

The Elder Care Business through its wholly owned subsidiary Pro

claim Inc provides Medicare Part
billing

services on

fee-for service or full assignment basis and Medicaid billing serv

ices to the nursing home and assisted
living

market The Elder Care

Business also provides consulting services to elder care providers

through its noncontrolling interest in Pathway Health Services Inc

Pathway

Competition

The Elder Care Business operates in highly competitive industry

where products and services are readily available to customers

from number of manufacturers distributors suppliers and service

providers Co6ipetitors of the Elder Care Business include large

multinational full line distributors many smaller regional and local

distributors manufacturers who sell directly to customers and

Medicare Part
billing

service providers Competitive factors within

the long term and elder care industry include pricing product avail

ability delivery time electronic commerce capabilities and the abil

ity to meet customer specific requirements

Shored Services

The Companys Shared Services segment consists of business units

providing administrative services to the operating segments by

providing standardized service delivery at an efficient operating

cost Shared Services includes executive and administrative services

accounting and finance information technology development and

support shared operations management legal regulatory com

pliance human resources training and development and payroll

administration supplier management sourcing of inventory and

non-inventory products and services and other operating activities

Shared Services allocates portion of its operating costs and inter

est expense to the operating segments The allocation of these

costs is generally proportionate to the revenues of each operating

segment Interest expense is allocated based on an internal carrying

value of historical capital used to acquire or develop the operating

segments operations

Supplier Relationships

Supplier relationships are an integral part of the Companys busi

nesses Sales support performance incentives product literature

samples demonstration units training marketing intelligence

distributor discounts and rebates and new products are important

elements of developing successful supplier relationships The

Company seeks to increase profitability by purchasing certain

medical supplies pharmaceutical products and equipment at the

lowest available price through volume discounts rebates and prod

uct line consolidation under contracts with terms negotiated by the

supplier management group

The Company pursues opportunities to market and sell medical

equipment and supplies through unique or exclusive marketing

arrangements Manufacturers of medical supplies and diagnostic

equipment often seek to optimize the number of distributors sell

ing their products to end users in order to reduce the cost asso

dated with marketing and field sales support The Company has

been successful in obtaining unique or exclusive arrangements to

sell certain products based on the size of its sales force and effec

tiveness of its marketing program

Global Product Sourcing

The Companys global sourcing activities include identification of

manufacturers in foreign locations selection and specification of

products to be manufactured management of quality assurance

programs and controls and alignment of product availability and

customer needs The Companys global sourcing team located in

U.S and foreign locations consists of fully dedicated functional

experts in areas such as product development global sourcing

logistics supply chain design and management supplier relations

product management quality assurance and quality control

As of April 2011 the Company had approximately $46.0 million

of globally-sourced product inventory which represented approx

imately 1400 SKUs and 200 product categories These products

were sourced from 78 manufacturers located in China Malaysia

India South Korea Taiwan the United Kingdom the Philippines

Indonesia Canada and Mexico
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In formation Systems

The Physician and Elder Care Businesses operate the Oracle JD

Edwards XE platform JDE at all distribution centers The

Companys controlled pharmaceutical operations uses separate

version ofjD Edwards XE customized to provide compliance with

DEA regulations

The Physician Business laptop based sales force automation applica

tion known as ICON carries customer order history and

accounts receivable detail reflects on-hand inventory quantities for

the local distribution center and transmits orders over secure

wireless network The Physician Business internet portal

myPSS.com provides its customers with sales history accounts

receivable detail available inventory and supports number of

ordering methods Online order processing is supplemented in the

Physician Business with SmartScan handheld inventory

management device that allows customers to order product elec

tronically and provides basic inventory management functions

Approximately 74% of customer orders in the Physician Business

are received via ICON myPSS.com or Smartscan

The Elder Care Business internet portal myCSOnline.com pro

vides its customers with sales history accounts receivable detail

available inventory and supports number of ordering methods

Our Elder Care Business offers its customers wide variety of EDI

services whereby orders order acknowledgments invoices and

other industry standard EDI transactions are available electronically

This improves efficiency and timeliness for the Company and its

customers As result the Elder Care Business is an industry leader

in eCommerce transactions Approximately 80% of customer

orders in the Elder Care Business are electronic orders

During fiscal year 2011 the Company continued the

implementation of warehouse management system WMS to

streamline warehouse management enhance inventory controls

and improve customer service Additionally the Company con

tinued its focus on increasing its EDI eComm and Web capabilities

to help connect more
efficiently

and effectively with customers and

suppliers

Regulaton1 Matters

Generol

Federal state local and foreign govemment agencies extensively

regulate the distribution and sale of medical devices medical sup

plies and pharmaceutical products and the
billing

of govemment

sponsored healthcare programs Applicable federal state and for

eign statutes and regulations require the Company to meet various

standards relating to among other things licensure personnel

physical security maintenance of proper records privacy of health

information maintenance and repair of equipment and quality

assurance programs

The Companys costs associated with complying with the various

applicable federal and state statutes and regulations as they now

exist and as they may be modified could be material Although the

Company intends to comply with all applicable laws and regu

lations many of them have been recently enacted are broadly

worded and have not been interpreted by regulators and the

courts Consequently they have been and may continue to be

interpreted or applied by governmental authorities in manner

that differs from the Companys interpretation which has required

and could continue to require the Lompany to make changes in its

operating procedures and increase operating costs Future allega

tions by state or the federal government that the Company has

not complied with these laws could have material adverse impact

on the Company If it is determined that the Company has not

complied with these laws or if the Company enters into settle

ment agreements to resolve allegations of non compliance the

Company could be required to make settlement payments quar

antine or destroy inventory or be subject to civil and criminal

penalties including fines and the loss of licenses or its
ability

to par

ticipate in Medicare Medicaid and other federal and state health

care programs
In addition the enforcement of these laws and

regulations has increased and is expected to increase in the future

Any of the foregoing could have material adverse impact on the

Company The Company believes that the healthcare services

industry will continue to be subject to extensive regulation and

enforcement at the federal state local and foreign levels

The Food Drug ond Cosmetic Act Prescription Drug Morketing Act of

987 Sofe Medicol Devices Act of 990 Controlled Substonces Act

ond Vorious Store Regulotions

The Cumpanys business is subject to regulation under the Federal

Food Drug and Cosmetic Act the Prescription Drug Marketing

Act of 1987 the Safe Medical Devices Act of 1990 and state laws

and regulations applicable to the manufacture importation and

distribution of medical devices and over-the-counter pharmaceut

ical products as well as the distribution of prescription pharmaceut

ical products or dispensing of pre-packaged prescription

pharmaceuticals products In addition the Company is subject to

regulations issued by the United States Food and Drug Admin

istration FDA the Drug Enforcement Administration and

comparable state agencies

The Federal Food Drug and Cosmetic Act generally regulates the

manufacture and importation of drugs and medical devices shipped

via interstate commerce including such matters as labeling pack

aging storage and handling of such products The Prescription

Drug Marketing Act of 1987 which amended the Federal Food

Drug and Cosmetic Act establishes certain requirements applicable

to the wholesale distribution of prescription drugs including the
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requirement that wholesale drug distributors be registered with the

Secretary of Health and Human Services or be licensed in each

state in which business is conducted in accordance with federally

established guidelines on storage handling and records main

tenance The Safe Medical Devices Act of 1990 imposes certain

reporting requirements on distributors in the event of an incident

involving serious illness injury or death caused by medical device

The Company is also required to maintain licenses and permits for

the distribution of pharmaceutical products and medical devices

under the laws of the states in which it operates

Heofrhrnre Fraud and Abuse Lowc

The Company is subject to extensive local state and federal laws

and regulations relating to healthcare fraud and abuse Federal and

state governments continue to scrutinize potentially fraudulent

practices in the healthcare industry in an attempt to minimize the

cost that such practices have on Medicare Medicaid and other

govemment healthcare programs Under Medicare Medicaid and

other government-funded healthcare programs federal and state

govemments enforce Federal law called the Anti Kickback Stat

ute The Anti Kickback Statute and the related regulations prohibits

any person from offering paying soliciting or receiving anything of

value to or from another person to induce the referral of business

including the sale or purchase of items or services covered by

Medicare Medicaid or other federally subsidized programs Many

states also have similar anti kickback statutes The Federal False

Claims Act provides that those who knowingly submit or cause

another person or entity to submit false claims for payment of

govemment funds are liable for three times the governments

damages plus civil penalties

The Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act PPACA enacted

in March 2010 known as The Health Care Reform Bill significantly

strengthened the Federal False Claims Act and the Anti-Kickback

provisions which could lead to the possibility of increased whistle

blower or related suits The PPACA imposed new reporting and

disclosure requirements for manufacturers with regard to payments

or other transfers of value made to certain practitioners beginning

in January 2012 Additional implemented or pending state
legis

lation surrounding payments or other transfers of value made to

certain practitioners requires disclosure and reporting

StoLe and Federal Drug Pedigree Lows

Them have Keen increasing effortc by variaus levels of gnvernment

to regulate the pharmaceutical distribution system in order to

prevent the introduction of counterfeit adulterated or misbranded

pharmaceuticals into the distribution system Several states have

enacted or proposed laws and regulations designed to protect the

integrity of the supply channel for the distribution of pharmaceut

ical products For example several states have implemented drug

pedigree requirements that require prescription drugs to be dis

tributed with records or information documenting the prior dis

tribution of the drug back to the manufacturers In addition Cal

ifornia has proposed legislation that will require the implementation

of an electronic drug pedigree system that provides track and

trace chain of custody technologies such as radio frequency

identification or RFID technologies by january 201 for Whole

sale Distributors and Repackagers At the federal level the FDA

issued final regulations pursuant to the Prescription Drug Marketing

Act that became effective in December 2006 The regulations

impose drug pedigree and other chain of custody requirements

that increase the costs and/or burden of selling our products and

handling product returns There currently case pending in the

Federal District Court for the Eastern District Court of New York

enjoining the implementation of some of the federal drug pedigree

requirements in response to case initiated by secondary distrib

utors Moreover the United States Food and Drug Administration

Amendments Act of 2007 require the FDA to establish standards

to provide for the development of standardized numerical identi

fier and include track and trace or authentication technologies such

as RFID and other technologies In the future Congress may

implement legislation that would revise and expand the federal

pedigree requirements If enacted these pedigree requirements

could preempt existing state pedigree requirements and the

Company may have to adopt or mod5 its operations to initiate

and transmit electronically coded pedigree information concerning

the purchase and transmittal of prescription drugs in all SO states

The Health /nsuronce
Portability

and Accountability Act of 996

The Health Insurance Portability and Accountabllfty Act of 1996

and its implementing regulations collectively HIPAA establishes

national standards for some types
of electronic health

information transactions and the data elements used in those

transactions ii standards to protect the privacy of individually

identifiable health information PHI and iii security standards

to ensure the integrity and confidentiality of health information

Health plans health care clearinghouses and most health care pro

viders including the Company are Covered Entities subject to

HI PAP

The Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical

Health Act of 2009 HITECH signed into law on February 17

2009 dramatically expanded among other things the scope of

HIPAP to now apply directly to business associates or

independent cantractars who receive or nbtain PHI in connectinn

with providing service to covered entity including information

exchange organizations medical suppliers that ship to patients

homes and third-party billing service providers ii substantive

security and privacy obligations including new federal security

breach notification requirements to affected individuals of certain

breaches of unsecured PHI and iii the civil and criminal penalties

that may be imposed for HIPAP violations The HITECH Act may
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have significant impact on the duties responsibilities and liabilities

of our organization particularly with regards to HIPAA compliance

Other Lows

The Company is subject to various additional federal state and

local laws and regulations in the United States relating to the safe

working conditions and the sales use and disposal of hazardous or

potentially hazardous substances In addition laws that affect our

foreign operations include U.S and international import and export

laws and regulations that require that the Company abide by cer

tam standards relating to the importation and exportation of fin

ished goods raw materials and supplies and the Foreign Corrupt

Practices Act Furthermore the Department of Transportation

regulates the conveyance of regulated materials both in Company-

leased delivery vehicles and via common carrier

lmpoct of Chonges in Heolthcore Legislotion

Federal state and foreign laws and regulations affecting the Compa

nys business are subject to change The Company cannot predict

what impact if any such changes might have on its business Any

new legislation or regulations or new interpretations of existing

statutes and regulations governing the manner in which the

Company conducts its business could have material adverse

impact on the Company and its results of operations

The extensive federal and state laws and regulations described

above apply not only to the Company but also to the manu

facturers which supply the products distributed by the Company

For instance medical product and device manufacturers are subject

to design manufacturing labeling promotion and advertising stan

dards imposed on as well as registration and reporting require

ments regarding their facilities and products Likewise

pharmaruticaI manufacturrs are subject to devIopmnt manu

facturing and distribution regulation by the FDA the Drug

Enforcement Administration and other federal state and local

authorities Failure of manufacturer to comply with these

requirenents or changes in such requirements could result in

recalls seizures manufacturing suspensions or other interruptions

in the production supply and sale of its products Such inter

ruptions may result in material adverse impact on the Companys

business Similarly changes in the extensive regulations or in their

interpretation or enforcement applicable to the Companys

customers could adversely impact the Companys business in ways

which are difficult for the company to predict

See Item IA Risk Foctors for discussion of additional regulatory

developments that may affect the Companys results of operations

and financial condition

Proprietor R/ghts

The Company has registered with the United States Patent and

Trademark Office the marks PSS WORLD MEDICAL and

Design PSS Gulf South Medical and Design ANSWERS and

Design SMARTSCAN PHYSICIAN SELECT NIGHTINGALE
SOUTHERN ANESTHESIA SURGICAL INC and Design

ADVANCE PLUS by SOUTHERN ANESTHESIA SURGICAL
Inc and Design GULF SOUTH MEDICAL SUPPLY and Design

SELECT MEDICAL PRODUCTS and Design and SELECT MEDI

CAL PRODUCTS PSS GULF SOUTH MEDICAL SUPPLY and

Design among others The Companys trademarks generally have

term often years The Company believes that the PSS World

Medical Physician Sales Service and Gulf South Medical Supply

names are well recognized in the medical supply industry and by

healthcare providers and therefore are valuable assets of the

Company

Employees

As of April 1201 lthe Company employed approximately 3900

full time and part time employees The Company believes ongoing

employee training is critical to its success and accordingly invests

significant resources in training continuing professional education

and leadership development In support of the Companys

commitment to being the employer of choice the Company offers

both online and instructor led training The Companys Center for

Career Development CCD utilizes an Internet based

enterprise-wide learning management system CCD Online

which is designed to provide comprehensive learning environ

ment and in depth training for every employee As of April 2011

there were approximately 90 online classes available to employees

and since its inception in 2001 employees have completed over

226000 classes online The Company conducted 39 classes and

trained over 1200 employees in instructor led classroom sessions

during fiscal year 2011 Management believes that relations with

employees are strong and the Companys long-term success

depends upon its employees including its sales professionals

Avoiloble lnformotiori

The Company files annual quarterly and current reports proxy

statements and other information with the Securities and Exchange

Commission SEC Any documents that have been filed with the

SEC may be read or copied at prescribed rates contingent upon

written request at its Public Reference Room located at 100

Street N.E Washington D.C 20549 Information on the oper

ation of the Public Reference Room may be obtained by calling
the

SEC at 800 SEC-0330 These documents are also filed with the

SEC electronically and are accessible on the SECs Internet website

found at www.sec.gov Copies of materials filed with the SEC may
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also be obtained free of charge from the Companys Internet web

site found at wvw.pssworldmedical.com as soon as reasonably

practicable after such material is electronically filed with or fur

nished to the SEC

The Companys Code of Ethics Audit Committee Charter and

Corporate Governance Committee Charter are available to the

public free of charge in the Investor Relations section of the

Companys website ww.pssworldmedicaI.com or may be

obtained by writing to P55 World Medical Inc Investor Relations

4345 Southpoint Blvd Jacksonville Florida 3221 The Company

intends to post amendments to or waivers from its Code of Ethics

to the extent applicable to the Companys principal executive off

cer principal financial officer or principal accounting officer on its

website

Item Risk Factors

The Companys continued success depends on managements abil

ity to identify prioritize and appropriately manage wide range of

enterprise risk exposures Readers should carefully consider each of

the following risks and additional information set forth in this

Annual Report on Form 10-K These risks and other factors may

affect forward looking statements including those made by the

Company in this document or elsewhere The risks and

uncertainties described herein may not be the only ones facing the

Company and are not organized in order of priority Additional

risks and uncertainties not presently known to management or that

management currently believes to be immaterial may also adversely

affect the Companys business If any of the following risks and

uncertainties develop into actual events it could affect the Compa

nys business financial condition or results of operations cause the

trading price of the Companys common stock to decline or cause

actual results to differ materially from those expected

Genera/ economic conditions including the current g/oba/ economy may

materially adversely /mpact the Companys operating resu/ts

Current and future economic conditions and other factors including

consumer confidence unemployment levels interest rates tax

rates consumer debt levels the threat or outbreak of terrorism

fuel and energy costs the
availability

of consumer credit and the

impact of state and federal budget deficits on Medicaid and Medi

care reimbursement can reduce consumer spending or change

consumer purchasing habits The current global economy has and

may continue to materially adversely affect consumer spending

habits and our operating results

Trends in hea/thcare spending as we/I as the recently enacted

hea/thcare reform legislation may impact the Company/s results of

operations

significant portion of medical costs in the United States are funded

by govemment and private insurance programs such as Medicare

Medicaid and corporate health insurance plans In recent years

govemment imposed limits on reimbursement to hospitals physicians

nursing homes home health providers and other healthcare providers

have
significantly impacted spending in certain markets within the

medical products industry Future changes in Medicare and state

administered Medicaid programs may limit payments to providers and

customers served by the Company Significant reductions in

reimbursement levels and adjustments in combination with
rising

costs may negatively impact customers financial health and liquidity

and may negatively affect the Companys results of operations Addi

tionally the CompanyS Medicare Part billing services are subject to

competitive bidding process The
inability

of the Company to suc

cessfully compete in this environment could impact the Companys

net sales and results of operations

Health care reform is key priority of the current Administration

The Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act and Reconciliation

Act of 2010 the Healthcare Reform Act included increased

availability
of insurance provisions for health care information tech

nology increased effciencies in Medicare and Medicaid and provi

sions for additional taxes on medical devices In addition the

Healthcare Reform Act provides for changes in how healthcare

may be delivered to patients in the future such as accountable care

organizations and the use of healthcare information technology

which may impact the Companys business It is unclear at this time

what impact such laws and regulations will have on the purchasing

patterns of the Companys customers and as result the Compa

nys financial condition results of operations and cash flows

Numerous factors many of which cannot be contra//ed by the

Company may cause the Campanys net sa/es and resu/ts of

aperatians to fluctuate which may adverse/y aftbct the market price af

the Companys common stack

The Companys net sales and operating results may fluctuate as

result of many factors some of which are out of the Companys

control including

general economic conditions

demand for the products and services offered by the Com

pany

introduction of new products and services offered by the

Company and its competitors

seasonal and pandemic vaccine sales

retention of sales representatives and other key employees

acquisitions dispositions or other investments by the Com

pany

changes in manufacturers pricing policies contract terms and

distribution strategies

rapid or unexpected increases in product or operating costs

changes in estimates used by management

unfavorable media reports and/or press coverage of the

Company
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changes in the Companys business strategies or those of its

competitors

product supply shortages

product recalls by manufacturers

inventory valuation adjustments

changes in product mix

fuel costs and third party shipping rates

costs associated with the Companys self funded medical

insurance program

inclement weather

disruptions resulting from implementing strategic business

plans

disruptions resulting from implementing enterprise resource

planning ERR systems and

changes by the government including healthcare reform

changes in reimbursement rates to providers regulatory

requirements and taxes related to the distribution of medical

and pharmaceutical products

Accordingly management believes that period to period compar

isons of the results of operations should not be relied upon as an

indication of future performance because these factors may cause

the Companys results of operationc to be below analysts and

investors expectations in certain future periods This could materi

ally
and adversely affect the trading price of the Companys com

mon stock

The Company may not be ab/e to continue to successfully compete

with other medical supply companies and direct manufacturers

Consolidation within the healthcare industry has resulted in

increased competition by direct manufacturers large national

distributors and drug wholesalers and may result in lower

customer pricing and/or higher operating costs Additionally

changes in ownership of physician practices may erode the

Companys customer base Continued consolidation in the health

care industry could result in the following

potential new entrants to the markets the Company serves

provider networks created through consolidation among physi

cian provider groups long term care facilities and other alter

nate site providers may shift purchasing decisions to entities or

persons with whom the Company has no current relationship

national hospital distributors drug wholesale distributors and

healthcare manufacturers may focus their efforts more directly

on the Companys markets

competitors obtaining exclusive rights to market products to

the Companys customers and

hospitals forming alliances with long term care facilities or physi

cian practices to create integrated healthcare networks which

may look to hospital distributors and manufacturers to supply

their affiliates

The medical supply distribution market is highly competitive The

Companys results of operations could be materially adversely

affected if competitors offer products similar to those distributed

by the Company at significantly lower prices Principal competitors

of the Company include full line and full-service multi market

medical distributors internet distributors and direct
selling manu

facturers many of which have national
presence

and significantly

greater resources than the Company The Company also faces sig

nificant competition from regional and local distributors tele

marketing firms intemet companies and mail order firms The

Companys competition may have the following strengths

sales representatives that compete directly with the Company

capability to market products directly to the Companys cus

tomers

exclusive access to unique products or services

substantially greater financial resources than the Company and

lower product and operating costs

There can be no assurance the Company will maintain operating

margins and customer relationships and avoid increased competi

tion and significant pricing pressure
in the future if medical supply

distributor consolidations acquisitions of the Companys customers

by hospitals and other customer consolidations occur If the

Company is unable to compete successfully with other medical

supply distributors and direct manufacturers the Companys busi

ness financial condition and results of operations may be materially

adversely affected

The Company may face increasing competitive pricing pressures on

sa/es to its customers

The Companys business strategy may not mitigate the effect of

pricing pressures which could adversely impact the Companys net

sales gross margins and results of operations As result of the

current economic environment the Company has experienced

increased pressure on the price of its products and services which

may continue into future periods

Additionally sales to large accounts and provider groups especially

in the long term care market represent significant portion of the

Companys revenue base Competitive pricing pressures may

increase due to

change in ownership

additional negotiating leverage of large customers

supplier agreements containing volume discounts

service specifications

financial health of customers

activity of competitors and

activity of group purchasing organizations GPO
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The viability of the Companys customers moy be threatened by various

factors

The Cam pany has been negatively impacted in the past and could

be negatively impacted in the future when customers experience

disruptions resulting from tighter capital and credit markets or

loss of patient revenue due to changes in the general economy

Customers have and may continue to modify delay or cancel

plans to purchase the Companys products or services Additionally

if customers operating and financial performance deteriorate or if

they are unable to make scheduled payments or obtain credit

customers may not be able to pay or may delay payment of

accounts receivable awed to the Company Any inability
of

customers to pay for products and services may adversely affect

the Companys earnings and cash flow

The Companys customers are also impacted by increasing costs of

malpractice claims and
liability

insurance As result customer

financial viability may adversely impact the Companys financial

condition net sales results of operations and cash flows from

operations

The Companys future operating results ore affected by its relationships

with its customers sales representatives and senior management team

The Companys ability to retain existing customers and attract new

customers is dependent upon hiring and retaining sales representa

tives Customer relationships are at risk if sales representative

ceases employment with the Company particularly where the

representative seeks employment with competitor The Com
pany uses employment agreements containing restrictive covenants

which protect the Companys legitimate business interests How

ever these agreements have not been obtained far all sales repre

sentatives In addition the terms of these agreements in certain

states may not be
fully

enforceable The
inability

to adequately hire

or retain sales representatives could limit the Companys ability to

expand its business and increase sales

The Companys success in executing its strategic objectives

depends largely on the efforts and abilities of senior management

particularly the executive management team as well as operations

and sales leaders at each distribution center as local leaders have

significant decision making authority Although the Company main

tains key man life insurance for certain aPi cers the loss of services

of one or more of its members of senior management the
inability

of the current management team to successfully execute the

Cnmpanyc strategies nrthe
inahility

of th Company to attract

and retain key personnel through appropriately aligned compensa

tion and benefit plans may adversely affect the Companys business

The Company relies extensively on its relationships significant distribution

agreements and other purchasing arrangements with suppliers

The Company has distribution agreements and other purchasing

arrangements with substantial majority of its suppliers The

Company relies on these suppliers to manufacture and/or supply

products for and to the Company for resale to the Companys

customers If any distribution agreement or other purchasing

arrangement
between the Company and supplier expires or is

terminated if the Company fails to meet the minimum require

ments under the agreement or if the Company and any supplier

otherwise cease conducting business with each other then the

Companys net sales and results of operations may be materially

adversely affected

Since the Company does not manufacture many of the products it

sells it is dependent on vendors and manufacturers for the supply

of products The Company relies on suppliers to provide among

other things

field sales representatives technical and
selling support

acceptable purchasing pricing and delivery terms

sales performance and other financial incentives

rebates for inventory purchases or sales volume

support of sales and marketing programs

promotional materials and

product availability

There can be no assurance that the Company will be successful in

maintaining good relations with its suppliers The Companys global

sourcing strategy may threaten relations with certain suppliers

Additionally there can be no assurance that the Company will

meet forecasted inventory purchases sales volume or other cri

teria required to obtain the benefits outlined in supplier agree

ments

Cost increases for the Companys products may impact the Cam pan/s

results of operations

The Companys suppliers both domestic and foreign may increase

costs far products distributed by the Company While the Cam

pany takes steps to mitigate the effect of these cost increases there

can be no assurance that these cost increases will not materially

adversely impact the Companys net sales gross margins financial

conditions and results of operations

Expansion of GPO or hospital purchasing power and the multi tiered

costing structure may place the Company at competitive

disadvantage

The medical-products industry is subject to multi-tiered costing

structure which can vary by manufacturer and/or product Under

this structure certain competitors can obtain more favorable prices

far medical products than the Company The multi tiered costing

structure continues to expand as many large integrated healthcare

providers and others with significant purchasing powen such as

GPOs demand more favorable pricing terms This may threaten
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the Companys ability to compete effectively which would in turn

negatively impact the Companys results of operations Although

the Company seeks to obtain similar terms from manufacturers and

obtain access to lower prices demanded by GPO contracts or

other contracts management cannot assure such terms will be

obtained or contracts will be executed

The operoting costs of the Componys delivery fleet
could increose due

to fuel price fluctuotions ond/or service interruptions by third pot-ties

The Company delivers its products to customers through either its

Company-leased delivery fleet or third party transportation pro

viders Significant fluctuations in the cost of tuel have had and may

continue to have..an adverse impact on the Companys cost to

deliver.product to customers In addition the Companys oper

ations may be impacted by events and conditions outside of its

control including strikes or other service interruptions by third

party transportation providers which may increase the Companys

operating expenses and adversely affect the Companys ability
to

deliver products on timely basis

The Componys strotegy for growth moy not result in odditionol net

soles or operoting income ond moy hove on odverse eflect on working

copitol operoting cosh flow ond results of operotions

The Company seeks to increase revenues and operating income

by

developing innovative marketing and distribution programs

expanding the sales force and increasing sales force pro

ductivity

expanding e-commerce initiatives and development

maintaining and expanding vendor incentive programs

expanding product offerings

expanding sales support services

increasing healthcare information technology offerings

leveraging its infrastructure and information systems

improving distribution capability and efficiency through systems

deYelopment and implementation

improving supply chain efficiency through centralization and

systems enhancements and

improving operating margins through product sourcing ini

tiatives

These business strategies for growth may result in increased costs

and expenses There can be no assurance that the Companys

business strategy for growth will result in additional net sales or

operating income In addition the implementation of the Compa

nys business strategy for growth may have an adverse effect on

working capital operating cash flow and results of operations

Execution of Componys ocquisition strotegy could odversely offect the

Componys results of operotions ond finonciol condition

An element of the Compan/s strategy is to identify pursue and

consummate acquisitions that either expand or compliment the

Companys business Future acquisitions or investments may be

financed by the issuance of equity securities that would increase

the number of outstanding common shares and may decrease

earnings per share and through incurring additional debt Addition

ally changes in generally accepted accounting principles and general

economic and market conditions may affect the profitability of

acquisitions

Integration of acquisitions involves number of risks The Company

may be unable to successfully integrate the operations of acquired

companies and realize anticipated economic operational and other

benefits in timely manner Integration of an acquired company

may be difficult when the acquired business is in market in which

the Company has limited expertise If the operations of acquired

companies are not successfully integrated the Company may

incur substantial unanticipated costs and delays

experience operational technical or financial problems and

-4 damage relationships with key customers and employees

As result of these operational financing and environmental fac

tors the Companys business financial condition results of oper

ations and market price of the Companys common stock may be

adversely affected

The Componys obility to cony out its globol sourcing strotegy which

includes sourcing products from foreign morkets subject to politicol

economic ond legol uncertointies moy offect the Componys overoll

profitobility

The Company continues to expand its globally sourced product

nffering which is marketed tinder the hr2nd name Select Medical

Products and other brand names collectively Select The

Companys global sourcing strategy revolves around sustaining

sourcing channels to drive enhanced customer satisfaction and

profitability To attain its strategic objectives the Company has

focused on

expanding the Select product offering

strengthening the global sourcing infrastructure

improving product sourcing processes and sourcing partner

coordination

ensuring the quality of Select brand products

supporting increases in volume of globally sourced products

effectively marketing of Select brand products and

providing appropriate incentives to its sales force in the form

of commission and promotions

The Companys sourcing strategy involves purchasing certain prod

ucts directly from foreign manufacturers The Companys business

financial condition and results of operations may be adversely
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affeded by changes in the political social or economic environment

of certain foreign countries Changes in laws and regulations or

their interpretation the imposition of surcharges or any material

increase in tax rates restrictions on currency conversion imports

and sources of supply or the nationalization or other expropriation

of private enterprises could have material adverse effect on the

Companys ability
to conduct business and its results of operations

Additional risks related to the Companys global sourcing strategy

include

political
unrest in certain regions

intermiftent supply interruptions with global manufacturers

unfavorable changes in foreign currency exchange rates

shipping disruptions-due to transportation delays

fluctuations in the cost of commodities

fluctuations in labor costs

potential quality issues

shortages in
facility capacity

availability
of raw materials

increasing regulation of imports due to rising trade deficit

natural disasters in certain regions

regional tensions that adversely affect the development of

ongoing agreements and

intellectual property violation claims

The Companys failure or inability to execute any of its strategic

global sourcing initiatives could adversely impact its future profit

ability

The Compony moy not be oble to efthctively respond to chonges in its

systems ond product reloted technology

The use of technology and commerce by the Company and its

customers is expanding commerce is an effcient system for

customer ordering and inventors management functions and the

use of technology applications is becoming more prevalent in our

customers businesses The Company provides multiple

commerce and other technology options in order to meet the

demands of itt customers Advancements in technology and

commerce will require the Company to enhance existing services

and introduce new services to meet customer demands If the

Company does not address the changing demands of customers on

timely basis the Company could experience adverse results

The Company sells products that are subject to technological obso

lescence The Company may experience adverse results if it is

unable to anticipate customers purchasing patterns and can no

longer sell products that have become obsolete

The Componys business is dependent on doto processing systems

cnticol to the business operotions

The Company is reliant on its information systems for centralized

customer support operating and administrative processes

Management relies on the capability accuracy timeliness and stabil

ity of its data processing systems to

receive and ship customer orders including those received

electronically

manage customer billings and collections

provide accurate point of sale product cost information

track and report third party ancillary billing services

provide product reporting such as product purchases and sales

by vendor and vendor incentives earned

manage inventory procurement and processes

track and report regulatory compliance related to certain

pharmaceutical products and devices

provide manufacturer rebate tracking compliance verification

and collection

ensure payments to suppliers are made in accordance with

negotiated terms

ensure certain critical intemal controls are operating properly

prepare and present accurate financial statements and related

information and

integrate acquisitions

The Companys business financial condition and results of oper

ations may be materially adversely affected if among other things

-4 data errors are created by the information systems and remain

undetected

data processing capabilities are interrupted or fail to operate

for an extended period of time

the data processing system becomes unable to support growth

of the business

data is lost or is unable to be restored

-4 data security is breached inadvertently or through malicious

intent causing destruction or theft of the Companys

information

-4 problems occur with system upgrades and implementations or

such upgrades and implementations are not timely

-4 product maintenance and upgrades to the ERR system are no

longer provided by suppliers or

revision is made to the estimated useful lives for certain

computer software

The Componys future results of operotions could be odversely offected

by operotionol disruptions due to noturol disosters porticulorly in

regions susceptible to hurricones

natural disaster such as hurricane tornado earthquake or flood

could cause severe damage and disruption to the Companys

operations property inventory and the operations of its customers

The Company has developed disaster recovery plans which

include the use of third party back up facilities for information sys

tem infrastructure In addition the Company maintains business

interruption insurance for instances of catastrophic loss There is
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risk the Company may fail to execute its disaster recovery plans

and incur losses that exceed insurance policy limits or are excluded

from policy provisions Furthermore the Company may have duff

culty obtaining business interruption insurance in the future or sim

ilar types of
coverage may not be available in the markets in which

it operates The Companys failure to execute or
inability

to

execute any of its disaster
recovery plans and obtain adequate

insurance coverage could materially adversely impact the Compa

nys business and results of operations

The Companys indebtedness may /imit its obilip to obtain additional

financing in th future and may limit ib flexibility to react tu industry yr

economic conditions

The Company maintains an asset based revolving line of credit

RLOC which permits maximum borrowings of up to

$200.0 million and may be increased to $250.0 million at the

Companys discretion Availability of borrowings underthe RLOC

depends upon borrowing base calculation consisting of accounts

receivable and inventory subject to satisfaction of certain
eligibility

requirements less any outstanding letters of credit Any deterio

ration in the valuation of these assets could reduce the availability

of borrowings under the RLOC Increases in the level of the

Companys indebtedness or changes in the Companys debt rating

could adversely affect the Companys liquidity
and reduce the

Companys ability to

obtain additional financing for working capital requirements

fund the convertible notes if presented for redemption

make capital expenditures

acquire businesses and

adapt to changes in the industry and economic conditions in

general

Operating cash requirements are normally funded by cash flows

from operating activities and borrowings under the RLOC which

expires in 201 The Company expects that sources of capital to

fund future growth in the business will be provided by combina

tion of cash flows from operating activities borrowings under the

RLOC capital markets and/or other financing arrangements

However changes in capital markets or adverse changes to the

Companys operations may disrupt the Companys ability to main

tam adequate levels of liquidity including its
ability

to renew its

RLOC in 2012 on terms acceptable to the Company

If the Company is unable to generate sufficient cash flow from

operating activities the Company may be forced to adopt strat

egies that may include the following

reduce or delay acquisitions and capital expenditures

sell assets

restructure or refinance existing indebtedness and

seek additional equity capital

The price of the Companys common stock and the trading value of the

senior convertible notes may be volatile

The Companys common stock experiences price and volume fluc

tuations Trading prices of the Companys common stock may be

influenced by operating results projections and economic financial

regulatory and other factors In addition general market conditions

including the level of and fluctuations in the trading prices of

stocks generally could affect the price of the Companys common

stock

The market price of the senior convertible notes Notes is

expected to be significantly affected
by

the market price of the

Companys common stock as well as the general level of interest

rates and the Companys credit quality This may result in sig

nificantly greater volatility
in the trading value of the Notes than

would be expected for nonconvertible debt securities the Com
pany may issue

The price of the Companys common stock may also be affected

by possible sales of the Companys common stock by investors

who view the Notes as more attractive means of equity partic

ipation in the Company and by hedging or arbitrage activity involv

ing the Companys common stock as result of the issuance of the

Notes The hedging or arbitrage activity in turn could affect the

trading prices of the Notes and common stock

The Company faces potential litigation
and

liability exposure for

product liability and other claims against the Company

The Company is distributor of medical products equipment and

pharmaceutical products As result there is risk that injury or

other liability arising from the use or transportation of the products

may occur and result in
litigation against the Company Accordingly

the Company maintains various insurance policies including prod

uct liability insurance to cover such exposure at amounts that

management considers adequate However there can be no assur

ance the coverage maintained by the Company under various

insurance policies is sufficient to cover future claims or will be avail

able in adequate amounts at reasonable cost In many cases the

manufacturer of the product for
any product liability

claims may

indemnify the Company however these agreements may not

apply to products sourced through altemate channels Additionally

there can be no assurance that indemnification agreements pro

vided by manufacturers will adequately protect the Company par

ticulriy the enfnrreability of indemnification provisions provided hy

overseas suppliers for globally sourced products These risks

increase as more of the Companys sales relate to globally sourced

products and products purchased through alternate channels

successful claim brought against the Company in excess of available

insurance or indemnification agreements or any claim that results

in significant adverse publicity against the Company could harm the

Companys business reputation and results of operations
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In addition to product liability claims the Company is subject to

various legal
and administrative proceedings and claims arising in

the normal course of business which are described in Footnote 19

Commitments and Contingencies of the consolidated financial

statements included elsewhere in this Annual Report on

Form 0-K The outcomes of such proceedings or claims that are

unasserted pending or known to be threatened could have

material adverse effect on the Companys consolidated financial

position liquidity or results of operations

The Compony foces risk that its proprietary rights may infringe on the

rights of third parties and that the protection offered by its proprietary

rights may not be adequate

The Company relies on combination of patent copyright and

trademark laws nondisclosure and other contractual provisions to

protect number of its products services and intangible assets

These proprietary rights are important to the Companys ongoing

operations There can be no assurance these protections will pro

vide meaningful protection against competitive products or services

or otherwise be commercially viable orthe Company will be suc

cessful in obtaining additional intellectual property or enforcing its

intellectual property rights against unauthorized users

From time to time outside parties may assert infringement claims

against the Company If the Company was found to be infringing

on others rights the Company may be required to pay substantial

damage awards obtain license or cease selling
the products that

contain the infringing property Such actions may be significant and

result in material losses to the Company

Failure to comply with existing and future regulatory and legal

requirements could adversely affect the Companys results of

operations and financial condition

General

The health care industry is highly regulated and the Company is

subject to various federal state local and foreign laws and regu

lations which include the Drug Enforcement Agency DEA the

Food and Drug Administration FDA various state boards of

pharmacy state health departments the United States Department

of Health and Human Services HHS the Occupational Safety

and Health Administration OSHA the Centers for Medicare

and Medicaid Services CMS various State Attorneys General

State Mediraid fraud units and other comparable agencies Th
Companys global product sourcing initiatives have increased the

Companys exposure to these regulatory agencies Certain of the

Companys distribution service centers may be required to register

for permits and/or licenses with and comply with operating and

security standards of the DEA the FDA HHS and various state

boards of pharmacy state health departments and/or comparable

state agencies as well as certain accrediting bodies depending upon

the type of operations and location of product distribution manu

facturing and sale Enforcement activity with regards to these laws

and regulations has increased recently and the Company expects it

to continue to increase In addition to laws relating to the health

care industry our vehicle fleet is subject to extensive regulation by

the Department of Transportation Although the Company

believes it is in compliance in all material respects with applicable

laws and regulations there can be no assurance that regulatory

agency or tribunal would not reach different conclusion concern

ing the compliance of the Companys operations with applicable

laws and regulations and that any such non-compliance would not

have matrial adverse effect on th Company

The noncompliance by the Company with applicable laws and

regulations or the failure to maintain renew or obtain necessary

permits and licenses could have an adverse effect on the Compa

nys results of operations and financial condition In addition if

changes were to occur to the laws and regulations applicable to

the Companys businesses such changes could adversely affect

many of the Companys regulated operations or could otherwise

restrict the Companys existing operations limit the expansion of

the Companys businesses apply regulations to previously

unregulated businesses or otherwise affect the Company adversely

The costs associated with complying with federal and state regu

lations may be significant and failure to comply with any such laws

and regulations could have material adverse effect on the Cam

pany including criminal and civil penalties administrative sanctions

quarantine and destruction of inventory fines and other adverse

actions

The manufacture distribution and marketing af certain of the

Companys products are subject to extensive ongoing regulation by

the FDA Failure to comply with the requirements of the FDA

could result in warning letters product recalls or seizures monetary

sanctions injunctions to halt manufacture and distribution of prod

ucts civil or criminal sanctions refusal of the government to grant

approvals restrictions an operations or withdrawal of existing

approvals Any of these actions could cause loss of customer

confidence in the Company and its products which could adversely

affect the Companys sales In addition third parties may file claims

against the Company in connection with these issues

Laws relaring to the physician dispensing solutions

Certain physician medication dispensing solutions could be

adversely affected by pending legislation that would provide

restrictions and /ar limitations that could inhibit profitability In addi

tion an increase in enforcement activity in regards to the laws and

regulations surrounding this type of business
activity

will continue

and could potentially inhibit or eliminate this business impairing the

Companys goodwill balance
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Lows relating to heolthcore fraud

The Company is subject to extensive and frequently changing

federal and state laws and regulations relating to healthcare fraud

The federal government continues to increase enforcement of

practices involving healthcare fraud The Companys relationships

with manufacturers and healthcare providers subject the business

to laws and regulations on fraud and abuse which among other

things prohibit persons from soliciting offering receiving or

paying any remuneration in order to induce the referral of patient

for treatment orto induce the ordering purchasing leasing or

arranging for or recommending ordering purchasing or leasing of

items or services that are in any way paid for by government-

sponsored healthcare programs and impose number of

restrictions upon referring physicians and providers of designated

health services under government healthcare programs While the

Company believes that it is substantially compliant with all appli

cable laws many of the applicable regulations are vague or indef

mite and have not been interpreted by regulators or the courts

They may be interpreted or applied in mannerthat could require

changes in operations In addition the Federal False Claims Act

creates financial incentive for private individuals to bring suit on

behalf of the government to recover funds paid pursuant to false

claim which may include failure to comply with technical require

ments for claim submission coding and billing
If the Company fails

to comply with applicable laws and regulations it could suffer civil

and criminal penalties including substantial fines or penalties and

other sanctions including exclusion from participation in any federal

health care program

Lows affecting our foreign operations

The Company is subject to the United States Foreign Corrupt

Practices Act FCFA which generally prohibits United States

companies from engaging in bnbery or prohibited payments to

foreign officials for the purpose of obtaining or retaining business

FCPA enforcement has increased significantly in recent years
Cer

tam forçign companies including some that may compete with the

Company may not be subject to these prohibitions Corruption

extortion bribery pay-offs theft and other fraudulent practices

occur from time to time in the non U.S countries in which the

Company conducts business The Company has implemented safe

guards to prevent and discourage such practices by employees and

agents There is no assurance however that employees or other

agents will not engage in such conduct for which the Company

might be held responsible If employees or other agents are found

to have engaged in such practices the Company could suffer

severe penalties and other consequences that may have material

adverse effect on the Companys business financial condition and

results of operations

Tax legislation initiatives and audits by tax authorities could adversely

affect the Companys net earnings and tax liabilities

The Company is subject to the tax laws and regulations of the

United States Federal state and local governments and certain for

eign governments Various
legislative

initiatives may be proposed

including those to alter the taxation of the Companys earnings

from foreign operations which could adversely affect the Compa

nys tax positions There can be no assurance that the Companys

effective tax rate will not be adversely affected by these initiatives

In addition United States Federal state and local tax laws and regu

lations are extremely complex and subject to varying inter

pretations Although the Company believes that its historical tax

positions are sound and consistent with applicable laws regulations

and existing precedent there can be no assurance that the

Compan/s tax positions will not be challenged by relevant tax

authorities or that the Company would be successful in
any such

challenge

From time to time we are audited by United States Federal state

local and foreign tax authorities If these audits result in assessments

different from our reserves our future results may include

unfavorable adjustments to our tax liabilities

See Item Business Regulatory Maters for additional

information

Item Unresolved Staff Comments

The Company has received no written comments regarding its

periodic or current reports from the staff of the Securities and

Exchange Commission that were issued 180 days or more preced

ingthe end of fiscal year 2011 and that remain unresolved

Item Properties

The Company leases warehouse and office space for its full-service

distribution centers break freight locations other service centers

and redistribution facilities in various locations across the United

States In the normal course of business management regularly

assesses its business needs and makes changes to the capacity and

location of these leased facilities As of April 2011 the Company

believes its distribution infrastructure is adequate to carry on its

business as currently conducted and that if necessary it could find

additional and/or replacement facilities to lease without suffering

material adverse effect on its business
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The following tables identih the full service distribution centers Redistribution Facilities

break freight locations ancillary service centers and redistribution Fullerton CA Jacksonville FL

facilities for each operating segment
Other

...

Physician Business
Biingham AL Fresno CA Redmond WA

aFacilities shared by Physician Business and Elder Care Business

Full Service Distnbution center Lacotions
In the aggregate the Companys service center locations consist of

Aiea HI Fullerton CA Lubbock TX Salt Lake City approximately 2.8 million square feet of leased space
The lease

uT
agreements have expiration dates ranging from April 2011 to

Aubum WA Gainesville GA Memphis TN Santa Ana CA
August 20 and facilities ranging in size from approximately 1000

Charlotte NC Grand Prairie TX Olathe KS Schertz TX
square feet to 69000 square feet

Colnial Heights VA Houston TX Orlando FL St Roe LA

Columbia SC Kennesaw GA Phoenix AZ Wareham MA The Companys corporate off ce complex and location of Corpo
Denver CO LeeTsdale PA Rochester NY West rate Shared Services consists of approximately 50000 square feet

Columbia SC
of leased office space located at 4345 Southpoint Boulevard and

Elgin IL Louisville KY Rogers MN West 4190 Belfort Road Jacksonville Florida 3221

Sacramento

CA The Company also retains off ce space
for the

purpose
of provid

Fairfield NJ ing support services to segment locations described in the previous

table These offices are located in the following cities Franklin TN
Break Freight Locatians

.. Jacksonville FL Niles IL Woodstock GA and Shanghai China

Albany NY Gresham OR Mesquite TX St Charles MO
Baton Rouge LA Hamilton OH Middletown PA St Petersburg Item Legal Proceedings

FL

Bethlehem PA Jacksonville FL Morrisville NC Tallahassee FL From time to time the Company is party to various
legal

and

Big Bend WI Knoxville TN Nashville TN Troy MI administrative proceedings and claims arising in the normal course

Birmingham AL Lafayette LA Newark CA Tmussville AL of business While any litigation contains an element of uncertainty

Chatsworth CA Lanham MD Omaha NE Tulsa OK
the Company after consultation with legal counsel believes that

Chattanooga TN Las Vegas NV Pompano Beach Tyler TX
the outcome of such other proceedings or claims which are pend

FL

Columbia SC Macedonia OH Roanoke VA Warminste
ing or known to be threatened will not have material adverse

effed on the Companys consolidated financial position liquidity or
PA

results of operations
Fredericksburg VA Maumelle AR San Diego CA West Babylon

NY
Item Reserved

Gahanna OH

Redistribution Focilities

Fullerton CA jacksonville FL

Other
...

Channahon IL

Elder Care Business

Full Service Distnbuhon Center Locatians
...

Aubum WA Londondeny NH Omaha NE Sacramento CA

Austell GA Mesquite TX Ontario CA Spokane WA
Fort Lauderdale FL Middletown PA Orlando FL Vancouver WA
Gahanna OH Morrisville NC Ridgeland MS Windsor WI

Breok Freight Locotions

CharlotteNC Fairfield NJ Indianapolis IN Olathe KS

Eau Claire WI Houston TX Maumelle AR Schertz TX
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Port II Item

PartlI

Item Market for the Registrants Common equity

related Stockholder Matters and issuer purchases of

equity securities

Market Information

Shares of the Companys common stock are quoted on Nasdaq

Stock Market Inc.s Global Select Market NASDAQ CS under

the ticker symbol PSSI The following table presents for the pen

ods indicated the range of high and low sale prices per share of

the Companys common stock as reported on NASDAQ CS

Quarter Ended High Low

Fiscal year ended April 2010

june262009 $18.53 $1372

October 2009 $22.52 17.61

january 2010 $22.83 $19.32

April 2010 $23.96 $18.58

Fiscal year ended April 2011

July
2010 $24.45 $20.51

uctoberl2010 $2119 $18.15

December31 2010 $24.11 $20.50

April 2011 $27.36 $22.47

Cash Dividends

Since inception the Company has neither declared nor paid cash

dividends and intends to continue to retain earnings for the growth

and development of the Companys business therefore does not

anticipate the declaration of cash dividend in the immediate

future The Companys revolving line of credit agreement contains

certain covenants that limit the amount of cash dividends that may

be declared by the Company

I-Ioldehs of Common Stock

As of May 20 2011 there were approximately 1420 holders of

record of the Companys common stock
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Performance Graph

The graph below compares the cumulative total stockholder return on 00 invested assuming reinvestment of dividends if any on

March 31 2006 the last trading day before the beginning of the Companys fiscal year 2007 through the end of fiscal year 2011 with the

cumulative return on $100 invested for the same period in the Nasdaq Stock Market U.S Companies Composite Index

The graph also compares the cumulative stockholder return to an index of companies management believes comprise the Companys peer

group which includes the following Amerisourcebergen Corporation Baxter International Inc Cardinal Health Inc McKesson Corpo

ration Owens Minor Inc Patterson Companies Inc and Henry Schein Inc

Comparison of Year Cumulative Total Retum

Among PSS World Medical Inc The NASDAQ Composite Index And Peer Group

$150

$100

$50

$0

March 312006 March 302007 March 282008 March 272009 April 22010 April 12011

Pssworld Medical Inc NASDAQ Composite Peer Group

FISCAL YEAR ENDING APRIL 2011

March31

2006 March 30 2007 March 28 2008 March 27 2009
April

2010
April

2011

P55 World Medical Inc 100.00 109.59 86.37 74.39 121.88 140.55

NASDAQ Composite 100.00 103.50 97.41 65.33 102.49 118.86

PeerGroup 100.00 116.12 110.37 84.76 121.32 133.73

Information presented above assumes $100 invested on March 2006 and that dividends were reinvested
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Port II
Item

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

From time to time the Companys Board of Directors authorizes the purchase of its outstanding common shares The Company is

authorized to repurchase determined amount of its total common stock Repurchases can be made in the open market privately nego

tiated transactions and other transactions publicly disclosed through filings
with the SEC The Companys stock repurchase programs do not

have an expiration date

The following table summarizes the common stock repurchases and Board of Directors authorizations during the period from April 2010

toApril 12011

in thousands Shares

Shares available for repurchase April 2010 33 17

Additiunal shares authorized fur repurhas 2763

Shares repurchased 2728

Shares available for repurchase April 2011 3352

During fiscal
year

201 the Company repurchased approximately 2.7 million shares of common stock under these programs at an average

price of $20.07 per common share for approximately $54.8 million

The following table summarizes the Companys repurchase activity during the three months ended April 2011

Total Number of Maximum Number

Shares Purchased as Part otShares that May
Total Number of Average Price ot Publicly Announcod Yet Be Purchased under

hfires
Purrhasd Paid pr Rhare Plaru Prngrams the Plans nrPrngrams

January February 3353316

February March 1895 25.51 1895 3351421

March April
...

335 1421

Total fourth quarter 1895 $25.51 1895 3351421
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Item Selected Financial Data

The selected financial data for fiscal years 2007 through 20 have been derived from the Companys consolidated financial statements

which give retroactive effect to the restatement related to adoption of ASC 470-20 Debt Debt with Conversion ond Other Options See

Footnote Debt for additional information The selected financial data below should be read in conjunction with the Companys financial

statements and the notes thereto and Item Monogements Discussion ond Anolysis of Finonciol Condition ond Result of Operotions

Fiscal Year Ended

Dollars in thousands except per share data 2011 2010 2009 907

Statement of Operations Data

etsales
...

Net income attributable to P55 World Medical Inc

$2q34789 $2055171 $1952691 $1855791 $1741639

74485 69363 51486 53133 4/148

Eamings per share

Basic 1.35 .20 ff86 ff82 ff70

Diluted 1.32 1.18 ff85 ff80 0.68

Weighted average shares outstanding

Basic 54996 58029 59937 64703 67219

Diluted 56546 58943 60696 66184 69325

Ratio of eamings to fixed chargesa 5.7 4.2 3.3 4.5 3.9

Balance Sheet Data

Working capitalQ 345402 355606 323545 97454 304543

Total assets 951672 872066 858624 813236 773297

Long term liabilitiesb 305942 277994 241684 65 198 202239

For the purpose ot calculating the ratio ot eamings to fixed charges eamings consist ot income trom operations betore provision
tor income taxes plus fixed

charges less capitalized interest Fixed charges consist ot interest whether expensed or capitalized amortization ot debt issuance costs and the portion ot rental

expense estimated by management to be attributable to interest

Fiscal year 2008 working capital and long term liabilities reflect reclassification ot $150 million ot 2.25c senior convertible notes trom long term to current

liabilities made dunng fiscal year 2009
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Port II Item

Item Managements Discussion and Analysis of

Financial Condition and Results of Operations

The Company

PSS World Medical Inc the Company or PSSI Florida

corporation began operations in 1983 The Company is national

distributor of medical products and equipment pharmaceutical

products healthcare information technology physician dispensing

solutions and professional services to healthcare providers including

physician offices long term care and assisted living facilities home

health care and hospice providers through tull-service distribution

centers which serve all 50 states throughout the United States

U.S.

The Companys stated purpose is to strengthen the clinical success

and financial health of caregivers by solving their biggest problems

The Company uses its purpose to guide its business decisions and

strategies

The Company currently conducts business through two operating

segments the Physician Business and the Elder Care Business

which serve diverse customer base third reporting segment

Corporate Shared Services includes costs of corporate depart

ments that provide services to the operating segments For

information on comparative segment revenue segment profit and

related financial information refer to Footnote 18 Segment

Inforrnotion of the consolidated financial statements

PSSI is market leader in the two altemate site customer segments

it serves as result of value added solutions based marketing pro

grams differentiated customer distribution and service model

consultative sales force with extensive product disease state

reimbursement and supply chain knowledge unique arrangements

with manufacturers full line of the Companys own brand Select

innovative information systems and customer facing technologies

that serve its core markets and culture of performance

The Companys Strote

The Companys objective is to be the leading distributor and mar

keter of medical products and services to select medical market

segments in the United States of America with goal to grow

revenues at twice the market growth rate in the markets it serves

The key components of the Companys strategy include

Reach and Strengthen Grow soles through innovotive differentioted

morketing progroms innovotive products services ond new customer

ocquisitions The Company believes its sales professionals which

consists of approximately 950 employees and their customer rela

tionships and knowledge are strategic competitive advantages The

Company trains its sales professionals to develop and build unique

relationships with customers and provide solutions though

innovstive marketing programs
exclusive products and new prod

uct or technology offerings The Company develops and provides

unique customer-based solutions and marketing programs to

strengthen its customers clinical outcomes and financial health In

addition the Company utilizes improved customer interface proc

esses that increase sales representative bandwidth and improve the

customer experience

Our Health Optimize the Componys product offering ond
profit

obility
The Company has developed and implemented programs to

increase its profitability at the product and customer level The

Company continues to develop its domestic and global product

sourcing capabilities to optimize its product offering by integrating

sourcing and branding initiatives with customer product and

Company strategies to increase profitability The Company intends

to broaden its reach and breadth of products by expanding its

Select and specialty brand product offerings increasing product

quality and category management and leveraging its sourcing capa

bilities both foreign and domestic

LEAN
Simplifli

ond improve business octivities leveroging existing dis

tribution ond shored service copobilities The Company is making sig

nificant investments in its distribution infrastructure information

systems process reengineering and training to simpk5 its dis

tribution and administrative infrastructure develop easy to use

scalable processes and systems that enable growth reduce costs to

serve and achieve the Companys commitment to providing

superior customer service LEAN process improvement initiatives

focus on process redesign investments in automation and organiza

tional commitments to customer service in the most efficient

manner During fiscal year 201 the Company continued to lever

age its existing infrastructure investments and process improve

ments resulting in operating efficiencies improved customer service

levels and operating margins

ldentifr develop ond retoin leoders copoble of monoging growing

corporotion The Company is committed to the effective recruit

ment hiring and promotion of employees with outstanding per

formance culture and leadership abilities The Company provides

leadership development opportunities individual leadership

assessment and development plans education and coaching pro

grams to its employees The Companys goal is to develop

diverse group of individuals capable of leading growing corpo

ration

Curiduct business in legol aid ethicol nionner The Company

believes each employee is responsible for personal integrity and the

consequences of actions and is expected to follow the highest

standards of ethics honesty fairness and compliance with the law

The Company provides health safety and regulatory education

training programs and safe and positive work environment for its

employees
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Be the employer of choice within the industny The Company believes

its management sales force and employees are its most valuable

assets The Company seeks to foster culture of performance and

execution by designing employee incentive programs aligned with

the Companys business strategies and objectives The Company

strives to be the employer of choice in the markets it series in

terms of benefits offered to employees availability
of health and

wellness programs professional competency growth opportunities

and personal development training

Moke strotegic ocquisitions The Company expects to continue to

make strategic and fold in acquisitions to complement its core

business strategies and targets acquisitions which leverage infra

structure and distributioe capabilities expand its product offerings

and increase market share and profitability

Executive Overview

During fiscal year 2011 the Company continued growth in net

eamings despite the economic environment which slowed the

Companys sales Consolidated sales decreased .0% during fiscal

year 201 when compared to the prior year Sales during fiscal

year 20 were negatively impacted by five fewer
selling days and

decrease in product sales from the pandemic The Compa

nys per selling day revenue excluding the impact from the fiscal

year 2010 pandemic grew .0% compared to 3.2% during

the prior fiscal year The Company expects near term sales growth

rates excluding acquisitions to remain lower than historical growth

rates due to economic conditions and decrease in patient visits to

physicians offices

Consolidated income from operations increased approximately

$12.6 million or 10.4% during the fiscal year ended April 2011

while operating margins increased 68 basis points The fiscal year

201 increase was largely the result of managements focus on

improving selling margin and reducing operating costs as percent

age of net sales through its Lean strategies cost savings initiatives

strategic acquisitions and continued leverage of its distribution

infrastructure

Cash flow from operations during fiscal
year

201
grew to

$11 6.3 million which was attributable to growth in
profitability

and

focus on working capital management The Companys increased

cash flow from operations and available cash balances funded the

Companys stock repurchase program investments in capital proj

ects and acquisitions during the year

The Company remains focused on credit management and collec

tion of its receivable balances During fiscal year 201 days sales

outstanding remained relatively consistent in the Physician Business

and decreased from 48 days to 47 days in the Elder Care Business

when compared to prior year This was the result of investments in

credit and collections training new monitoring software and con

tinued focus on aged balances

Management uses return on committed capital RCCC as

defined in the Liquidity ond Copitol Resources section on page 31
as key performance indicator of overall profitability as well as

measurement criteria for investment decisions During fiscal year

2011 consolidated ROCC increased from 33.5% to 35.5% This

was result of leveraging earnings across the Companys fixed

assets as well as effective credit and collections processes men
tioned above

The 2010 Health Care Act passed into law in March 2010 pro

vides increased
availability

of insurance provisions for health care

information technology increased efficiencies in Medicare and

Medicaid as well 2.3% excise tax on medical devices The effect

of the 2010 Health Care Act on the Company is currently

uncertain as rulemaking on many of its provisions have not been

finalized

The following significantly impacted the Companys financial and

operating results during fiscal years 2011 2010 and 2009

Acquisitions

During fiscal year 2011 the Company continued to make strategic

acquisitions in both the Physician and Elder Care markets Cash

paid for acquisitions made during fiscal year 2011 2010 and 2009

was $65.9 million $14.8 million and $3.7 million respectively

During fiscal year 2011 the Physician Business obtained new

product line physician dispensing solutions with the acquisition of

Linear Medical Solutions Inc Linear and Dispensing Solutions

Inc DSl
Refer to Footnote Purchose Business Combinotions for additional

information

IN Flu Pondemic

During fiscal year 2010 the Physician Business experienced

increased sales of influenza test kits surgical masks medical gloves

and hand sanitizers and other product categories related to the

flu pandemic As result the Company recognized approx

imately $52.5 million in additional net sales during fiscal year 2010

which did not reoccur in fiscal year 2011

Convertible Debt Tronsoctions

During fiscal year 2009 the Company issued $230.0 million princi

pal amount of 25% senior convertible notes 2008 Notes
The Company also entered into convertible note hedge trans

actions and separately sold warrants to the initial purchaser and/or

its affiliates Under the terms of the convertible note agreement

the notes are convertible during any calendar quarter in which the
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closing sale price of the Companys common stock for certain

number of days is greater than $27.59 per share The 2008 Notes

would be classified as Current Liability during any such quarter

As of April 2011 and April 2010 the Company was required

to include shares underlying the 2008 Notes in its diluted weighted

average shares outstanding as the average stock price per share for

the period exceeded $21.22 the conversion price for the 2008

Notes The Company has experienced increases in the price of its

common stock during fiscal year 2011 If the average price of the

Companys common stock exceeds $28.29 per share it will also

include the effect of the additional potential shares that may be

issued related to the warrants Prior to conversion the purchased

options from the- convertible note hedge transaction are consid

ered to be anti dilutive

Refer to Footnote Debt for additional information

Adoption of New Accounting Pronouncement

Effective March 28 2009 the Company adopted ASC 470 20

Debt Debt with Conversion ond Dther Dptions and as required by

this new standard the Company retrospectively applied this change

in accounting to all prior periods for which the Company had

applicable outstanding convertible debt As result of the adop

tion non-cash interest expense increased by $10.3 million $6.4

million net of tax during fiscal 2009 See Footnote Summory of

Significont Accounting Policies and Footnote Debt for additional

information

Chonge in Long Term Incentive Compensotion Estimote

During fiscal year 2010 management raised its estimation of

expected achievement of performance targets related to long term

corporate incentive compensation plans Due to the change in

estimate the Company recognized additional long term incentive

based compensation expense of$ 1.4 million offset by decrease

of $4.4 million in accruals for long term incentive compensation

related to the departure of the Companys former Chairman and

Chief Executive Off cer There were no material changes in esti

mates during fiscal year 20 See Footnote Incentive ond Stock

Bosed Compensotion for additional information

Investment in othenoheolth Inc

During fiscal years 2010 and 2009 the Company sold its invest

ment in athenahealth Inc athena resulting in gain of
approx

imately $3.6 million $2.3 million net of tax and $0.4 million $0.3

million net of tax respectively Refer to Footnote Equity Invest

ment for additional information

Globol Sourcing Initiotive

The Companys global sourcing strategy involves purchasing prod

ucts directly from contracted manufacturers and is key initiative

forthe Company Milestones reached duringfiscal year20l 12010

and 2009 included expanding the Companys global sourcing

resources in Asia and Europe ii increasing the capacity of the

redistribution infrastructure in the United States iii expanding the

Select product offering and iv designing and implementing

security assessment program for global manufacturers in com

pliance with the U.S Customs Trade Partners Against Terrorism

Act As of April 2011 and April 2010 the Company had

approximately $46.0 million and $42.0 million of globally-sourced

product inventory respectively Management believes this initiative

will continue to positively impact the Companys results of oper

ations in future years

poge 30



Results of Operations

Fiscal Year Ended April 2011 Versus Fiscal Year Ended April 2010

Net Sales

For the Fiscal Year Ended Average

Daily
Net

April 12011 Apnl 22010
Total Sales

Average Daily Average Daily Percent Percent

dollars in millions
..

Amount Net Sales mount Net Sales Change Change

Physician Business $1425.0 $5.6 $1437.8 $5.6 0.9% 1.100

Elder Care Business 607.8 2.4 614.9 2.4 1.2 0.8

romorate Shared Sorvices 2.0 2.5 5.Q 14.2

Total Company $2034.8 $8.0 $2055.2 $8.0 .0% 1.0%

Physician Business

Management evaluates the Physician Business by product category

The following table summarizes the growth rate by product cat

egory period aver periad

For the Fiscal Year Ended
Percent

dollars in millions April 20i0 Apnl2 2010 Change

Branded

Selecttm 208 99.3 4.4

Pharmaceutical products 310.5 2.8 0.7

Equipment 112.1 118.8 5.6

Physician dispensing solutions 36.9

Other 5.9 3.7 53.8

Total $1425.0 $1437.8 0.9o

Selling days 253 258

Branded products are compnsed of disposables and lab diagnostics from

branded manufacturers

Select products are compnsed of the Companys brands of disposables

lab diagnostics and equipment

Net sales growth during the fiscal year ended April 2011

decreased as result of fiscal year 2010 related sales

ii five fewer selling days iii the state of the overall economy

resulting in decreased physician off ce visits offset by iv sales

from fiscal year 2011 acquisitions During the fiscal year ended

April 2011 the Company continued to make strategic acquis

itions in the Physician Business Net sales from fiscal year 2011

acquisitions were $41.9 million of which $36.9 million related to

acquisitions in the physician dispensing solutions product category

During the fiscal year ended April 2010 the Physician Business

increased sales in influenza test kits surgical masks medical gloves

hand sanitizer and other products related to the pandemic

recording approximately $52.5 million in additional sales across the

Branded and Select product lines

Select product sales increased 4.4% due to the Companys continued

focus on promoting its globally sourced products which resulted in

new customer sales as well as customer conversions from other

manufacturer branded products to Select brand products

Equipment sales decreased as result of general economic con

ditions and lower availability
of credit for physician practices

For the iscal Year Ended Percent

dollars in millions April 12011 pril 22010 Change

Nuraing home and assisted living

facilities $352.9 $372.5 5.3%

Hospice and home health care

agencies 191.4 183.9 4.1

Billing services 12.0 13.2 9.6

Other 51.5 45.3 137

Total $607.8 $614.9

Selling days 253 258

Net sales during the fiscal year ended April 2011 compared to

the prior year
decreased approximately $7 million resulting from

fewer
selling days Net sales in the nursing home and assisted

living customer segment was also negatively impacted by the loss

of few large regional nursing home customers offset by con

tinued growth in independent nursing homes and assisted
living

facilities

Net sales growth in the hospice and home health care customer

segments reflected the continued successful execution of strat

egies to diversify its customer base through expansion in the

home health care market and other non-facility based care as well

as net sales of approximately $9.3 million attributed to an acquis

ition made during fiscal year 2010 offset by five fewer selling days

during fiscal year 2011 The Companys net sales in
billing

services

were negatively impacted by decreased Medicare and Medicaid

reimbursements and accounts lost due to competitive bidding

Elder Care Business

Management evaluates the Elder Care business by customer cat

egory The following table summarizes the change in net sales by
751.5 803.2 6.4o customer segment period over period
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Across its Elder Care customer segments Select product sales

increased .5% during fiscal year 201 when compared to fis

cal year 2010 due to the Companys focus on promoting its glob

ally sourced products which resulted in additional sales to new and

existing customers

Gross Profit

Physicion Business

Gross profit dollars for the Physician Business increased $6.9 million

and gross margins increased 77 basis points during fiscal year 20

The increase in gross profit was due to margin improvement ini

tiatives higher growth in the Companys brand of products and

additional sales frbfn the Companys entry into the physician dis

pensing solutions market which have higher margins than the

Companys existing product offerings

Elder Core Business

Gross profit dollars in the Elder Care Business increased

$1 .4 million and gross margin increased 57 basis points during fiscal

year 2011 The increase in gross profit was impacted by the con

colidation of Pathway Healthcare Services consulting business

consolidated as variable interest entity and gross margin

improvement initiatives including increased sales of Select product

Generol ond Administrotive Expenses

ror the Fiscal Year Ended

April2011 April22010

%of oof

dollars
in

millions
Amount Net Sales Amount Net Sales

Physician Businessla $203.0 14.2% $198.2 3.8

Elder Care Businessst 119.5 19.7 118.1 19.2

Corporate Shared Services5 42.2 2.1 54.6 2.7

Total Company5 $364.7 17.9% $370.9 8.0c

General and administrative expenses as percentage of net sales are

calculated based on reportable segment net sales

General and administrative expenses as percentage of net sales are

calculated based on consolidated net sales

General and administrative expenses are impacted by

compensation and employee benefit costs ii cost to deliver

which represents all costs associated with the warehousing trans

portation and delivery of products to customers and iH shared

services overhead costs

Physicion Business

General and administrative expenses increased $4.8 million during

the fiscal year ended April 2011 when compared to the prior

year This increase was mainly attributable to an increase in allo

cated corporate expenses of $3.8 million ii an increase in

depreciation expense of $1 .0 million due to the addition of new

assets and iii an increase in general and administrative
expenses

of $6.9 million as result of the DSI and Linear acquisitions partially

offset by reduction in incentive compensation expense of $8.4

million based on reduced achievement of performance targets

Elder Core Business

General and administrative expenses increased $1.4 million during

the fiscal year ended April 2011 when compared to fiscal year

2010 This increase was mainly attributable to an increase in

allocated corporate expenses of $2.3 million and ii an increase in

insurance costs of $1 .0 million partially
offset by reduction in bad

debt
expense

of $1 .9 million

Corporote Shored Services

General and administrative expenses decreased $12.4 million dur

ing fiscal
year

20 due to decreased incentive and stock-based

compensation expense of $7.3 million related to payout estimates

based on performance ii reduction in separation expenses
of

$2.9 million related to the departure of the Companys former

Chairman and Chief Executive Offcer during fiscal year 2010

iii an increase in corporate expense allocations of $7 million

offset by iv an increase in business insurance of $1 .4 million and

an increase in payroll and payroll-related costs of $l.S million

related to general merit and benefit increases and reduction in

capitalized salaries related to internally developed software proj

ects

Selling Expenses

For the Fiscal Year Ended

April 12011 April 2010

%of oof

dollars in millions Amount Net Sales Amount Net Sales

Physician Businessa $116.7 8.2% $115.1 8.0%

Elder Care Businessa 20.8 3.4 20.7 3.4

Total Company5 $137.5 6.8% $1 35.8 6.6c

Selling expenses as percentage of net sales are calculated based on

divisional net sales

Selling expenses as percentage of net sales are calculated based on

Lonsuliddted net sales

Selling expenses are principally driven by commission expenses

which are generally paid to sales representatives based on gross

profit dollars and gross profit as percentage of net sales The

change in
selling expenses for the Physician Business and Elder

Care Business was consistent with the increases in
gross profit and

gross margin year over year

Port II Item
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Income from Operotions

For the Fiscal Year Ended

April 12011 April22010

%of oOf

dollars in millions Amount Net Sales Amount Net Sales

Physician Business $138.0 9.7% $1 37.3 9.5%

Elder Care Business 37.8 6.2 38.0 6.2

Corporate Shared Services 42.2 54.3

Total Company $133.6 6.6% $121.0 5.9%

Income from operations for each business segment changed due to

the factors discussed above Business simplification and LEAN strat

egies in conjunction with the successful integration of the Compa

nys strategic acquisitions are expected to continue to offset the

effects of the lower sales growth resulting in continued growth in

income from operations as percentage of revenues

Interest Expense

The Companys debt structure during fiscal year
2011 consisted of

variable rate borrowings under its revolving line of credit RLOC
agreement and its 2008 Notes The Company adopted new

accounting pronouncement during fiscal year 20 ASC 470-20

Debt Debt with Conversion ond Other Options and as required by

this new standard the Company retrospectively applied this change

in accounting to all prior periods for which the Company had

applicable outstanding convertible debt See Footnote 12 Debt for

additional information

The following table summarizes the various components of total

interest expense and interest rates applicable to the borrowings

outstanding under the RLOC

For the Fisca Year Ended

dollars in millions April 12011 April 22010 Decrease

Components of interest expense

Interest on borrowings

Debt issuance costs

Less Capitalized interest

16.7

0.9

0.5

17.4

1.1

1.2

0.7

2.0

0.7

Total interest expense 17.1 17.3 0.2

Weighted average interest rate

RLOCa

Average daily borrowings under

the RLOC

2.37%

3.8

4.02%

44.2 40.4

Weighted average interest rate excludes debt issuance costs and unused

line fees

During fiscal year 2008 the Company entered into two year

$50.0 million variable to-fixed interest rate swap Swap
Agreement which effectively fixed the interest rate on all or

portion of the borrowings under the RLCC at 3.95% consisting of

fixed interest rate of 2.70% and credit spread of .25% for

notional amount of $50.0 million The Swap Agreeirieiit expired on

February 19 2010

During fiscal year 2010 as required by the Swap Agreement the

Company maintained minimum balance of $50.0 million drawn

on the RLOC After expiration the balance on the RLOC was paid

down resulting in the average daily balance decreasing to $3.8 mil

lion for the year
ended April 2011

Other Income

For the Fiscal Year Ended
Percent

dollars in millions April 12011 Apnl 22010 Decrease Change

Total Company $2.5 $6 $3.6 58.7o

The Company sold its investment in athena during fiscal year 2010

recognizing gain of $3.6 million Excluding the gains on the sale of

athena stock Other income during fiscal year 20 remained con

sistent with prior year and is mainly attributable to customer

finance charges See Footnote Equity Investment for further

information relating the Companys investment in athena

Provision for Income Toxes

For the Fiscal Year Ended

April 12011 April 22010

Effective Effective

dollars in millions
Amount Rate Amount Rate

Total Company $44.6 37.4% $40.8 37.0c

The increase in the provision for income taxes year over year is

attributable to an increase in
pre tax income The increase in the

effective rate relates to decrease in the proportion of income

earned by the Companys non-U.S subsidiaries which are generally

subject to tax at rates lower than the United States
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Resu/ts of Operations

Fiscal Year Ended April 2010 Versus Fiscal Year Ended March 27 2009

Net Sales

For the Fiscal Year Ended Average

Daily Net
April 2010 March 27 2009

Total Sales

Average Daily Average Daily
Percent Percent

dollars in millions Amount Net Sales Amount Net Sales Change Change

Physician Business $1437.8 $5.6 $1357.4 $5.4 5.900 3.9%

Elder Care Business 614.9 2.4 594.5 2.3 3.4 1.4

Corporate Shared Services 2.5 0.8 201.4 NA

$2055.2 $8.0 $1952.7 $7.7 5.2% 3.2%

Physician Business

Management evaluates the Physician Business by product category

The following table summarizes the growth rate by product cat

egory period aver period

the Fiscal Year Ended
Percent

dollars in millions April 22010 March27 2009 Change

Brandeda 803.2 736.6 9.0%

Selectb 199.3 6B.3 18.4

Pharmaceutical products 312.8 307.6 1.7

Equipment 118.8 137.4 13.6

Other 3.7 7.5 48.6

Total $1437.8 $1357.4 5.9%

Selling days 258

Branded products are compnsed of disposables and lab diagnostics from

branded manufacturers

Select products are compnsed of the Companys brands of disposables

and lab diagnostics

Net sales growth dunng the tiscal year ended April 2010 was

positively influenced by the effects from the pandemic five

additional selling days during fiscal year 2010 and results from the

Reach initiative During the fiscal
year ended April 20 10 the

Physician Business increased sales in influenza test kits surgical

masks medical gloves hand sanitizer and other products related

to the pandemic recording approximately $52.5 million in

additional sales across the Branded and Select product lines The

Company estimated the earnings per share impact related to the

pandemic for the fiscal year ended April 2010 to be

approximately $0.08 per diluted share but did not anticipate the

increased level of sales of these products to continue into future

periods The Company estimated the earnings per share impact

related to the five additional
selling days to be approximately

$0.02 per diluted share

Select product sales increased 8.4% due to the Companys

increased sales from the pandemic additional
selling days

and focus on promoting its globally sourced products which

resulted in new customer sales as well as customer conversions

from other manufacturer branded products to Select brand prod

ucts

Equipment sales decreased due to the current economic con

ditions and lenders tightened credit policies which negatively

impacted customers
ability

to obtain equipment financing

Elder Care Business

Management evaluates the Elder Care business by customer cat

egory Net sales were impacted by the utilization of innovative

Elder Care customer specific solution programs including

Momentum Rewards customer incentive program introduced

during fiscal year 2009

The following table summarizes the change in net sales by

customer segment period over period

pr the Fiscal Year Ended
P0 LOi it

dollars in millions April 22010 March 27 2009 Change

Nursing home and assisted
living

facilities $372.5 $363.7 2.4c

Hospice and home health care

agencies 183.9 166.1 10.7

Billing
services 13.2 13.7 3.5

Other 45.3 51.0 11.3

Total $614.9 $594.5 3.400

Selling days 258 253

Net sales during the year ended April 2010 compared to the

prior year increased approximately $20.4 million as sales
grew

in

the two largest customer segments Net sales in the nursing home

and assisted living customer segment was positively impacted by

five additional
selling days during fiscal year 2010 innovative

customer-specific solution
programs

and focus on regional and

independent customer segments

Total Company

253
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Net sales growth in the hospice and home health care rijstomer

segments reflected the continued successful execution of strategies

to diversifr its customer base through expansion in the home

health care market and other non facility based care as well as net

sales of approximately $4.4 million attributed to an acquisition

made during fiscal year 2010 and five additional selling days during

fiscal year 2010 The Companys net sales in
billing

services were

negatively impacted by decreased Medicare and Medicaid

reimbursements

Across its Elder Care customer segments Select product sales

increased 9.8% during fiscal year 20 10 when compared to

fiscal year 2009 due to the Companys focus on promoting its

globally sourced prodocts which resulted in additional sales to new

and existing customers

Gross Profit

Physician Bus/ness

Gross profit dollars for the Physician Business increased

$37.9 million and gross margins increased 93 basis points during

fiscal year 2010 The increase in gross profit was due to margin

improvement initiatives including the growth in Branded and Select

product sales discussed above as well as shift to genedc pharma

ceutical sales which have higher margins than branded pharmaceut

icals in conjunction with the Companys continued focus on its

product sourcing strategies

Elder Core Business

Gross profit dollars in the Elder Care Business increased

$7.8 million year over year and were impacted by the increase in

sales across the Business largest customer segments Gross margin

percentages increased 32 basis points due to effective inventory

cost and gross margin improvement initiatives as well as increased

sales of Select product

General and Administrative Expenses

For the Fiscal Year Ended

April 22010 March 27 2009

%of oot

dollam in millions Amount Net Sales Amount Net Sales

Physician Businessa $198.2 13.8% $195.3 14.4%

Elder Care Businessa 118.1 19.2 118.1 19.9

Lorporate Shared Services5i 54.6 2.1 39.1 2.0

Total Companyb $370.9 18.0% $352.5 100

General and administrative expenses are impacted by

compensation and employee benefit costs ii cost to deliver

which represents all costs associated with the warehousing trans

portation and delivery of products to customers and iii shared

services overhead costs

Physician Business

General and administrative expenses increased $2.9 million but

decreased 60 basis points as percentage of net sales over the

prior year due to leveraging of the Companys fixed costs over

increased sales volume The increase in expenses was attdbutable

to increased incentive compensation expense of $1.6 million

related to stronger operating performance Partially offsetting this

increase was decreased National Meeting expense
of $2.0 mil

lion and ii decreased overhead expenses of $2.0 million as

result of cost saving initiatives

Elder Core Business

General and administrative expenses were flat year over year but

decreased 65 basis points as percentage of net sales over the

prior year due to results of cost savings initiatives and leveraging of

the Companys fixed cost infrastructure over increased sales vol

ume

Corporate Shored Services

General and administrative expenses increased $15.5 million dudng

the fiscal year 20 due to increased long-term incentive and

stock based compensation expense of $1 .4 million related to

payout estimates based on performance $2.9 million in separa

tion expenses related to the departure of the Companys former

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer dudng fiscal year 2010

iii increased annual incentive based compensation expense of

$3.2 million based on Company performance iv $1 .5 million

increase in payroll related costs due to an increase in full time

employees and merit increases and an increase in depreciation

expense of $1 .4 million due to increased investments in IT infra

structure dudng the fiscal year Partially offsetting this increase was

$4.4 million decrease in stock-based compensation expense and

$1 .3 million decrease in annual cash based incentive compensa

tion related to the departure of the Companys former Chairman

and Chief Executive Officer

Selling Expenses

For the Fiscal Year Ended

April 22010 March 27 2009

%of oot

dollam in millions
Amount Net Sales Amount Net Sales

Physician Businessa $115.1 8.0% $107.7 7.900

Elder Care Businessa 20.7 3.4 20.8 3.5

Total Companyb $135.8 6.6% $1 28.5 6.6c

Geneml and administmtive expenses as percentage ot net sales are

calculated based on reportable segment net sales

Geneml and administmtive expenses as percentage of net sales are

calculated based on consolidated net sales
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Selling expenses as percentage of net sales are calculated based on

divisional net sales

Selling expenses as percentage of net sales are calculated based on

consolidated net sales

Selling expenses are principally driven by commission expenses

which are generally paid to sales representatives based on gross

profit dollars and
gross profit as percentage of net sales The

change in selling expenses for the Physician Business and Elder

Care Business was consistent with net sales year over year

Income from Operotions

April

For the Fiscal

2010

Yea nded

March 2009

dollars in millions Amount
%of

Net Sales Amount
oof

Net Sales

Physician Business

Elder Care Business

$137.3

38.0

9.5%

6.2

$109.8

30

8.1%

Corporate Shared Services 54.3 39.0

Total Company 121.0 S.9 $100.9 5.2%

Income from operations for each business segment changed due to

the factors discussed above Business simplification and LEAN strat

egies are expected to continue to offset the effects of the lower

sales growth resulting in continued growth in income from oper

ations

Interest Expense

The Companys debt structure during fiscal
year 2010 consisted of

variable rate borrowings under its revolving line of credit RLOC
agreement and its 2008 Notes The Company adopted new

accounting pronouncement during fiscal year 20 10 ASC 470 20

Debt Debt with Conversion ond DiTher Dptions and as required by

this new standard the Company retrospectively applied this change

in accounting to all prior periods for which the Company had

applicable outstanding convertible debt See Footnote Debt for

additional information

The follbwing table summarizes the various components of total

interest expense and interest rates applicable to the borrowings

outstanding under the RLOC

dollars in millions

For the Focal .Y Ended

April 22010 March 27 2009

Increase

Decrease

Components of interest expense

Interest on borrowings

Debt issuance costs

Less Capitalized interest

17.4

1.1

1.2

21.5

1.6

0.9

$4
0.5

0.3

Total interest expense 17.3 22.2 $4.9

Weighted average interest rate

RLOCIaI 4.02% 4.00c

Average daily borrowings under

the RLDC 44.2 51.1 $6.9

Weighted average interest rate excludes debt issuance costs and unused

line fees

Interest expense decreased during fiscal year ended April 201

This was due to having both the 2004 Notes and 2008 Notes

outstanding during fiscal year 2009 while only the 2008 Notes

were outstanding during fiscal
year

2010

On February 14 2008 the Company entered into two-year

$50.0 million variable-to fixed interest rate swap effective Febru

ary 2008 which expired February 19 2010 Swap

Agreement The Swap Agreement effectively fixed the interest

rate on all or portion
of the borrowings under the RLOC at

3.95% consisting of fixed interest rate of 2.70% and credit

spread of .25% for notional amount of $50.0 million The Swap

Agreement expired in February 201

In support of the Swap Agreement before expiration the Com

pany maintained minimum balance of $50.0 million drawn on the

RLOC After expiration the balance on the RLOC was paid down

resulting in the average daily balance decreasing to $44.2 million for

the year ended April 2010

Dther Income

For

the Fiscal Year Ended
Percent

dollars in millions April 2010 March 27 2009 Increase Change

Total Company $6.1 $2.6 $3.5 29.6c

The Company sold its investment in athena during fiscal year 2010

and 2009 recognizing gain of $3.6 million and $0.4 million

respectively Excluding the gains on the sale of athena stock Dther

income during fiscal year 2010 remained consistent with prior year

and is mainly attributable to customer finance charges See Foot

note Equity Investment for further information relating the

Companys investment in athena

Provision for Income Toxes

For the Fiscal Yaar Ended

April 22010 March 27 2009

Effective Effective

dollars in millions Amount Rate Amount Rate

Total Company $40.8 37.0% $32.2 38.5c

The effective rate was favorably impacted by decrease in

non-deductible meal and entertainment expenses an adjustment to

the reserve for uncertain tax positions and increased earnings from

non U.S global sourcing subsidiaries which are subject to tax at

rates lower than the U.S
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Liquidity and Capital Resaurces

Liquidity and Capital Resaurces Highlights

Cash flows from operations are impacted by segment profitability

and changes in operating working capital Management monitors

operating working capital through the following metrics

Fiscal Year Ended

20 2010 2009

Days Sales Outstanding9

Physician Business 38.7 3B.3 40.3

Elder Care Business 47.3 4B.4 49.3

Days On Handb
Physician Business 54.8 53.6 55.1

Elder Care Business 62.7 54.4 1.9

Days in Accounts Payablec

Physician Business 37.5 37.3 39.9

Elder Care Business 21.3 22.6 24

Cash Conversion Daysld

Physician Business 56.0 54.6 55.5

Elder Care Business 88.7 B0.2 77.2

Inventory Tumoverle

Physician Business 6.6 6.7 6.5

Elder Care Business 5.7 6.6 6.9

Retum on Commifted CapitalW

Total Company

Days sales outstanding DSO is average accounts receivable divided by

average daily net sales Average accounts receivable is the sum of accounts

receivable net of the allowance for doubtful accounts at the beginning and

end of the most recent four quarters divided by five Average daily net

sales are net sales for the most recent four quarters divided by 360

Days on hand DDH is average inventory divided by average daily cost

of goods sold COGS Average inventory is the sum of inventory at the

beginning and end of the most recent four quarters divided by five

Average daily
COGS is COGS for the most recent four quarters divided

by ou
Days in accounts payable DIP is average accounts payable divided by

average daily
COGS Average accounts payable is the sum of accounts

payable at the beginning and end of the most recent five quarters divided

by five

Cash conversion days is the sum of DSO and DOH less DIP

Inventory tumover is 360 divided by DOH
Retum on committed capital ROCC is defined as retum divided by

average committed
capital

Retum is calculated as net income less

provision
for income taxes ii amortization and si interest expense

Committed capital is calculated as total assets less cash ii goodwill

and intangibles and Ui liabilities excluding current and long tenn debt

In addition to the cash flow metrics described above the Company

monitors and manages other components of liquidity including the

following

Asef

dollars in thousands April 2011 April 2010

Capital Structure

Senior convertible notes 195643 B7 121

Other debt 780 1701

Cash and cash equivalents 29348 5275

Net debt 167075 136071

Total equity 446526 408014

Total capital 613601 544OBS

Operating Working Capital

Accounts receivable net 247229 227BBB

Inventones 213211 218911

Accounts payable 128057 123970

332383 322B29

Cash Flaws fram Operating Activities

The primary components of net cash provided by operating activ

ities consist of net income adjusted to reflect the effect of non cash

expenses and changes in operating working capital Net cash pro
35.5% 33.5% 27.6%

vided by operating activities during fiscal years 2011 2010 and

2009 was impacted by increased overall operating profit

noncash compensation expense
of $10.2 million $1 2.B million

and $6.7 million respectively Ui amoctization of debt discount

and issuance costs of $9.4 million $8.9 million and $12.6 million

respectively with the decrease due to the 2004 and 2008 Notes

outstanding during fiscal
year 2009 while only one convectible note

was outstanding during fiscal years 2011 and 2010 and

iv operational working capital needs of approximately

$3.1 million $14.6 million and $21.7 million respectively to sup

pact sales growth and long-term strategies The Companys net

operating working capital levels were impacted in fiscal years 2011

2010 and 2009 by its sourcing initiatives including global sourcing

which generally require longer supply chain lead times and different

payment terms Management expects this impact to continue as

global sourcing activities increase in future years
The Company

continues to focus on effocts to increase cash collections from

customers improve inventory turns without impacting customer

service levels and manage the cash disbursements process

Cash flown from operating artivitiec during fisral years
20 20

and 2009 reflect the Companys utilization of $0.9 million tax

effected $1.1 million tax effected and $1.2 million tax effected

respectively of net operating loss NOL carryforwards to offset

cash payments due for Federal and state tax liabilities based on

estimated taxable income Cash flows from operating activities

were also impacted by cash payments made to and refunds

received from Pederal and state taxing authorities During fiscal
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years 2011 2010 and 2009 the Company paid taxes net of

refunds of approximately $36.4 million $42.6 million and

$27.0 million respectively which related to Federal and state tax

payments

As of April 2010 the Company had deferred income tax

liability
of $17.3 million tax effected related to interest deductions

taken for tax purposes on its 2004 Notes The
liability

will be
fully

deferred for years and paid ratably from fiscal
year

20 14 to fiscal

year 20 in accordance with the American Recovery and

Reinvestment Act of 2009

During
ficral

year 3010 the IRS rnmpleted an examination of the

Companys Federal income tax return for the fiscal years ended

March 28 2008 March 30 2007 and March 2006 As result

the Company agreed to minor adjustments to its taxable income

that did not have material impact on the Companys financial

condition or results of operations

Cosh Flows from Investing Activities

Payments under business combination agreements net of cash

acquired were $65.9 million $14.8 million and $3.7 million during

fiscal years 20 201 and 2009 respectively During fiscal years

2010 and 2009 the Company made acquisitions not deemed sig

nificant for individual disclosure Refer to Footnote Purchose Busi

ness Combinotions for further discussion The Company expects to

continue to make strategic business acquisitions in future periods to

grow market share and leverage its existing distribution capabilities

which will impact its cash flows from investing activities

During fiscal
years

2010 and 2009 the Company sold its invest

ment in athenahealth Inc athena resulting in gain of
approx

imately $3.6 million $2.3 million net of tax and $0.4 million $0.3

million net of tax respectively recorded in Other income net on

the Cunsulidoted Stotement of Operotions Cash proceeds of$ 10.7

million and $22.1 million were received in fiscal years 2010 and

2009 respectively Refer to Footnote Equity Investment for addi

tional discussion

Capital expenditures totaled $1 8.2 million $25.9 million and $27.3

million during fiscal years 2011 2010 and 2009 respectively of

which approximately $12.2 million $20.2 million and $17.5 million

respectively related to development and enhancement of the

Companys ERR system contracts and rebates system warehouse

management system electronic commerce platforms and supply

chain integration Capital expenditures related to distribution cen

ter expansions and enhancements were approximately $1 .4 million

$0.9 million and $5.5 million during fiscal years 2011 2010 and

2009 respectively Capital expenditures are estimated to be

approximately $29.2 million during fiscal year 201 Such

expenditures are expected to be funded by cash flow from oper

ations or by borrowings under the Companys revolving line of

credit facility

Cosh Flows from Finoncing Activities

During fiscal years 2011 2010 and 2009 the Company

repurchased approximately $54.8 million $57.2 million and $52.8

million of the Companys common stock respectively The share

repurchases represented approximately 2.7 million 2.8 million and

3.4 million shares respectively As of April 12011 approximately

3.4 million common shares were available for repurchase under

authorized share repurchase programs Refer to Footnote 14 Equi

ty for additional discussion

The Company recognized excess tax benefits from share-based

compensation arrangements ot $3.2 million $2.5 million and $1 .7

million during fiscal
years

20 2010 and 2009 respectively The

increase in recognized excess tax benefits defined as the amount

by which the actual tax deduction exceeds recognized compensa

tion expense is due to increases in the Companys stock price and

timing of stock option exercises

During fiscal year 2008 the Company borrowed $70.0 million on

its revolving line of credit of which $20.0 million was repaid during

fiscal year 2009 and $50.0 million during fiscal year 2010 These

borrowings were used to fund portion of the Companys share

repurchases debt repurchase acquisition activities investment

strategies and operating activities during the periods

The Company issued $230.0 million of 3.125% senior convertible

notes 2008 Notes during fiscal year 2009 In conjunction with

the offering the Company received $25.4 million from the issuance

of warrants paid $54.1 million forthe purchase ofa convertible

note hedge and paid debt issuance costs of approximately $5.1

million

During fiscal year 2009 the holders of $149.98 million in 2004

Notec exerriced their rnntractual rights to require the Company to

repurchase their notes for cash repurchase price equal to 100%

of the principal face value of the notes to be repurchased plus

accrued and unpaid interest The Company used approximately

$101.7 million in available cash on hand from the issuance of the

2008 Notes and $50.0 million from the revolving line of credit to

fund the repurchase of such notes and accrued interest on

March 2009 for approximately IS .7 million

Copitol Resources

The Company closely monitors the capital and credit markets

While market conditions have improved volatility
remains that may

restrict access to capital and the costs associated with issuing or

refinancing may increase relative to the Companys current posi

tion While the Company believes it is well positioned there can

be no guarantee the recent disruptions in the overall economy and

the financial markets will not adversely impact the business and

results of operations
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The Company finances its business through cash generated from

operations the proceeds from the 2008 Notes offering and the

$200.0 million revolving line of credit The
ability

to generate suffi

cient cash flows from operations is dependent on the continued

demand for the Companys products and services and its access to

those products and services from suppliers The Companys capital

structure provides the financial resources to support the companys

core business strategies of customer service and revenue growth

The revolving line of credit which is an asset based agreement is

collateralized by the Companys accounts receivable and inventory

The Companys long-term priorities for use of its capital are

internal growth acquisitions and the repurchase of its Lommun

stock

As the Companys business grows its cash and working capital

requirements are expected to increase The Company expects the

overall growth in the business will be funded through combina

tion of cash flows from operating activities borrowings under the

revolving line of credit capital markets and/or other financing

arrangements

The Company has not provided for U.S income taxes on accumu

lated and undistributed earnings attributable to foreign operations

as the Lompany intends to permanently reinvest these undis

tributed earnings These earnings relate to ongoing operations and

were $10547 and $6429 as of April 2011 and April 2010

respectively

As of April 2011 the Company has not entered into any

material working capital commitments that require funding other

than the items discussed below and the obligations included in the

future minimum obligation table

Based on prevailing market conditions liquidity requirements con

tractual restrictions and other factors the Company may seek to

retire portion of its outstanding equity through cash purchases

and/or reduce its debt The Company may also seek to issue addi

tional equity or debt to meet its future
liquidity requirements Such

transactions may occur in the open market privately negotiated

transactions or otherwise The amounts involved could be materi

al

2008 Notes

In August 2008 the Company issued $230.0 million principal

amount of 25% senior convertible notes which mature on

August 2014 Interest on the nutes is payable semiannually in

arrears on February and August of each year The notes will be

convertible into cash up to the principal amount of the notes and

shares of the Companys common stock for any conversion value

in excess of the principal amount under the following circum

stances if the Company has called the notes for redemption

ii in the event of Fundamental Change as defined in the

indenture such as merger acquisition or liquidation hi on or

after May 2014 and prior to the close of business on the second

scheduled trading day immediately preceding August 2014

iv prior to May 2014 during the five consecutive business day

period following any five consecutive trading day period in which

the trading price for note for each day of that trading period is

less than 98% of the closing sale price of the Companys common

stock on such corresponding trading day multiplied by the appli

cable conversion rate prior to May 2014 during any calendar

quarter after September 30 2008 in which the closing sale price of

the Companys common stock for at least 20 of the 30 consecutive

trading days ending the day prior to such quarter is greater than

130% of the appliLable conversion price of $21.22 per
share

Contingent Conversion Trigger or vi upon specified corpo

rate events as discussed in the indenture governing the notes

note holder may not exercise his/her conversion right with

respect to all or any portion of note if such conversion would

cause the note holder to become beneficial owner of more than

9.9c of the Companys outstanding voting stock The initial con

version rate is 47 342 shares of common stock per each $1 in

thousands principal amount of notes and is equivalent to an initial

conversion price of $21.22 per share The conversion rate is sub

ject to adjustment if certain events occur such as stock dividends

or other distributions of cash securities indebtedness or assets

stock
splits

and combinations issuances of rights or warrants ten

der offers or repurchases

As of April 2011 the fair value of the senior convertible notes

was approximately $323.8 million Refer to Footnote 12 Debt for

detailed discussion regarding the senior convertible notes

The
ability

of note holders to convert is assessed on quarterly

basis and is dependent on the trading price of the Companys stock

during the last 30 trading days of each quarter The Contingent

Conversion Trigger was not met during the three months ended

April 2011 therefore the notes may not be converted during

the Companys first quarter of fiscal year 201

The Company used portion of the net proceeds of the offering

to repurchase approximately $35.0 million of its common stock in

privately negotiated transactions with institutional investors con

currently with this offering Refer to Footnote 14 Equity for addi

tional information The Company also used $101 .7 million of the

net proceeds during fiscal
year 2009 when holders of the 2004

Notes required the Company to redeem $149.98 million of the

outstanding notes Remaining proceeds have been used for general

corporate purposes

Convert/b/e Note Hedge Tronsoct/ons

In connection with the offering of the 2008 Notes the Company

also entered into convertible note hedge transactions with respect

to its common stock the purchased options with major
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financial institution the counterparty The Company paid an

aggregate amount of $54.1 million to the counterparty for the

purchased options The purchased options cover subject to anti

dilution adjustments substantially identical to those in the notes

approximately 10.8 million shares of common stock at strike price

that corresponds to the initial conversion price of the notes also

subject to adjustment and are exercisable at each conversion date

of the notes The purchased options will expire upon
the earlier of

the last day the notes remain outstanding or ii the second

scheduled trading day immediately preceding the maturity date of

the notes

The purchased options are intended to reduce the potential dilu

tion upon conversion of the notes in the event that the market

value per share of the common stock as measured under the

notes at the time of exercise is greater than the conversion price

of the notes

The purchased options are separate transactions entered into by

the Company with the counterparty and are not part of the terms

of the notes Holders of the notes will not have any dghts with

respect to the purchased options

Wontnt Tronsoctions

The Company also entered into warrant transactions the

warrants whereby the Company sold to the counterparty war

rants in an aggregate amount of $25.4 million to acquire subject to

anti dilution adjustments up to 10.8 million shares of common
stock at strike price of $28.29 per share of common stock also

subject to adjustment The warrants will expire after the purchased

options in approximately ratable portions on series of expiration

dates commencing on November 2014

The warrants are separate transactions entered into by the Com

pany with the counterparties and are not part of the terms of the

notes Holders of the notes do not have any rights with respect to

the warrants

The purchased options will generally have the effect of increasing

the conversion price of the 2008 Notes to approximately $28.29

per share representing 68.5% premium based on the closing sale

price of the Companys common stock of$ 16.79 per share on

August 2008

Impoct on Diluted Weighted Averoge Shores

In accordance with ASC 260 Eomings Per Shore and the Compa

nys stated policy of settling the principal amount in cash the

Company was required to include shares underlying the 2008

Notes in its diluted weighted average shares outstanding since the

average stock price per share for the period exceeded $2 .22 the

conversion price for the senior convertible notes Only the num

ber of shares that would be issuable under the treasury stock

method of accounting for share dilution was included which was

based upon the amount by which the average stock price

exceeded the conversion price The Company has experienced

increases in the price of its common stock during fiscal year 201 If

the average stock price of the Companys common stock exceeds

$28.29 per share it will also include the effect of the additional

potential shares that may be issued related to the warrants which

may negatively impact the Companys diluted weighted average

shares and diluted earnings per share

The purchased options are not included in the calculation of

diluted eamings per share prior to the conversion of the 2008

Notes as their effect is considered anti dilutive As of April 2011

the purchased options were in the money and would have been

convertible into approximately million shares of the Companys

common stock The exercise of the purchased options is restricted

to each conversion date of the 2008 Notes

Revolving Line of Credit

The Company had no outstanding borrowings under the revolving

line of credit as of April 2011 The Credit Agreement permits

maximum borrowings of up to $200.0 million which may be

increased to $250.0 million After reducing availability
for out

standing borrowings and letter of credit commitments the Com

pany has sufficient assets based on eligible accounts receivable and

inventory to borrow $200.0 million excluding the additional

increase of $50 million under the revolving line of credit as of

April 2011 Refer to Footnote Debt for detailed discussion

regarding the revolving line of credit The average daily interest

rate excluding debt issuance costs and unused line fees for the

fiscal
years

ended April 2011 April 2010 and March 27 2009

was 2.37% 4.02% and 4.00% respectively

Debt Roting

The Companys debt is rated by nationally recognized rating

agency
Standard and Poors Ratings Services SP Companies

that have assigned ratings at the top end of the
range have in the

opinion of the rating agency the strongest capacity for repayment

of debt or payment of claims while companies at the bottom end

of the range have the weakest capability

During fiscal year 2010 SP upgraded the credit rating from 88
to 88 and issued an outlook of stable The Company also had

issue ratings for its convertible debt

Agency ratings are subject to change and there can be no assur

ance that ratings agency will continue to rate the Company or its

debt and/or maintain its current ratings Management cannot pre

dict the effect that change in debt ratings will have on the

Companys liquidity
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Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

The Companys most significant off-balance sheet financing

arrangements as of April 201 are non cancelable operating

lease agreements for warehouse space and equipment rentals and

outstanding letters of credit As of April 12011 future minimum

obligations under operating lease agreements are $73.1 million

Future Cantractual Obligatians

The Company had no open letters of credit outstanding as of

April 2011 The Company does not participate in any

off-balance sheet arrangements involving unconsolidated sub

sidiaries that provide financing or potentially expose the Company

to unrecorded financial obligations

In the non-nal course of business the Company enters into obligations and commitments that require future contractual payments The

following table presents in aggregate scheduled payments under contractual obligations for the Physician Business the Elder Care Business

and Corporate Shared Services

Contractual Obligation Payment Due By Fiscal Years

.i.n.bPsands
2012 2013 2014 2015 16 Thereafter Total

Seniar canvertible nates4A 7188 7188 7188 $233594 $255158

Operating lease obligationsC 25834 19232 13587 7058 3542 3852 73105

Purchase commitments@l 1893 528 376 2797

Outstanding purchase pricee 3087 6352 19439

Capital lease obligationsa 761 19 780

Revolving line of creditt 500 250 750

Totals $49263 $33569 $21 IS $240652 $3542 $3852 $352029

Amuunts inLlude interest eApense

Under the terms otthe convertible note agreement the notes are convertible during any calendar quarter in which the
closing

sale
price

of the Companys

common stock for certain number of days is greater than $27.59 per share The 2008 Notes would be classified as Current Liability dunng any such quarter

The 2008 Notes are discussed further in Footnote 12 Debt

Amounts represent contractual
obligations

for operating leases of the Company as of
April

201 Currently it is managements intent to either renegotiate

existing leases or execute new leases upon the
expiration date of such agreements

If supply agreement for Select products between vendor and the
Physician Business or the Elder Care Business were to be terminated then the Company

may be required to purchase from the vendor all remaining finished and unfinished products and product materials held by the vendor As of April 2011 the

Company had no material obligation to purchase remaining products or materials due to termination of supply agreement with vendor who supplies Select

products to the Company

Amounts represent estimated additional consideration including interest to be
paid

to the sellers of
previously acquired businesses net of any amounts payable

to the Company for indemnity claims that arise under the purchase agreement

Amounts represent the unused line fee on the
revolving

line of credit which expires on September 30 2012

As of April 2011 the Company had gross unrecognized tax benefits of$ 1.5 million This amount is excluded from the table above as the Company cannot

reasonably estimate the period of cash settlement with the
respective taxing authorities

Critical Accaunting estimates

In preparing the consolidated financial statements in conformity

with U.S generally accepted accounting principles management is

required to make certain estimates judgments and assumptions

that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities including

the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the

financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and

expenses during the periods presented The Company penodically

evaluates the accounting policies and estimates it uses to prepare

its financial statements which are then reviewed by the Compa

nys audit committee Managements estimates are based on

historical experience and other assumptions considered reason

able with the relevant facts and circumstances Based on the

uncertainty inherent in such estimates actual results may differ

The critical accounting estimates are those estimates that require

the Companys management to make assumptions about matters

that are highly uncertain at the time the estimate is made and

could have material impact on the Companys results due to

changes in the estimates or the use of different estimates that

could reasonably have been used Additionally the Company

includes those accounting estimates whose initial application had

material impact on the Companys financial presentation unless

the application resulted solely from the issuance of new account

ing literature The discussion below applies to each of the

Companys reportable segments Physician Business Elder Care

Business and Corporate Shared Services unless otherwise noted
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Allowance
for Doubtful Accounts

The Company maintains allowances for doubtful accounts for esti

mated losses on trade receivables resulting from the
inability

to

collect outstanding amounts due from its customers The allow

ances include estimates of specific amounts for those accounts that

are likely
to be uncolledible such as bankruptcies and general

allowances for those accounts that management currently believes

to be collectible but may later become uncollectible Management

believes the estimates used in determining the allowance for

doubtful accounts are critical accounting estimates because changes

in credit worthiness and economic conditions including bank

ruptcies have had material impact on operations in previous fiscal

years and could have an impact on the Companys results from

operations in the near future

The estimates used to determine the allowances for doubtful

accounts are based on historical collection experience current

economic trends credit worthiness of customers and changes in

customer payment terms The percentage of each aging category

that is reserved is determined by analyzing historical write-offs and

currenttrends in the credit quality of the customer base Adjust

ments to credit limits and allowances for bad debts are made

based upon payment history arid the oustorners current Li edit

worthiness If the financial condition of the Companys customers

were to deteriorate or improve allowances may be adjusted

impacting general and administrative expenses and the accounts

receivable balance

Physician Business

During fiscal years 200B through 2010 the Physician Business allow

ance for doubtful accounts was reduced by customer deductions

and write offs ranging from $1.6 million to $2.3 million and was

increased by additional provisions ranging from $1 .5 million to $2.3

million During fiscal
year 20ll the Physician Business allowance

for doubtful accounts was reduced by $1.3 million for customer

deductions and write offs and was increased by additional provi

sions of $1 .B million remaining relatively consistent with prior

years During fiscal years 200B through 20 the Companys

allowance for doubtful accounts has represented between .7%

and 2.0% of the Physician Business trade receivable balance If

management were to assume its reserve percentages as of April

2011 were based on the fiscal year 200B through 2010 historic

ranges noted above the allowance for doubtful accounts as of

April 2011 would
range between $3.0 million and $3.6 million

As ofApril 12011 the allowance fordoubtful accounts forthis

business segment was $2.9 million

Elder Care Business

During fiscal years 200B through 2010 the Elder Business allow

ance for doubtful accounts was reduced by customer deductions

and write-offs ranging from $1.7 million to $3.B million and was

increased by additional provisions ranging from $1 .5 million to

$2.1 million During fiscal year 2011 the Elder Business allowance

for doubtful accounts was reduced by $0.9 million for customer

deductions and write offs while incurring slight reduction in the

provision During fiscal years 200B through 2010 the Companys

allowance for doubtful accounts represented between 4.5% and

4.7% of the Elder Care Business trade receivable balance If man

agement were to assume its reserve percentages as of April

201 were based on the fiscal year 200B through 2010 historic

ranges noted above the allowance for doubtful accounts as of

April 2011 would range between $3.7 million and $3.B million

As uf April 2011 the allowance for doubtful acLounts for this

business segment was $2.9 million

Although the Company believes its judgments estimates and/or

assumptions related to allowances for doubtful accounts are

reasonable making material changes to such judgments estimates

and/or assumptions and changes in customers credit worthiness

could materially affect the Companys financial results

Inventories

In orderto state inventories medical products medical equipment

and other related products at the lwer of cost determined using

the first-in first out FIFO method or market net realizable

value the Company maintains an allowance for excess or slow

moving inventory based on the expectation that certain inventory

will become obsolete sold for less than cost or become unsellable

altogether The allowance is estimated based on factors such as

historical trends current market conditions and managements

assessment of when the inventory would likely
be sold and the

quantities and prices at which the inventory would likely be sold in

the normal course of business Changes in product specifications

customer product preferences or the loss of customer may

result in an unanticipated impairment in net realizable value that

may have material impact on cost of goods sold gross margin

and net income Obsolete or damaged inventory is disposed of or

written down to net realizable value on quarterly basis Addi

tional adjustments if

necessary are made based on managements

specific review of inventory on hand Management believes the

estimates used in determining the allowance for excess and slow

moving inventory are critical accounting estimates as changes in the

estimates for both segments could have material impact on net

income and the estimates involve high degree of judgment

Inventory allowances ranged from .B% to 1.3% of inventory for

the Physician Business and 2.2% to 2.0% of inventory for the Elder

Care Business during fiscal years 200B through 2010 If manage

ment were to assume inventory allowances were based on the

fiscal years 200B through 20 historical ranges
noted above the

allowance for excess and slow moving inventory as of April 201

would range from $1.3 million to $1.7 million for the Physician

Business and $0.9 million to $1.0 million for the Elder Care
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Business impacting
the Compan/s inventory balance 2nd

gross

profit As of April 2011 management estimated the required

allowance for excess or slow moving inventory to be approx

mately $2.8 million and $1 .4 million for the Physician Business and

Elder Care Business respectively The increase in Physician Business

inventory allowances above the expected range relates to addi

tional reserves related to the fiscal year 20 acquisitions of Linear

and DSI

Although the Company believes its judgments estimates and/or

assumptions related to inventory reserves are reasonable making

material changes to such judgments estimates and/or assumptions

could materially affect the Companys financial results

Vendor Rebates

The Company receives transaction based rebates from third party

suppliers Such rebates are classified as reduction to cost of

goods sold in the accompanying statements of operations

Transaction-based rebates are generally associated with specific

customer contract and are recognized as reduction to cost of

goods sold at the time the transaction occurs Management estab

lishes reserve for uncollectible transaction-based vendor rebates

based on managements judgment after considering the status of

current outstanding rebate claims historical denial experience with

suppliers and any other pertinent available information Manage

ment believes the estimates used in determining the reserve for

uncollectible transaction based vendor rebates are critical account

ing estimates because changes in the estimates could have

material impact on net income and the estimates involve high

degree of judgment

Reserves fur transaction based rebates for the year ended April

2011 and April 2010 were $1.5 million and $2.8 million

respectively Reserves ranged from 8.3% to 26.2% of rebates

receivable during fiscal years 2008 through 20 If management

were to assune outstanding future rebate receivable write offs

were based on the upper and lower end of the historical range the

transaction-based rebate reserve as ofAphl 201 would range

from $2.1 million to $3.0 million impacting the Companys Prepaid

and other current assets balance and Gross profit The fiscal year

201 transaction-based rebate reserve fell below the Companys

historical ranges During fiscal year 20 the Company

implemented contracts and rebates administration system which

provided enhanced
visibility

into various customer contract scenar

ios and reduced rebate denials during fiscal year 201

Although the Company believes its judgments estimates and/or

assumptions related to vendor rebates are reasonable making

material changes to such judgments estimates and/or assumptions

could materially affect the Companys financial results

Income Taxes

The Company uses the asset and
liability

method for determining

its provision for income taxes and deferred tax assets and liabilities

Under this method the amount of deferred tax assets and liabilities

at the end of each period are determined using the tax rate

expected to be in effect when taxes are actually paid or recovered

Valuation allowances are established to reduce deferred tax assets

when it is more likely
than not that some portion or all of the

deferred tax assets will not be realized In determining the need for

valuation allowances significant judgment and estimates are used as

management considers short and long term forecasts of future

taxable income as well as prudent and feasible tax planning strat

egies These judgments and estimates include some degree of

uncertainty and changes to these estimates could require manage

ment to adjust the valuation allowances for deferred tax assets

The Company had gross deferred income tax assets of $72.7 mil

lion and $74.9 million as of April 12011 and April 2010

respectively There were no valuation allowances as of April

2011 and April 2010 as management believes it will fully utilize

the Companys deferred tax assets before their expiration

The Companys tax filings are periodically subject to review by the

Internal Revenue Service IRS and other taxing authorities which

may result in assessments of additional tax Resolution of these

situations either with the taxing authority or the courts inevitably

includes some degree of uncertainty accordingly the Company

provides taxes only for the amounts management believes will

ultimately result from these proceedings Managements experience

has been that the estimates and assumptions used to provide for

future tax assessments have proven to be appropriate However

past experience is only guide and the potential exists however

limited that adjustments resulting from the resolution of current

and potential future tax controversies may differ materially from

the amount accrued

Current standards of accounting for uncertainty in income taxes

provides that tax benefit from an uncertain tax position may be

recognized when it is more likely than not that the position will be

sustained upon examination including resolutions of any related

appeals or litigation processes This standard requires management

to make significant judgments while assessing the probability of

possible outcomes of future tax examinations As of April 12011

and April 2010 the
liability

for uncertain tax positions was .5

million and $1 .5 million respectively Management does not expect

the amount of unrecognized tax benefits to change significantly

over the next twelve months

If our estimates or judgments described above were to change

hypothetical 1% change in our effective tax rate would impact

consolidated income from continuing operations by approximately

$1.2 million in fiscal year 2011
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Valuation of Intangible Assets Other Long lived Assets and Goodwill

Acquisitions

The Company allocates the purchase price of acquired companies

to the tangible and intangible assets acquired and liabilities assumed

based on estimated fair values Such valuations require manage

ment to make significant estimates and assumptions Critical esti

mates in the valuation of acquired assets include but are not

limited to expected future cash flows from existing customer

contrads and relationships ii assumptions relating to the impact

of noncompete agreements on business operations

uP assumptions related to the impact on the timing of expected

future cash flows iv retention of customers and key business

leaders and tIle risk inherent in investing in intangible assets

These estimates are inherently uncertain and unpredictable

Assumptions may be incomplete or inaccurate and unanticipated

events and circumstances may occur which may affect the accuracy

or validity
of such assumptions estimates or other actual results

For these reasons management believes the estimates used in

determining the fair value of assets acquired through an acquisition

are critical accounting estimates

During fiscal years 2008 thrnugh 201 th Cnmpany made acquis

itions with initial purchase price totaling $22.3 million During fiscal

year 2011 the Company made acquisitions with initial purchase

price totaling $65.9 million Adjustments to the valuation of

acquired assets and liabilities subsequent to the date of purchase

based on changes in managements original estimates were

immaterial to the current and previous three fiscal years

Impoirment

Under ASC 350 Intangibles Goodwill and Other ASC 350
goodwill and indefinite lived intangible assets are not amortized

but instead tested tor impairment annually or whenever events or

changes in circumstances indicate the carrying amount may be

impaired Goodwill and indefinite-lived intangible assets are

reviewe for impairment at each reporting unit annually on the last

day of each fiscal year

The impairment and disposal of long-lived assets is accounted for in

accordance with ASC 360 Property Plant and Equipment

Overall ASC 360 10 ASC 360 10 requires that long lived

assets such as property and equipment and intangible assets sub

ject to amortization be reviewed for impairment whenever events

or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an

asset may not be recoverable In the event that the carrying value

of assets are determined to be unrecoverable the Company would

estimate the fair value of the assets or reporting unit and record an

impairment charge for the excess of the carrying value over the fair

value In conducting the impairment analysis the Company

determines the fair value of its reporting units using valuation tech

niques which may include discounted cash flow analyses requiring

management to make certain assumptions regarding estimated

future cash flows revenues eamings and other factors including

discount rates to determine the fair value of these respective

assets The application of different assumptions about such masters

as estimated future cash flows or discount rates or the testing for

impairment at different level of the organization or on different

organizational structure may produce materially different results

For these reasons management believes the estimates used in

evaluating the Companys goodwill indefinite lived intangible assets

and long lived assets are critical accounting estimates Based on

managements review goodwill intangible assets and other

long-lived assets were not impaired during fiscal years 2010 2009

and 2008 As of April 2011 and April 2010 the Companys

intangible asset other long lived asset and goodwill balances

totaled $3 11.4 million and $25 .5 million respectively

Based on managements review goodwill intangible assets and

other long-lived assets were not impaired during fiscal year 201

and management does not believe there were any circumstances

which indicated the carrying value of an asset might not be

recoverable in the future Additionally hypothetical change in

the discount rate utilized in the Companys discounted cash flow

analysis would not have indicated impairment for any of the

Companys reporting units

Long Term Incentive Compensation

Equity Incentive Plans

As of April 2011 the Company has outstanding grants of non-

qualified stock options time-based restricted stock and

performance based restricted stock outstanding

Estimates are required to determine the number of share based

awdrds whiLh will ultimately vest and in the case of perforniamiuc

based restricted stock estimates of the Companys future perform

ance Changes in the estimated forfeiture rates and changes in

estimates regarding the Companys performance can have material

effects on share based compensation expense For this reason

management has determined that the estimates used to determine

equity based compensation expense are critical accounting esti

mates

When estimating forfeitures the Company considers termination

behaviors as well as trends of actual equity based awards forfeited

Management re-assesses the estimated forfeiture rate established

upon grant periodically throughout the service period Such esti

mates are revised if they differ materially from actual forfeitures As

required forfeiture estimates are adjusted to reflect actual for

feitures when an award vests Actual forfeitures in future reporting

periods could be materially higher or lower than managements

current estimates which could have material impact on equity

based compensation expense recognized in future years
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When estimating the Companys earnings per share goals for

performance based restrided stock the Company reviews histor

ical performance internal plans and goals economic conditions and

other performance metrics These future performance estimates

are re assessed throughout the service period Such estimates are

revised if

necessary
if they differ materially from the original

assessment and may have an impact on the vesting of an award If

actual performance differs
significantly from managements esti

mates it could have material impact on equity based compensa

tion
expense recognized in future

years

Based on the financial results during fiscal year 2010 management

revised its assessment for probable achievement of performance

conditions related to long term incentive compensation plans

Management reviewed the fiscal year results impacted by the

impact of revenue growth programs ii the impact of

implemented cost savings initiatives iii the increase in sales of

IN related products and iv the gain on sale of shares in athe

na It was determined the cumulative impact of these events

required the Company to adjust its estimates and adjust the

accruals to these plans based on those estimates The change in

estimate for these awards resulted in an increase in stock based

compensatinn cxpense of $9 million during fiscal year 2010 off

set by decrease in expense of $4.4 million related to the

departure of the Companys former Chairman and Chief Executive

Off cer

Total stock based compensation expense during the fiscal years

ended April 2011 April 2010 and March 27 2009 was

$9.2 million $12.2 million and $5.6 million respectively Current

forfeiture rates average .0% per quarter with actual rates ranging

from .100 to 3.9% per quarter for fiscal years 2008 2010 If

management had used the low and high end of these actual ranges

during fiscal year 201 equity-based compensation expense

included in general and administrative
expenses would have been

$9.7 million and $7.5 million respectively Holding forfeiture rates

static if management had estimated the Companys future

performance at the minimum and maximum earnings per share

ranges since inception of the awards equity based compensation

expense would have been $6.8 million and $10 million

respectively during the fiscal year ended April 2011 Refer to

Footnote Incentive and Stock Bosed Compensotion for additional

information

Lash-based incentive plans

The Company maintains cash-based long term incentive plans the

Shareholder Value Plans SVP for certain employees The SVP

provides incentive to enhance shareholder value through the ach

ievement of cumulative earnings per share goals

Estimates are required to determine the Companys expected

future performance and cumulative earnings per share at the end

of the three year performance period Changes in estimates regard

ing the Companys performance can have material effect on cash

based incentive compensation expense For this reason

management has determined that the performance estimates used

for long-term cash based compensation expense are critical

accounting estimates

When estimating the Companys eamings per share goals for the

SVP the Company reviews historical performance internal plans

and goals economic conditions and other performance metrics

These future performance metrics are re-assessed throughout the

service period Such estimates are revised if necessary if they differ

materially from the original assessment If actual performance differs

significantly from managements estimates it could have material

impact on cash based compensation expense recognized in future

years

During fiscal year 2009 the Compensation Commiftee approved

the 2008 Shareholder Value Plan 2008 SVP The performance

period under the 2008 SVP was the three year period from

March 31 2008 to April 2011 Based upon current results and

expected future results as discussed above the Company recog

nized an additional $2.3 million in corporate compensation

expense during fiscal year 20 related to the 2008 SVP related to

change in estimate There were no material changes in estimates

during fiscal year 201 The accrual based on actual and expected

future results for the 2008 SVP was $10.7 million and $6.8 million

located in Other current liabilities on the Consolidated Balance Sheets

as of April 2011 and April 2010 respectively

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

During fiscal year 2011 the Company adopted new accounting

standard that changes the consolidation model for VIEs Variable

interest entities are entities in which equity investors lack the char

acteristics of controlling financial interest or do not have sufficient

equity at risk to finance the entitys activities without additional

subordinated financial support VIEs are consolidated by the pri

mary beneficiary defined as the party which has the power to

direct those activities that most significantly impact the entitys

economic performance and ii has an obligation to absorb an enti

tys losses or right to receive benefits from an entity that could be

potentially significant to the entity The standard requires ongoing

reassessments to determine whether an enterprise is the primary

beneficiary of VIE The standard expands the disclosure require

ments for enterprises with variable interest in VIE See Footnote

Variable Interest Entity for additional disclosures

In October 2009 Financial Accounting Standards Board FASB
issued an Accounting Standards Update ASU for multiple deliv

erable revenue arrangements The update requires entities to allo

cate revenue in an arrangement using estimated selling prices of the

delivered goods and services based on selling price hierarchy The

page 45



update eliminates the residual method of revenue 2lloction nd

requires revenues to be allocated using the relative selling pdce

method The Company will adopt this update prospectively for

revenue arrangements entered into or materially modified begin

ning in the first quarter of fiscal year 2012 The Company has eval

uated this standard and determined it will not have matedal effect

on the Companys statements of financial condition or results of

operations

In july 2010 the EASE issued an ASU which amended accounting

guidance for receivables to require further disaggregated dis

closures that improve financial statement users understanding of

the nature of an entitys credit risk associated with its financing

receivables and Fl the entitys assessment of that dsk in estimating

its allocvance for credit losses as well as changes in the allowance

and the reasons for those changes The new and amended dis

closures as of the end of reporting period are effective for

interim and annual reporting pedods ending on or after

December 15 2010 The Company has adopted this standard with

no material effect As of January 2011 the portion of this update

related to the disclosure of troubled debt restructurings had been

deferred until FASB deliberations are complete

In December 2010 the EASE issued new accounting standard

that provided guidance on supplementary pro forma information

for business combinations for which the acquisition date is on or

after the beginning of the first annual reporting period beginning on

or after December 15 2010 While not impacting the disclosure of

pro forma information the new standard changes the way such

information is calculated Specifically consolidated revenue and

eamings would be determined as if the business combination

occurred as of the beginning of the comparable prior annual

reporting period This method is consistent with guidance set forth

by the SEC Additionally the standard required qualitative dis

closures around the nature and amount of material nonrecurring

pro
forma adjustments directly aifributable to business combina

tions The Company has elected to early adopt this standard See

Footnote Purchose Businesses Combinations for further dis

cussion

Item 7a Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About

Market Risk

Market Risk The Companys objective in managing market risk

exposures is to identify and limit the potential impact of changes in

interest rates commodity availability and access of capital on eam

ings and cash flow The following assessment of the Companys

market risk does not include uncertainties that are either non

financial or nonquantifiable such as political uncertainty economic

uncertainty impact of future tax legislation and credit risks

Interest Rate Risk The Companys primary interest rate exposure

relates to cash and cash equivalents and fixed and variable

rate deht During
fisral

year 7011 the Companys deht
nhligatinns

consisted of $230.0 million senior convertible notes with fixed

rate of 25% and ii variable rate borrowings under the revolving

line of credit which bear interest at the banks prime rate plus an

applicable margin based on fixed charge coverage ratio or at

LIBOR plus an applicable margin based on fixed charge coverage

ratio Fixed charge coverage is determined by the ratio of Eamings

before Interest Tax Depreciation and Amortization to the sum of

fixed charges including but not limited to Interest Expense Capital

Expenditures payment of debt principal and cash paid for taxes

Changes in interest rates affect interest payments under the

Companys variable rate revolving line of credit agreement The

Company periodically enters into interest rate swap agreements to

hedge the variable interest rate of its revolving line of credit Dudng

fiscal year 2008 the Company entered into an interest rate swap

agreement with notional value of $50.0 million 2008 Swap
Under the terms of the 2008 Swap the Company made payments

based on the fixed rate and received interest payments based on

month LIBOR which effectively fixes the notional amount cov

ered by the swap at borrowing rate of 2.70% plus credit spread

The changes in market value of these financial instruments are

highly correlated with changes in market value of the hedged item

both at inception and over the life of the agreement Amounts

received or paid under the interest rate swap agreement were

recorded as reductions or additions to interest
expense

In accord

ance with hedge accounting the Companys interest rate swap

agreement has been designated as cash flow hedge with changes

in fair value recognized in Accumulated other comprehensive income

in the accompanying Conso/idated Ba/once Sheets

As of March 27 2009 the 2008 Swap carded notional pdncipal

amount of $50.0 million and effectively fixed the interest rate on

portion of the revolving line oF credit to L70% prior to applying

the applicable margin discussed above The 2008 Swap agreement

expired on February 19 2010 During the fiscal year ended

March 27 2009 the Company recorded unrealized losses net of

tax of approximately $0.4 million for the estimated fair value of

the 2008 Swap agreement in Accumulated other comprehensive

income in the accompanying Consolidated Ba/once Sheets

Changes in interest rates also affect rates of return on the Compa

nys cash equivalents and short term investments which generally

consist of money market accounts

During fiscal year 2011 the Company had average daily vadable

rate borrowings under its line of credit of $3.8 million hypo

thetical 1% increase/decrease in prevailing interest rates as of

Apdl 201 would result in corresponding increase/decrease in

interest expense of less than $0.1 million

Dudng fiscal year 2010 the Company had average daily variable

rate borrowings under its line of credit of $44.2 million Excluding
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the impact of the interest rate swap hypothetiral 1% inrrease/

decrease in prevaihng interest rates as of April 20 10 would

result in corresponding increase/decrease in interest expense of

approximately $0.4 million

Currency Risk The Companys currency rate exposures relate to

products that are globally sourced from manufacturers in Southeast

Asia Currently the Company has negotiated settlement of pay

mentsto manufacturers in U.S dollars However overtime local

country currency
fluctuations may increase or decrease the nego

tiated cost that the Company must pay for these products In addi

tion the Company may in future periods negotiate settlement of

payments to manufacturers in the local currency of the country

providing product which would then subject the Company to

foreign currency risk

Commodity Risk The Companys primary commodity exposures

relate to fluctuations in the price of gasoline and diesel fuel and the

procurement of certain medical supplies in which the product cost

is dependent upon the price of raw materials which may fluctuate

significantly

The Companys direct fuel exposure relates to fluctuations in fuel

costs that affect the Company leased delivery fleet or third-party

delivery charges Significant increases in the cost of gasoline and

diesel fuel have impacted and may continue to impact the

Companys gross margin cost to deliver and the operating costs of

third party transportation providers Some of these common car

riers have passed these increases through to the Company in the

form of fuel surcharge which has had an adverse effect on the

Companys results of operations The Company implemented

fuel surcharge to its customers during fiscal year 2006 to pass on

portion of the increased cost of gasoline and diesel fuel and adjusts

the amount of surcharge based on market conditions There can be

no assurance that the Company will be able to fully pass along

further significant increases in fuel costs to its customers due to the

competitive nature of the medical supply distribution industry

As of March March 2010 and March 2009 the U.S National

average for unleaded gasoline was $3.74 $2.88 and $2.03/gallon

respectively and the U.S National average for diesel fuel was

$3.98 $3.02 and $2.22/gallon respectively With respect to the

Companys direct fuel purchases hypothetical 0% increase/

decrease in diesel and unleaded fuel costs during fiscal
years

201

and 2010 would have resulted in corresponding increase/

decrease in fuel expense of approximately $0.6 million and $0.5

million respectively

The Company purchases latex and vinyl gloves through agreements

in which the pricing of gloves is based on the price of latex as

traded on the Malaysian Rubber Exchange and the weighted price

of two raw materials Poly vinyl
chloride PVC and Dioctylph

thalate DOP as published on www.icis.com Latex PVC and

DOP in their raw form are only one of many components used in

the mantifarti ire of gloves Hnwever haserl on estimates of

component mix hypothetical 0% increase/decrease in latex

costs during fiscal years 2011 and 2010 would have resulted in

corresponding increase/decrease in the cost of latex gloves of

approximately $0.9 million and $1 .5 million respectively In addi

tion hypothetical 10% increase/decrease in PVC and DOP costs

during fiscal years 2011 and 2010 would have resulted in corre

sponding increase/decrease in the cost of vinyl gloves of approx

imately $1 .1 million and $1 .2 million respectively
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Port II Item

Report of Independent Reg/stered Pub/ic Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Shareholders

P55 World Medical Inc

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of

PSS World Medical Inc and subsidiaries the Company as of

April 2011 and April 2010 and the related consolidated

statements of operations equity and cash flows for each of the

years in the three year period ended April 2011 In connection

with our audits of the consolidated financial statements we also

have audited the finanril statement cchedijle These consolidated

financial statements and financial statement schedule are the

responsibility of tEe Companys management Our responsibility is

to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements

and financial statement schedule based on our audits

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the

Public Company Accounting Oversight Board United States

Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to

obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements

are free of matedal misstatement An audit includes examining on

test basis evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the

financial statements An audit also includes assessing the accounting

principles used and significant estimates made by management as

well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation We
believe that our audits provide reasonable basis for our opinion

In our opinion the consolidated financial statements referred to

above present fairly
in all material respects the financial position of

PSS World Medical Inc and subsidiaries as of April 2011 and

April 2010 and the results of their operations and their cash

flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended April

2011 in conformity with U.S generally accepted accounting princi

pies Also in our opinion the related financial statement schedule

when considered in relation to the basic consolidated financial

statements taken as whole presents fairly in all material respects

the information set forth therein

We also have audited in accordance with the standards of the

Public Company Accounting Oversight Board United States PSS

World Medical Inc.s internal control over financial reporting as of

April 2011 based on criteria established in Internal Control

Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring

Organizations of the Treadway Commission COSO and our

report dated May 26 2011 expressed an unqualified opinion on

the effectiveness of the Companys intemal control over financial

reporting

Is KPMC LLP

May26 2011

Jacksonville Florida

Certified Public Accountants
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P35 WORLD MEDICAL INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Balance Sheets

Apnl 1.2011 and
April 22010

Dollars in Thousands 2011 2010

Assets

Current Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 29348 5275

Accounts receivable net 247229 227888

Inventories 213211 218911

Deferred tax assets net 20533 15629

Prepaid expenses and_other 34285 26485

Total current assets 544606 541664

Property and equipment net 102401 105220

Other Assets

Goodwill 167094 121772

Intangibles net 41879 24548

Other 95692 78862

Total assets4 $95 1672 $872066

Liabilities and Equity

Current Liabilities

Accounts payable $128057 $123970

Accrued expenses 37175 50253

Revolving line of credit and current portion of long term debt 761 88

Other 3321 10954

Total current liabilities 199204 86058

Long term debt excluding current portion 195662 187941

Other noncurrent liabilities 110280 90053

Total liabiUtiesst
..

..

505146 464052

Commitments and contingencies Notes 12 14 IS 16 17 and 19

Equity

P55 World Medical Inc shareholders equity

Preferred tock $0.01 par value 1000000 shares authonzed no shares issued and outstanding

Common stock $0.01 par value 150000000 shares authorized 55465600 and 571 68296 shares issued and outstanding

as of April 12011 and Apnl 22010 respedively 546 562

Additional paid in
capital 122912 162469

Retained eamings 19468 244983

Total P55 World Medical Inc shareholders equity 442926 408014

Noncontrolling interest 3600

Total equity 446526 4u8O 14

Total liabilities and equity $95 1672 $872066

See Footnote Vonoble Interest Ensty for discussion of the assets and liabilities related to the companys consolidated variable interest
entity

The accompanying notes are an integral part
of these consolidated financial statements
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Port 1/ /tem

P55 WORLD MEDICAL INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statements of Operations

For the Years Ended ApnI 2011 ApnI 2010 and March 27 2009

In Thousands Except Per Share Data 2010 2009

Net sales $2034789 $2055171 $195269

Cost of goods sold 1399018 1427476 1370781

Gross profit 635771 627695 581910

General and administrative expenses 364749 370871 352478

Selling expenses 137466 135843 128505

Income from operations 33556 12098 100927

Other expense insome

Interest expense 17121 17295 22158
Interest and investment income 284 376 2304

Other income net 2506 6068 2643

Otherexpense 14331 10851 17211

Income before provision for income taxes 119225 110130 8371

Provision for income taxes 44561 40767 32230

Net income 74664 69363 51486

Net income attributable to noncontrolling interest 179

Net income attributable to 955 World Medical Inc 74485 69363 1486

Eamings per common share attributable to

PSS World Medical Inc

Basic 1.35 1.20 C86

Diluted 1.32 1.18 CBS

Weighted average common shares outstanding

Basic 54996 58029 59937

Diluted 56546 58943 60696

The accompanying notes are an integral part
of these consolidated financial statements
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P55 WORLD MEDICAL INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statements of Equity

Accumulated Total PSS World

For the Years Ended April 2011 Additional ather Medical Inc

Apnl 22010 and March 27 2009 Paid-In Retained Comprehensive Shareholders Noncostrolling

Dollars in Thousands Except Share Data Shares Amoun
Capital Earnings Loss Income

Equity
Interest Total

Equity

Balance as of March 28 2008 60894626 $609 $212768 $123930 2044 $339351 $33935
Net income 51486 51486 51486

unrealized holding gain on available for sale investments

net of taxes of$140 234 234 234

Reclassification adjustment for
gains on available for sale

investments included in net income net of taxes of

$169 275 275 275
Impact of interest rate swap net of income tax benefit of

$216
..

35 351 351
Total comprehensive income

...

1094

Repurchases and retirement of common stock 3377385 34 52734 52768 52768
Exercise of stock options 604974 6202 6208 6208

Stock based compensation 5.843 5843 5.843

Vesting of restricted stock 156012
Excess tax benefit from stock based compensation 1700 1700 1700

Convertible note hedge transaction net of income tax

benefit 33103 33103 33103
Warrant transaction 25368 25368 25368

Equity component related to issuance of 2008 Notes net

of income tax 33728 33728 33728

Employee benefits and other 23026 204 609

Balance as of March 27 2009 58301253 $583 $200175 $1 75o20 o52 $378030 $378030

Net income 69363 69363 69363

unrealized holding gains on available for sale investments

netoftaxesof$33 56 56 56

Reclassification adjustment for gains on available-for sale

investments included in net income net of taxes of

$1375 2260 2260 2260
.l.TPact

of interest rate swap net of taxes of $339 552 552 552

Total comprehensive income
... ..

6771 67711

Repurchases and retirement of common stock 2767093 28 57.148 57176 57176
Exercise of stock options 547823 4483 4.489 4489

Stock based compensation 11887 11887 11887

Vesting of restricted stock 90354

Excess tax benefit from stock based compensation 2516 25 16 251

Employee benefits and other 27256 557 SS7

Balance as ofApril 22010 56199593 $562 $162469 $244983 $408014 $408014

Net income
.. ...

74.485
...

74485 179 74664

Total comprehensive income 74485 179 74664

Acquisition of vanable interest entity 3421 3421

Repurchaes and retirement of common stock 2728300 27 54734 54761 54761
Exercise of stock options 337853 2.075 2078 2.078

Stock based compensation 9285 9285 9285

Vesting of restricted stock 802.005

Excess tax benefit from stock based compensation 31 87 3187 3187

Employee benefits and other 23892 638 638

Balance as of April 2011 54635043 $546 $122912 $319468 $442926 $3600 $446526

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
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Port II Item

P55 WORLD NIEDICAI INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consol/dated Statements of Cash Flows

Forthe Years Ended ApnI 2011 April 22010 and March 27 2009

Dollars in Thousands 2011 2010 2009

Cash Flows From Operating Activities

Net income 74664 69363 51486

Ad/ustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities

Depreciation 25065 21940 20002

Frovision benefit for deferred income taxes 325 8264 5933

Noncash compensation expense 10227 12772 6747

Amortization of intangible assets 6378 5489

Provision for doubtful accounts 1741 3795 3680

Provision for deferred compensation 1423 1530 1210

Amortization of debt discount and issuance costs 9447 8852 26 17

Loss gain on sales of property and equipment 19 81

Gain on sale of available for sale secunties 3635 444
Changes in operating assets and liabilities net of effects from business combinations

Accounts receivable net 7257 221 39

Inventories 12265 9718 16358
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 6433 5710 2486

Other assets 7973 4685 935

Accounts payable 8153 5129 9209
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 1664 15867 11930

Net

cash provided by operating activities 116328 10240 90121

Cash Flows From Investing Activities

Payments for business combinations net of cash acquired of

1163 and respectively 65934 14802 3744
Capital expenditures 8227 25923 27340
Payment for investment in vanable interest entity net of cash 3277
Proceeds from sale of available for sale securities 1068 22098

Other 668 54 221

Net cash used in
investing

activities 88106 30585 9207

Cash Flows From Financing Activities

Proceeds from borrowings on the revolving line of credit 106400 5350 68274

Repayments on the revolving line of credit 106.40fo 55.350 f88.274

Purchase and retirement of common stock 54761 57176 52768
Excess tax benefits from share based compensation arrangements 3187 25 16 1700

Proceeds from exercise of stock options 2079 4489 6208

Payments under capital lease obligations 834 925 1290

Payment of contingent consideration on business
acquisition 862

Proceeds from issuance of convertible debt 230000

Payment for extinguishment of convertible notes 149980

Payment for purchase of hedge on convertible note 54096
Proceeds from issuance of warrants 25368

Payment for debt issue costs 147

Other

Net

cash used in financing activities 51 625 101096 20005

Net decrease increase in cash and cash equivalents 23403 29280 60909

Cash and ash equivalents beginning of period 52751 82031 21122

Cash and cash equivalents end of period 29348 5275 8203

The accompanying notes are an integral part
of these consolidated financial statements
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P55 WORLD NIEDICAL INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consofidoted Finonciol Stotements

April 2011 Apnl 2010 AND March 27 2009

Dollars in Thousands Except Per Share Data Unless Othorwise Noted

Nature of Operations

PSS World Medical Inc the Company or PSSI Florida

corporation began operations in 1983 The Company is national

distributor of medical products and equipment pharmaceutical

products healthcare information technology and professional serv

ices to healthcare providers including physician offices long term

care and assisted living facilities home health care and hospice

providers through full service distribution centers which serve all 50

states throughout the United States U.S.

The Company currently conducts business through two operating

segments the Physician Business and the Elder Care Business

which serve diverse customer base third reporting segment

Corporate Shared Services includes allocated and unallocated

costs of corporate departments that provide services to the

operating segments

The Physician Business or the Physician Sales Service division is

leading distributor of medical supplies diagnostic equipment phar

maceutical related products healthcare information technology

and physician dispensing solutions to alternate site healthcare pro

viders in the U.S The Physician Business currently operates 29 full-

service distribution centers 37 break freight locations service

center and redistribution facilities serving physician offices in all

50 states

The Elder Care Business or the Gulf South Medical Supply Inc

division is national distributor of medical supplies and related

products and solutions to the long-term and elder care industry in

the United States The Elder Care Business serves the nursing

home home rare and hospice industries as well as the assisted

living market segment In addition the Elder Care Business also

provides Medicare Part billing services either on fee-for service

or full-assignment basis and Medicaid
billing services to the

assisted
living market The Elder Care Business currently operates

full service distribution centers break-freight locations other

service centers and redistribution facilities serving independent

and regional skilled nursing facilities assisted
living centers and

home health care providers in all 50 states

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Presentation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been

prepared in accordance with U.S generally accepted accounting

principles GAAP and include the accounts of PSS World Medi

cal Inc and its wholly owned subsidiaries All significant inter

company balances and transactions have been eliminated in

consolidation

The Company reports its year end financial position results of

operations and cash flows on the Friday closest to March Fiscal

years
2011 and 2009 consisted of 52 weeks or 253 selling days and

fiscal year 20 10 consisted of 53 weeks or 258
selling days

Use of Estimates

The preparatiun of financial stateirients in accor dance with GAAP

requires management to make estimates and assumptions that

affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure

of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial state

ments and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during

the reporting period Significant items subject to such estimates and

assumptions include the carrying amount of inventories property

and equipment goodwill and intangibles allowances for doubtful

accounts receivables and vendor rebate receivables valuation

allowances for deferred income taxes liabilities for loss con

tingencies incentive and stock based compensation expense and

valuations associated with business combinations Actual results

could differ from the estimates and assumptions used in preparing

the consolidated financial statements

Reclassification

Certain items previously reported in combined financial statement

captions have been reclassified to conform to the current financial

statement presentation

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The carrying amounts of the Companys current financial instru

ments including cash and cash equivalents short term trade receiv

ables and accounts payable approximate their fair values due to

the short term nature of these assets and liabilities The gross carry

ing value of the Companys 2008 Notes as of April 12011 and

April 2010 was $230000 and the fair value which is estimated

using third party valuation model was approximately $323800

and $285800 respectively

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents generally consist of demand deposits

with financial institutions and highly liquid investment grade instru

ments having maturities of three months or less at the date of

purchase Cash and cash equivalents are stated at cost which

approximates market value
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Accounts Receivable

Trade accounts receivable consist of amounts owed to the Cam

pany and are stated net of allowances which approximates fair

value due to the short term nature of the asset The Companys

outstanding accounts receivable are exposed to credit risk and

valuation allowances are established for estimated losses resulting

from non collection of outstanding amounts due from customers

The valuation allowances include specific amounts for those

accounts that are deemed
likely

to be uncollectible such as

customer bankruptcies and disputed amounts and general allow

ances for accounts that management currently believes to be

collectible but that may later become uncollectible Estimates are

used to determine the valuation allowances and are generally

based on historical collection results current economic trends

credit-worthiness of customers and changes in customer payment

terms Cash flows related to changes in accounts receivable balan

ces are classified as operating activities within the Consolidated

Statements of Cash Flows

The Physician Business trade accounts receivable consist of many

individual accounts none of which are individually significant to the

Company The Physician Business had allowances for doubtful

accounts of approximately $2934 and $z486 as of April 20/I

and April 20/0 respectively During fiscal years 20/ 2010 and

2009 bad debt expense was less than 1% of net sales

The Elder Care Business trade accounts receivable have number

of large customer accounts that are significant to its business

Approximately 6% 15% and 14% of the Elder Care Business net

sales for the fiscal
years

ended April 2011 April 2010 and

March 27 2009 respectively represent sales to its largest five cus

tomers As of April 20/ and April 2010 the outstanding

accounts receivable balances of these customers represented

appro imately 10% of accounts receivable net of allowance for

doubtful accounts respectively The Elder Care Business had allow

ances for doubtful accounts of approximately $2875 and $3824 as

of April 2011 and April 2010 respectively During fiscal years

2011 010 and 2009 bad debt
expense was less than 1% of net

sales

Over the past three
years

the Companys average
allowance for

doubtful accounts has represented 2% of the Physician Business

gross accounts receivable balance and 4% to 5% of the Elder Care

business gross accounts receivable balance

Inventories

Inventories consist of medical products medical equipment and

other related products and are stated at the lower of cost or

market Cost is determined using the first-in first out FIFO
method Market is defined as net realizable value The net realizable

value of excess and slow moving inventory is determined using

judgment as to when inventory will be sold and the quantities and

prices at which inventory will be sold in the normal course of busi

ness Obsolete or damaged inventory is disposed of or written

down to net realizable value on quarterly basis Additional

adjustments if necessary are made based on managements specific

review of inventory on hand Cash flows related to changes in

inventory are classified as operating activities within the Con

solidoted Statements of Cash Flows

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost Depreciation is com

puted using the straight line method overthe following estimated

useful lives of the respective classes of assets

Useful Life

Equipment to 10 years

Computer hardware and software to IS years

Capitalized intemal use software costs to IS years

Leasehold improvements are amortized over the shorter of the

lease term or the estimated useful life Management is required to

use judgment in determining the estimated useful lives of such

assets Changes in circumstances such as technological advances

changes to the Companys business model changes in the Compa

nys business strategy or changes in the planned use of property

and equipment could result in the actual useful lives differing from

the Companys current estimates In those cases where the Com

pany
determines the useful life of property and equipment should

be shortened or extended the Company depreciates the net book

value in excess of the estimated salvage value over its revised

remaining useful life

The Company capitalizes the following costs associated with devel

oping internal use computer software external direct costs of

materials and services consumed in developing or obtaining

intemal use computer software certain payroll and payroll

related costs for Company employees who are directly associated

with the development of internal use software to the extent of

time spent directly on the project and iii interest costs incurred

while developing internal use computer software Internal use

software costs capitalized subsequent to March 23 2005 are amor

tized over the estimated useful lives of the software ranging from

to 15 years ASC 835-20 Interest Capitalization of Interest requires

the capitalization of interest cost as part of the historical cost of

acquiring certain assets such as assets that are constructed or

produced for companys own use The amount of capitalized

interest during fiscal years 2011 2010 and 2009 was $511 $1182

and $854 respectively

Gains or losses upon retirement or disposal of property and equip

ment are recorded in income in the accompanying Consolidated

Statements of Operations Normal repair and maintenance costs that

do not substantially extend the life of property and equipment are

expensed as incurred
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Goodwill lmpoirment of Lng Lived Asset

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquired corn

pany over the fair value of identifiable assets and liabilities acquired

In accordance with the provisions of ASC 350 20 Intongibles

Goodwill ond Other Goodwill goodwill is reviewed for impairment

annually as of the last day of the fiscal year An interirn review is

perforrned between annual tests whenever events or changes in

circurnstances indicate the carrying arnount of the goodwill rnay be

irnpaired Because the estirnated fair value of the reporting units

exceeded the carrying amount of the goodwill there was no

irnpairrnent as of April 2011 and April 2010

lntongibles

ASC 350 30 lntongibles Goodwill ond Other Generol lntongibles

Other Thon Goodwill requires intangible assets with finite useful lives

be amortized over their respective estirnated useful lives Arnor

tization is cornputed using the straight line rnethod

Nonsolicitotion Agreements

Certain sales representatives employed by the Physician and Elder

Care Businesses have executed enipluyment agreements in

exchange for cash payrnent Nonsolicitation Agreernents

These employment agreernents include nonsolicitation covenants

which state that the sales representative can neither solicit nor

accept business frorn certain of the Companys customers for

stated period of time subsequent to the date the sales representa

tive ceases employment with the Company The costs associated

with these Nonsolicitation Agreements are capitalized and amor

tized on straight line basis over their estimated useful lives plus

the stated nonsolicitation period If sales representative termi

nates employment prior to the end of the estimated useful life of

the agreement the remaining net book value of the asset is amor

tized over the stated nonsolicitation period

During the period the sales representatives remain employed with

the Compan9 the nonsolicitation intangible asset is evaluated for

impairment in accordance with the provisions ofASC 360 10

Property Plont ond Equipment Overolf This standard requires the

Company to test for impairment whenever events or changes in

circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of the asset may

not be recoverable Certain factors which may indicate an impair

ment exists include but are not limited to change in states

legal system that would impact any legal opinion relied upon when

assessing enforceability of the nonsolicitation covenants ii

decline in gross profit or sales volume death or iv full retire

ment by the sales representative In the event the carrying value of

the assets were to be determined unrecoverable the Company

would estimate the fair value of the assets and record an impair

ment charge for the excess of the carrying value over the fair value

There were no impairments as of April 2011 or April 2010

Long lived assets other than goodwill and indefinite-lived intangible

assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in

circumstances indicate the carrying amount may not be recoverable

in accordance with A5C 360 Property Plont ond Equipment

Overoll The carrying amount of long lived asset is not recoverable

if it exceeds the sum of the undiscounted future cash flows

expected to result from the use and eventual disposition of the

asset The impairment loss is measured as the amount by which the

carrying amount of the long-lived asset exceeds fair value

The Company evaluates the recoverability of indefinite lived

intangible assets annually in accordance with ASC 350 30

lntongibles Goodwill ond Other Generol lntongibles Other Thon

Goodwill An interim review may be performed more frequently if

events or changes in circumstances such as decline in sales earn

ings or cash flows or material adverse changes in the business

climate indicate that the carrying value of an asset might be

impaired

There were no impairments as of April 2011 or April 2010

Accounts Poyoble

Outstanding checks in excess of cash balances available for
legal

right of offset are reclassified to accounts payable Amounts

reclassified to accounts payable were $1 3425 and $12377 as of

April 2011 and April 2010 respectively

lnsuronce Coveroge

The Company has self-funded program
for employee and

dependent health insurance This program includes an admin

istrator large provider network and stop loss reinsurance to

cover individual claims in excess of $250 per person with an addi

tional aggregate specific deductible of $190 annually and up to

$2000 catastrophic loss maximum per lifetime benefit per person

Claims incurred but not reported are recorded based on estimates

of claims provided by the third party administrator and are included

in accrued expenses
in the accompanying consolidated balance

sheets The Company recognized 153 $1 3452 and $13222

in medical expenses net of employee contributions during the

fiscal years ended April 2011 April 2010 and March 27 2009

respectively

The Company maintains primary casualty insurance program for

its automobile
liability employers liability

and general liability risks

which in general provides limits of up to $2000 $1000 and

$2000 respectively In addition the Company maintains workers

compensation policies which have statutory limits that are based on

state regulations The primary program contains deductible of

$500 per occurrence for each line of coverage subject to pri

mary aggregate stop loss of approximately $9080 for the current
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plan year
In addition the Company maintains an umhrellaiexress

liability program to cover occurrences in excess of the underlying

pdmary limits

Contingent Loss Accruols

In determining the accrual necessary for probable loss con

tingencies as defined by ASC 450 20 Contingencies Loss Con

tingencies the Company includes estimates for professional fees

such as legal accounting and consulting and other related costs to

be incurred unless such fees and related costs are not probable of

being incurred or are not reasonably estimable

Income Toxes

Income taxes are accounted for under the asset and liability meth

od Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the tax

consequences attributable to temporary differences between the

financial statement carrying amounts and the respective tax basis in

existing assets and liabilities Deferred tax assets and liabilities are

measured using the tax rates expected to apply to taxable income

in the years in which those temporary differences are expected to

be recovered or sett led The effect on deferred tax assets and

liabilities of change in tax rates is recognized in the consolidated

statements of operations in the pedod that includes the enactment

date

Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized when persuasive evidence of an arrange

ment exists evidence of delivery of products or services is

obtained the
selling price is fixed or determinable and collectability

of the resulting accounts receivable is reasonably assured The

Company assesses collectability based upon thorough evaluation

of current and prospective customers credit history and ability to

pay The Company establishes and adjusts credit terms and limits

to reflect customer credit worthiness based upon this evaluation

Customer credit evaluations are updated periodically and for

specific events or circumstances such as detedoration in the aging

of account balances bankruptcy filings or notice of financial diffi

culties

Consolidated sales allowances are immaterial and generally repre

sent less than 1% of gross sales

Physician Business The Physician Business has two
prirriary sources

of revenue the sale of consumable products and the sale of

equipment Revenue from the sale of consumable products is

recognized when products are shipped or delivered since at that

time there is persuasive evidence that an arrangement exists the

price is fixed and determinable and the collection of the resulting

accounts receivable is reasonably assured Revenue from the sale of

single deliverable equipment is generally recognized when the

equipment is shipped unless there are multiple deliverables in

which case revenue is recognized when all obligations to the cus

tomer are fulfilled Obligations to the customer are typically sat

isfied when installation and training are complete

Customers have the dght to retum consumable products and

equipment Sales allowances are recorded as reduction of rev

enue for potential product returns and estimated billing errors

Management analyzes sales allowances quartedy using historical

data adjusted for significant changes in volume and business con

ditions as well as specific identification of significant returns or bill

ing errors

Elder Core Business The Elder Care Business has three primary

sources of revenue the sale of consumable products to skilled

nursing home and assisted
living

facilities and ii hospice and home

health care providers and Hi service fees earned for providing

Medicare Part and Medicaid
billing

services

Revenue from the sale of consumable products to skilled nursing

home facilities assisted living facilities and home health care pro

viders is recognized when products are shipped or delivered

Revenue for these products is recorded
upon shipment since at

that time there is persuasive evidence that an arrangement exists

the price is fixed and determinable and the collection of the result

ing accounts receivable is reasonably assured

Revenue from providing ancillary medical supplies for Medicare

Part
eligible patients and Medicaid

eligible patients on full

assignment basis is recognized during the pedod the supplies are

shipped to the
eligible patients The product is shipped to the

facility patient specific and becomes the property of that specific

patient Revenue is recorded at the amounts expected to be col

lected from Medicare Medicaid other third party payers and

directly from customers Reimbursement from Medicare is subject

to review by appropdate govemment regulators Revenue from

providing Medicare Part and Medicaid billing services on fee for

service basis is recognized when
billing

services are rendered to the

customer

Customers have the right to return consumable products and

equipment Sales allowances are recorded as reduction of rev

enue for potential product and equipment returns ii patients

that turn out not
eligible

to be billed to Medicare or other payor

and iii Medicare Part and Medicaid reimbursement denials

capped rental of eriteral purrip arid
billing

errors Management ana

lyzes actual revenue adjustments and Medicare Part reimburse

ment denials using historical actual cash collection and actual

adjustments to gross revenue for certain period of time The

historical percentage is used to estimate the future cash collections

and required accounts receivable reserve Additional allowances

are recorded for any significant specific adjustments known to

management
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Vendor Rebates

The Company receives transaction based and performance-based

rebates from third party suppliers Transaction based rebates are

generally associated with specific customer contract and are

recognized as reduction to cost of goods sold at the time the

transaction occurs Management establishes reserve for

uncollectible transaction based vendor rebates based on manage

ments judgment after considering the status of current outstanding

rebate claims historical denial experience with suppliers and any

other pertinent available information

In accordance with ASC 605 50 Revenue Recogn/tion Customer

Payments and Incentives performance based rebates are recognized

based on systematic Pstimation of the consideration to be

received relaive to the transaction that marks the progress of the

Company toward earning vendor rebates provided the collection

of the amounts is in the judgment of management reasonably

assured The factors the Company considers in estimating

performance-based rebates include actual and forecasted inventory

purchases or sales volumes in conjunction with vendor rebate

contract terms which generally provide for increasing rebates

based on either increased purchases or sales volume Performance

based rebates are recognized in income only if the related

inventory has been sold

In accordance with ASC 605 50 Revenue Recognition Customer

Payments and Incentives sales incentive arrangements that meet

certain criteria are not recorded as reduction of cost of sales

Accordingly reimbursements from manufacturers under these

arrangements are recognized by the Company as revenue rather

than reduction of cost of sales

Transaction-based and performance based rebate contracts are

negotiated periodically with vendors

The following table summarizes the financial statement impact of

transaction based and performance-based vendor rebates recog

nized by the Company and each of its segments during fiscal years

2011 2010 ahd 2009 Such rebates are classified as either

reduction to cost of goods sold or ii an increase to net sales in

the accompanying Conso/idated Statements of Operations

in thousands

Physician Business 2011 2010 2009

Rebates included within

Net seles 1237 2433 4339

Cost of goods sold 107924 108143 104452

Total $109161 $110576 $108791

Elder Care Business 2011 2010 2009

Rebates included within

Costofgoodssold $108718 $106141 $100934

Total Company 2011 2010 2009

Rebates included within

Net sales 1237 2433 4339

Cost otgoods sold 216642 214284 205386

Total $217879 $21 6717 $209725

Shipping and Handling Costs

Shipping and handling costs billed to customers are included in net

sales and totaled approximately $1 3521 $11383 and $13668 for

fiscal years 2011 20 10 and 2009 respectively Shipping and han

dling costs incurred by the Company which are included in general

and administrative expenses totaled approximately $105334

$104 34 and $102836 for fiscal years 2011 2010 and 2009

respectively

Convertible Debt Instruments

In accordance with ASC 470 20 Debt Oebt with Conversion and

Other Options issuers of convertible debt instruments that may be

settled in cash upon conversion including partial
cash settlements

should separately account for the
liability and equity components in

manner that reflects an estimate of the entitys nonconvertible

debt borrowing rate when interest expense is recognized in sub

sequent periods The equity components of the Companys senior

convertible notes are included in Additional paid in capital in the

Consolidated Balance Sheets with corresponding reduction in the

carrying values of these convertible notes as of the date of issuance

or modification as applicable The reduced carrying values of the

convertible notes are accreted to principal amounts through the

recognition of non-cash interest expense This accretion results in

recognizing interest expense on these borrowings at effective rates

approximating what would have been incurred had the Company

issued nonconvertible debt with otherwise similar terms See Foot

note 12 Debt for additional information

Denvative Financial Instruments

Derivative financial instruments are accounted for under ASC 15

Derivatives and Hedging Accordingly all derivatives are recorded

on the balance sht as assets liabilities and measured at fair

value For derivatives designated as cash flaw hedges the effective

portion of the changes in fair value of the derivatives are recorded

in Accumulated other comprehensive income and subsequently

recognized in earnings when the hedged items impact earnings

typically upon settlement Changes in the fair value of derivatives

not designated as hedges and the ineffective portion of cash flow

hedges are recorded in current earnings
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Guidance within ASC Derivatives and Hedging requires

enhanced disclosures about an entitys derivative and hedging activ

ities including how and why an entity uses derivative instru

ments ii how derivative instruments and related hedged items are

accounted for and its related interpretations and iii how

derivative instruments and related hedged items affect an entitys

financial position financial performance and cash flows

Derivative financial instruments are used principally in the manage

ment of the Companys interest rate exposure During the fiscal

year
ended March 28 2008 the Company entered into an interest

rate swap agreement to hedge the variable interest rate of its

revolving line of credit The interest rate swap was designated as

cash flow hedge.During fiscal year ended April 2010 the inter

est rate swap matured Amounts paid upon maturity of the interest

rate swap agreement were recorded as additions to interest

expense Refer to Footnote Debt for additional information

regarding the Companys interest rate swap agreement

Earnings Per Share

Basic and diluted earnings per share are presented in accordance

with ASC 260 Earnings Per Share Basic earnings per share is

computed by dividing net income by the weighted average number

of common shares outstanding during the period Diluted earnings

per share is computed by dividing net income by the weighted

average number of common and common equivalent shares out

standing during the period adjusted for the potential dilutive effect

of unvested restricted stock and stock options using the treasury

stock method and the conversion of the senior convertible notes

Common equivalent shares are excluded from the computation in

periods in which they have an anti dilutive effect

The following table sets forth computational data for the denomi

nator in the basic and diluted earnings per share calculation for fis

cal years ended April 2011 April 2010 and March 27 2009

in thoussnds 2011 2010 2009

Denominator weighted average shares

outstanding used in computing basic

eamings per share 54996 58029 59937

Assumed exercise of stock optionslk 98 324 425

Assumed vesting of restricted stock 650 14 152

Assumed conversion of 2004 Notes 82

Assumed conversion of 2008 Notes 702 76

Denominator-weighted average shares

outstanding used in computing diluted

eamings per share 56546 58943 60696

There were no antidilutive options outstanding as of April 12011 and Apnl

2010 Options to purchase approximately 200 shares ot common stock that

were outstanding during
fiscal year 2009 were not included in the computation

of diluted eamings per share for each of the respective periods

because the options exercise prices exceeded the avemge fair market value of

the Companys common stock for each fiscal year and therefore inclusion

would be anti dilutive

In accordance with ASC 260 Earnings Per Share and the Compa

nys stated policy of settling the principal amount in cash the

Company is required to include shares underlying the 2008 Notes

in its diluted weighted average shares outstanding due to the aver

age
stock price per

share for the period exceeding $21 .22 the

conversion price for the senior convertible notes during fiscal
year

ended April 2011 Only the number of shares that would be

issuable under the treasury stock method of accounting for share

dilution was included which was based upon the amount by

which the average stock price exceeded the conversion price If the

price of the Companys common stock exceeds $28.29 per share

it will also include the effect of the additional potential shares that

may be issued related to the warrants using the treasury stock

method Prior to conversion the purchased options are not

considered for purposes of dilutive earnings per share calculation as

their effect is considered to be anti dilutive

The Company was required to include
any

shares underlying the

2004 Notes in its diluted weighted average shares outstanding

when the average stock price per
share for the period exceeded

$17 10 the conversion price for the senior convertible notes The

average price of the Companys common stock during the fiscal

year ended March 27 2009 exceeded the 2004 Notes conversion

price of $17.10 As such potential common shares were included

in the calculation of diluted weighted average shares outstanding

No shares related to the 2004 Notes were included in the calcu

lation of diluted weighted average shares outstanding during fiscal

years ending April 2011 and April 2010 as the notes were

retired

Stack Based Compensatian

Effective April 2006 the Company adopted the provisions of

ASC Cam pensatian Stock Campensatian ASC using

the modified prospective transition method and therefore has not

restated results for prior periods The Company applies the fair

value recognition provisions of the guidance as it relates to the

Companys stock based compensation which requires the Com

pany to recognize expense for the fair value of stock based com

pensation awards Refer to Footnote Incentive and Stock Based

Cam pensatian for additional information

Comprehensive Incame

Comprehensive income represents all changes in equity of an enter

prise that result from recognized transactions and other economic

events during the period Other comprehensive income refers to

revenues expenses gains and losses that under GAAP are

included in comprehensive income but excluded from net income

Part II Item
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such as the unreahzed gain or loss on the interest rate swap and

unrealized holding gain or loss on available for sale investments

Morketoble Securities

As of April 2011 the Company held no investment in available

for sale securities Equity securities previously held by the company

were considered to be available for sale and carried at fair value as

of the balance sheet dates Fair values were based on quoted

market prices

Realized gains and losses on the sale of investments were

determined on the basis of the cost of the specific investments sold

and were credited or charged to income on trade date basis

Unrealized gains or losses on equity securities which were classified

as available for sale net of applicable deferred income taxes

benefits were excluded from earnings and credited or charged

directly to separate component of stockholders equity

Recent Accounting Pronouncement

During fiscal year 2011 the Company adopted new accounting

standard that changes the consolidation model for VIEs Variable

interest entities are entities in which equity investors lack the char

acteristics of controlling financial interest or do not have sufficient

equity at risk to finance the entitys activities without additional

subordinated financial support VIEs are consolidated by the
pri

mary beneficiary defined as the party which has the power to

direct those activities that most significantly impact the entitys

economic performance and ii has an obligation to absorb an enti

tys losses or right to receive benefits from an entity that could be

potentially significant to the entity The standard requires ongoing

reassessments to determine whether an enterprise is the primary

beneficiary of VIE The standard expands the disclosure require

ments for enterprises with variable interest in VIE See Footnote

Vorioble Interest Entity for additional disclosures

In October 2009 Financial Accounting Standards Board FASB
issued an Accounting Standards Update ASU for multiple deliv

erable revenue arrangements The update requires entities to allo

cate revenue in an arrangement using estimated selling prices of the

delivered goods and seniices based on selling price hierarchy The

update eliminates the residual method of revenue allocation and

requires revenues to be allocated using the relative
selling price

method The Company will adopt this update prospectively for

revenue arrangements entered into or materially modified begin

ning in the first quarter of fiscal year 2012 The Company has eval

uated this standard and determined it will not have material effect

on the Companys statements of financial condition or results of

operations

In July 2010 the FASB issued an ASU which amended accounting

guidance for receivables to require further disaggregated dis

closures that improve financial statement users understanding of

the nature of an entitys credit risk associated with its financing

receivables and ii the entitys assessment of that risk in estimating

its allowance for credit losses as well as changes in the allowance

and the reasons for those changes The new and amended dis

closures as of the end of reporting period are effective for

interim and annual reporting periods ending on or after

December IS 2010 The Company has adopted this standard with

no material effect As of January 2011 the portion of this update

related to the disclosure of troubled debt restructurings had been

deferred until Board deliberations are complete

In December 201 the FASB issued new accounting standard

that provided guidance on supplementary pro forma information

for business combinations for which the acquisition date is on or

after the beginning of the first annual reporting period beginning on

or after December IS 2010 While not impacting the disclosure of

pro forma information the new standard changes the way such

information is calculated Specifically consolidated revenue and

earnings would be determined as if the business combination

occurred as of the beginning of the comparable prior annual

reporting period This method is consistent with guidance set forth

by the SEC Additionally the standard required qualitative dis

rlostjres around the n2ture 2nd amount of material nonreriirring

pro forma adjustments directly attributable to business combina

tions The Company has elected to early adopt this standard See

Footnote Purchose Businesses Combinotions for further dis

cussion

Purchose Business Combinotions

Acquisitions were accounted for under the purchase method of

accounting accordingly the operations of the acquired companies

have been included in the Companys results of operations sub

sequent to the date of acquisition The assets acquired and

liabilities assumed were recorded at their estimated fair values at

the date of the acquisition as determined by management based on

information currently available and independent valuations

The fair value of contingent consideration was determined using

projected achievement of the earnings targets See Footnote Foir

Volue Meosurements for further discussion

Fiscol Yeor 2011

Lineor Acquisition

On November 15 2010 the Physician Business acquired the assets

of Linear Medical Solutions Inc Linear for an initial purchase

price of $11536 net of cash received Linear markets proprietary

system to primary care physicians for dispensing medications to

patients on site within their practices Net sales and net income

attributable to Linear since the acquisition on November 2010

were $30304 and $1250 respectively
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During the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2011 the fair value

measurements of assets acquired and liabilities assumed as of the

acquisition date were revised The Company paid an additional

$2336 related to the working capital adjustments Payments total

ing $13872 net of cash received of $359 were made during the

fiscal year ended April 2011 of which $1000 was held in escrow

to secure any adjustments or claims Additional consideration rang

ing from $0 to $4000 may be paid based on the achievement of

future eamings targets over two year period Goodwill

representing intangible assets of Linear that do not qualify for sepa

rate recognition is
fully tax deductible The Company acquired

inventmry nf $3099 as adjusted and trade rcivables with fair

value and gross contractual value of $8939

051 Acquisition

On january 19 2011 the Company purchased 100% of the out

standing stock of Dispensing Solutions Inc 051 formerly pri

vately held company based in California which markets

proprietary system to primary care physicians for dispensing medi

cations to patients on-site within their practices Net sales and net

income attributable to 051 since the date of acquisition were

$6595 and $566 respectively

Payments totaling $35 199 net of cash received of $801 were

made during the fiscal year ended April 2011 of which $5400

was held in escrow to secure any adjustments or claims Additional

consideration ranging from $0 to $6000 may be paid based on the

achievement of future eamings targets over one year period

Goodwill representing intangible assets of 051 that do not qualify

for separate recognition is not tax deductible The Company

acquired inventory of $2361 and trade receivables with fair value

and gross contractual value of $26

The following table summarizes the estimated fair values of the

assets acquired and liabilities assumed at the date of the Linear and

051 acquisitions as adjusted

in thousands DSI

Current assets $12711 6458

Goodwill 3816 26747

Customer relationship intangible to year life 100 10000

Non compete agreement year life 500 480

Non solicitation agreements 1098

Tradename 840 590

Non current assets 1734 2090

Accounts payable 5068 2226
Non current liabilities 2639
Contingent consideration 3500 5500

Net assets acquired $1 423 $36000

increased decreased as follows Current assess $82 Non current assets

$58 Goodwill $2369 Accounts
Payable $107

The following table presents unaudited pro forma financial

information as if the closing of the acquisitions of Linear and 051

had occurred on the first day of fiscal year 2010 or March 28

2009 after giving effect to certain purchase accounting adjustments

inthousands 2011 2010

Net sales

PSS World Medical Inc as reported $2034789 $2055 171

Supplemental Net Sales Linear 53339 70633

Supplemental Net Sales 051 24543 2206/

Total Pro Forma Net Sales $2112671 $2 147871

Net income attributed to P55 World

Medical Inc

PSS World Medical Inc as reported 74485 69363

Supplemental Net Income Linear 2711 2744

Supplemental Income DSI 892 623

Total Pro Forma Net Income 78088 71484

Net income per common share

Basic 1.42 1.23

Diluted 1.38 1.21

Pro forma information is not necessarily indicative of the results of

operations that actually would have resulted had the DSI and

Linear acquisition occurred on the date indicated above or that

may result in the future and does not reflect potential synergies

integration costs or other such costs and savings

Other Acquisitions

During fiscal years 2011 2010 and 2009 the Company completed

acquisitions with an aggregate purchase price of approximately

$1 6863 $14802 and $3744 respectively which were deemed

immaterial for additional disclosure individually or in the aggregate

As of April 2011 and April 2010 the Company recognized

goodwill including acquisition related adjustments of approx

imately $1 83 and $9003 respectively

Voriobie interest Entity

On June 25 2010 the Company entered into an agreement with

Pathway Health Services Inn Pathway cnnsulting srvics

company within the Elder Care market under which the Company

purchased $3.3 million convertible note issued by Pathway The

note may be converted at the Companys discretion into 73% of

Pathways common stock The Company also acquired call option

and issued put option for Pathways common stock both of

which may be exercised if certain sales thresholds are met and time

restrictions lapse Under the agreement the Company obtained

Fair value measurements of assets
acquired

and liabilities assumed as of the

acquisition
date were adjusted as the purchase accounting was incomplete

Measurements were
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majority of seats and control of Pathways Board of Directors The

convertible note is considered variable interest and the Company

was determined to be the primary beneficiary of Pathway

The Company has consolidated Pathway under the purchase

method of accounting and recorded noncontrolling interest under

current accounting guidance for consolidations The consolidated

assets and liabilities operating results and cash flows of Pathway are

not considered significant to the Companys financial position

operating results or cash flows Pathways assets cannot be used to

settle the Companys obligations and Pathways creditors have no

recourse to the general credit of the Company

The Company also holds an additional variable interest in an entity

not considered material for disclosure

Fair Value Measurements

Accounting standards on fair value measurement provides frame

work for measuring fair value expands disclosures about fair value

measurements and establishes fair value hierarchy which
priori

tizes the inputs used in measuring fair value summarized as follows

Level Inputs using unadjusted quoted prices for identical assets

or liabilities in an active market that the Company has the
ability

to access

Level Inputs other than quoted prices in markets that are

observable for the asset or liability
either directly or indirectly

Level Inputs that are both significant to the fair value measure

ment and unobservable

As of April 2011 the fair value of the Companys financial assets

and/or liabilities are measured using Level or Level inputs The

following table presents the Companys assets and liabilities which

are measured at fair value as of fiscal years ended April 1201 and

April 2010 by level within the fair value hierarchy

In thousands

April 12011 Level Level Level Total

Assets

Conversion option on VIE

convertible notela 845 845

Liabilities

Deterred compensationlb $84 165 $84 65

Contingent considerationc 10155 10155

Totalliabilfties $84165.. $10155
..

April
2010 Level Level Level Total

Liabilities

Deferred compensationlb $69263 $69263

Contingent considerationc IS 1715

Total liabilities $69263 1715 $70978

Represents the Companys conversion option to acquire 73c of the

outstanding common stock in the Companys consolidated VIE which is

located in Other ossets on the Compan/s Consolidoted Bolonce Sheets See

Footnote Vorioble Interest
Entity

for further information The conversion

option was calculated
using an intemal model that utilizes as its basis

unobservable inputs including estimated interest rates based upon the

estimated market interest rate which the VIE would have
paid on high

yield note in hhe open market The remaining investment in Pathway has

been eliminated in consolidation

Represents the Companys obligation to pay benefits under its

non qualified
deferred compensation plans which is included in Other

noncunent liobilities on the Companys Consolidoted Bolonce Sheets The

obligation
to pay benefits is based on participants allocation percenhages

to plan investments The investments are measured
using quoted market

prices

Represents the estimated fair value of the additional variable cash

consideration payable in connestion with the Companys acquisitions that

are contingent upon the achievement of certain performance milestones

The Company estimated the fair value
using expested future cash flows

over the period in which the obligations are expested to be settled and

applied discount rate that appropriately captures market participants

view of the risk associated with the obligation The liabilities are included in

Other current hobilities and Other noncurrent hobilities on the Companys

Consolidoted Bolonce Sheets depending on the period of expested payout

The following table surriniarizes the change ri the fair value for

Level instruments for the fiscal year 2011

Level

Instruments

Assets

Balance April
2010

Additions 947

Fair value adjustment included in eamings 102

Balance April
2011 845

Liabilities

Balance April 2010 1715

Additions 9150

Settlement of obligation 875
Fair value adjustment included in eamings 6S

BalanceApr/l 12011 $10155

The Company has applied the requirement of ASC 820 Fair Value

Measurement and Disclasure with respect to nonfinancial assets and

liabilities not measured at fair value on recurring basis with no

material effect The standard requires fair value disclosure of such

nonfinancial assets only when there is an indication of potential

impairment See Footnote Summary af S/gnificant Accaunfing Pall

oes for disclosure of fair value of financial instruments

The carrying amounts of the Companys current financial instru

ments including cash and cash equivalents short term trade receiv

ables and accounts payable approximate their fair values due to

the short term nature of these assets and liabilities The gross carry

ing value of the Companys 2008 Notes as of April 12011 and
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April 2010 was $230000 and the fair value which is estimated

using third party valuation model was approximately $323800

and $285800

Equity investment

On june 29 2007 the Company made $24064 investment

including $1564 of legal and other professional fees in athena

health Inc athena leading provider of internet based health

care information technology and business services to physician

practices During fiscal years 2010 and 2009 the Company sold its

investment in athena resulting in gain of approximately $3635

or $2260 net of tax and $444 or $275 net of tax respectively

This gain was determined on specific identification method and

recognized in Other income on the Consofidoted Stotement of Oper

otions Proceeds of $1 068 were received during and related to

sale in fiscal year 2010 and proceeds of $22098 were received

during fiscal year 2009

Goodwiii

Property ond Equipment

Property and equipment are summarized as follows

As of

2011 2010

Computer hardware under capital leases 2516 2601

Office equipment under
capital

leases 452 452

Leasehold improvements 18717 17342

Equipment 31492 28552

Computer hardware and software 191459 173853

Property and equipment grncc 244636 222200

Accumulated depreciation 142235 117580

Property and equipment net 102401 105220

Depreciation expense which includes amortization of capital

leases is included in Generoi ond odministrotive expenses in the

accompanying Consolidoted Stotements of Operobons and

approximated $25065 $2 1940 and $20002 for fiscal years

2011 2010 and 2009 respectively

The change in the carrying value of goodwill for the fiscal years ended April 2011 and April 2010 were as follows

Physician Elder Care

Business Business

Corporate

Shared

Services Total

Balance as of March 27 2009 $30.60 $82167 $112768

Purchase business combinations 956 7066 8022

Purchase price allocation adjustments 136 846 982

Balance as of April 2010 $31693 $90079 $121772

Purchase business combinations 40500 40500

Purchase price allocation adjustments 35 21 35

Purchase of variable interest entity
..

2687 2687

Balance as of
April

2011 $74328 $92766 $167094
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10 Intangibles Net

The following table summarizes the gross carrying amount and accumulated amortization for existing intangible assets by business segment

and major asset class

As ot

April 12011 ApnI 2010

Gross Gross

Carrying Accumulated
Carrying Accumulated

Amount Amortization Net Amount Amortization Net

INTANGIBLES SUBJECT TO AMORTIZATION

Customer Relationships

Physician Business $24390 4423 $19967 9585 4232 5353

Elder Care Business 11669 7484 4185 171 B2 .880 5302

36059 11907 24152 26767 16112 0655

Nonsolicitation Agreements

Physician Business 8475 4444 403 0783 6762 4021

Elder Care Business 424 188 236 44B 139 309

8899 4632 4267 123 6901 4330

Noncompetition Agreements

Physician Business 3042 311 2731 645 437 20B

Elder Care Business 3179 768 2411 3140 732 240B

Corporate Shared Services 1916 1105 811 1691 449 14
8137 2184 5953 5476 1618 3B5B

Signing Bonuses

Physician Business 580 317 263 73 435 296

Elder Care Business 26 12 14

Co morale Shared Services
..

.Z

606 329 277 75B 453 305

Total
intangible

assets subject to amortization $53701 19052 $34649 $44232 $250B4 $19 4B

INTANGIBLES NOT SUBJECT TO AMORTIZATION

Tradename

Physician Business 6830 6830 5400 5400

Elder Care Business 400 400

7230 7230 5400 5400

Total unamortized
intangible

assets 7230 7230 5400 5400

Total intangibleassets $60931 19052 $41879 $49632 $250B4 $24548

Total amortization expense for intangible assets for the fiscal years ended April 2011 April 2010 and March 27 2009 was $6378

$5 21 and $5489 respectively
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The estimated amortization expense for the next five fiscal years is

as follows

Fiscal Year

2012 7696

2013 6380

2014 5985

2015 5749

2016 4559

Thereafter 4280

Total $34649

The remaining weighted average amortization period in total and

by major asset class is as follows

in years April 12011 April 22010

Customer relationships 5.5 6.3

Nonsolicitation agreements 9.5 7.0

Noncompetition agreements 4.0 3.8

Signing bonuses 1.4 2.3

Total weighted average amortization

period 4.8 5.9

Accrued Expenses

Accrued expenses as of April 2011 and April 2010 were as

follows

As of

2011 2010

Accrued
payroll $14486 $14848

Accrued incentive compensation 8085 179 12

Other 14604 17493

Accrued expenses $37175 $50253

Debt

April 12011 April22010

2004 Nbtes 20

2008 Notes 195643 187101

Capital lease obligations 780 701

Total debt 196423 88822

Less Current portion of debt 761 88

Longterm debt $195662 $187941

2004 Notes

On March IS 2009 holders of$ 149.98 million in principal face

value of 2.25% senior convertible notes exercised the put option

requiringthe Companyto purchasethe notes at 100% ofthe

principle amount plus accrued interest resulting in payment of

approximately $15 .7 million during the year ended

March 27 2009 To fund the repurchase the Company used

approximately $101 .7 million in available cash on hand from the

issuance of $230.0 million of 3.125% senior convertible notes and

$50.0 million from its asset based revolving line of credit

As of April 2011 the Company has deferred income tax

liability of$17316 tax effected related to interest deductions

taken for tax purposes on its 2004 Notes The
liability

will be

deferred and paid ratably from fiscal year 20 to fiscal year 20

in accordance with the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act

of 2009 and is classified in Other Noncurrent on the Con-

so//doted Bolonce Sheets

2008 Notes

In August 2008 the Company issued $230.0 million principal

amount of 3.125% senior convertible notes 2008 Notes which

mature on August 2014 Interest on the notes is payable semi

annually in arrears on February and August of each year The

notes will be convertible into cash
up to the principal amount of

the notes and shares of the Companys common stock for any

conversion value in excess of the principal amount under the fol

lowing circumstances if the Company has called the notes for

redemption ii in the event of fundamental change as defined in

the indenture such as merger acquisition or liquidation Ui on

or after May 2014 and prior to the close of business on the

second scheduled trading day immediately preceding August

2014 iv prior to May 20 14 during the five consecutive busi

ness day period following any five consecutive trading day period in

which the trading price for note for each day of that trading

period is less than 98% of the closing sale price of the Companys

common stock on such corresponding trading day multiplied by the

applicable conversion rate prior to May 2014 during any

calendar quarter after September 30 2008 in which the closing sale

price of the Companys common stock for at least 20 of the 30

consecutive trading days ending the day prior to such quarter is

greater than 30c of the applicable conversion price of $21 .22 per

share Contingent Conversion Trigger or vi upon certain

specified corporate events as discussed in the indenture governing

the notes

note holder may not exercise its conversion right with respect to

all or any portion of note if such conversion would cause the

note holder to become beneficial owner of more than 9.9% of

the Companys outstanding voting stock The initial conversion rate

is 47 342 shares of common stock per
each $1 in thousands

principal amount of notes and is equivalent to an initial conversion

price of $21 .22 per share The conversion rate is subject to

adjustment upon the occurrence of certain events If the notes

were converted as of April 2011 the if converted value would

exceed the principal amounts of the 2008 Notes by $64546

As of April 2011 and April 2010 the fair value of the 2008

Notes was approximately $323800 and $285800 respectively

Port /1 Item

Outstanding debt consists of the following in order of priority

As of
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The ability of note holders to convert is assessed on quarterly

basis and is dependent on the trading price of the Companys stock

during the last 30 trading days of each quarter The Contingent

Conversion Trigger was not met during the three months ended

April 2011 therefore the notes may not be converted during

the Companys first quarter of fiscal year 2011

The Company used portion of the net proceeds of the offering

to repurchase approximately $35.0 million of its common stock in

privately negotiated transactions with institutional investors con

currently with this offering See Stock Repurchase Program in

Footnote 14 Equity for additional information The Company used

$101 .7 million of the net proceeds during fiscal year 2009 when

holders of the 2004 Notes required the Company to redeem

approximately all of their outstanding notes plus accrued interest

Remaining proceeds were used for general corporate purposes

Convertib/e Note Hedge Tronsoctions

In connection with the offering of the notes the Company also

entered into convertible note hedge transactions with respect to its

common stock the purchased options with major financial

institution the counterparty The Company paid an aggregate

amount of $54 million to the counterparty for the purchased

options The purchased options cover subject to anti dilution

adjustments substantially identical to those in the notes approx

imately 10.8 million shares of common stock at strike price that

corresponds to the initial conversion price of the notes also sub

ject to adjustment and are exercisable at each conversion date of

the notes The purchased options will expire upon the earlier of

the last day the notes remain outstanding or the second

scheduled trading day immediately preceding the maturity date of

the notes

The purchased options are intended to reduce the potential dilu

tion upon conversion of the notes in the event that the market

value per share of the common stock as measured under the

notes at the time of exercise is greater than the conversion price

of the notes The options have been accounted for as an adjust

ment to the Companys equity net of deferred tax assets of $2 .0

million

The purchased options are separate transactions entered into by

the Company with the counterparty and are not part of the terms

of the notes Holders of the notes will not have any rights with

respect to the purchased options

Worront Tronsoctions

The Company also entered into warrant transactions the

warrants whereby the Company sold to the counterparty war

rants in an aggregate amount of $25.4 million to acquire subject to

anti dilution adjustments up to 10.8 million shares of common

stock at strike price of $28.29 per
share of common stock also

subject to adjustment The warrants will expire after the purchased

options in approximately ratable portions on series of expiration

dates commencing on November 2014

if the market value per share of the common stock as measured

under the warrants exceeds the strike price of the warrants the

warrants will have dilutive effect on the Companys earnings per

share The warrants have been accounted for as an adjustment to

the Companys equity and recorded in Additiono/ poid in copitol on

the Consolidoted Bolonce Sheets

The warrants are separate transactions entered into by the Com

pany with the counterparties and are not part of the terms of the

notes Holders of the notes do not have any rights with respect to

the warrants
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Convertible Debt Accounting Chonge

On March 28 2009 the Company adopted ASC 470 20 Debt Debt with Conversion ond Other Options ASC 470 20 which required

retrospective restatement See Footnote Summory of Signiflcont Accounting Policies The following illustrates the impact of adopting the

guidance on the Consolidoted Stotement of Operotions for the fiscal year ended March 27 2009

For the Fiscal Year 2009

in thousands except per share amounts .. ...

As

Chginally Effect of As

Reported ASC 470 20 Adjusted

Income from operations

Other expense
...

$101145 218 $100927

87 10314 17211

Income before provision for income taxes

Provision for income taxes

94248 10532 83716

36232 4002 32230

Net income 58016 6530 51486

Net income aifributable to P55 World Medical Inc 58016 6530 51486

Eamings per common share attdbutable to P55 World Medical Inc

Basic

Diluted

097 0.11 0.86

0.96 0.11 0.85

The debt discount associated with the 2008 Notes will be amortized over periods that end on the scheduled maturity date and result in

effective interest rates of approximately 8.25% The effective interest rate for the 2004 Notes was approximately 6.75% For the fiscal years

ended April 2011 ended April 2010 and March 27 2009 interest expense was $7 171 $728 and $7925 based on the contractual

coupon rates while debt discount amurtization was $8543 $7948 and $11044 respectively

The principal balances unamortized discounts and net carrying amounts of the liability components and the equity components for the

Companys 2008 Notes as of April 2011 and April 2010 are as follows

Liability Component Equity Component

Net

in thousands Principal Unamortized Canying Carrying Amount
2008 Balance Discount Amount Pretaxit

April 12011 $230000 $34357 $195643 $55636

April 22010 $230000 $42899 $187101 $55636

The Company recognized deferred tax
liability

of $20523 related to the issuance of the 2008 Notes

Revolving Line of Credit

The Company maintains an asset-based revolving line of credit

the RLOC which matures on September 30 2012 In accord

ance with ASC 470 Debt Overoll borrowings under the

RLOC are classified as current
liability

The Credit Agreement

permits maximum borrowings of up to $200.0 million which may

be increased to $250.0 million Availability of borrowings

Availability depends upon borrowing base calculation consist

ing of accounts receivable and inventory subject to satisfaction of

certain
eligibility requirements less any outstanding letters of credit

Borrowings under the RLOC bear interest at the banks prime rate

plus an applicable margin based on fixed charge coverage ratio

or at LIBOR plus an applicable margin based on fixed charge

coverage ratio Additionally the RLOC bears interest at fixed

rate of 0.25% for any unused portion of the
facility

Under the RLOC the Company and its subsidiaries are subject to

certain covenants including but not limited to limitations on

paying dividends and repurchasing the Companys common

stock selling or transferring assets hi making certain invest

ments including acquisitions iv incurring additional indebtedness

and liens and annual capital expenditures However these

covenants may not apply if the Company maintains sufficient

Availability under the credit
facility

Borrowings under the RLOC are anticipated to fund future

requirements for working capital capital expenditures acquisitions

repurchases of the Companys common stock and the issuance of

letters of credit

There were no outstanding borrowings under the RLOC as of

April 2011 and April 2010 After reducing Availability for
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outstanding borrowings and lester of credit commitments the

Company has sufficient assets based on eligible accounts receivable

and inventory to borrow an additional $200.0 million excluding

the additional increase of $50.0 million under the RLOC Average

daily borrowings during fiscal years 2011 and 2010 were $3.8 mil

lion and $44.2 million respectively hypothetical 1% increase

decrease in prevailing interest rates as of April 2011 would

result in corresponding increasedecrease in interest expense of

less than $0.1 million The average daily interest rate excluding

debt issuance costs and unused line fees for the fiscal years ended

April 2011 April 2010 and March 27 2009 was 2.37%

4.02% arid 4.00% respectively

Interest Rate Swap Agreement

Changes in interest rates affect interest payments under the

Companys variable rate RLOC During fiscal year 2008 the

Company entered into an interest rate swap agreement which

matured on February 19 2010 The Company did not extend or

enter into new swap agreement and as such this agreement has

expired The purpose
of the swap agreement was to hedge the

variable interest rate of its RLOC as such the interest rate swap

effectively fixed the interest rate on portion of the revolving line

of credit to 2.70% plus an applicable margin as determined by the

RLOC

The interest rate swap with notional amount of $50.0 million

was designated as cash flow hedge therefore changes in fair

value were recognized in Accumulated other comprehensive income

in the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets Under the terms

of the interest rate swap agreement the Company made monthly

payments based on the fixed rate and received interest payments

based on month LIBOR The changes in market value of these

financial instruments were highly correlated with changes in market

value of the hedged item both at inception and over the lives of

the agreements Amounts received or paid under these interest

rate swap agreements were recorded as reductions or additions to

interest expense

The interest rate swap was disclosed in the Consolidated Statements

of Equity as follows

Denvatives in Cash Flow

Hedging Relationships Impact Recognized in OCI tram Denvative

in thousands Effective Portion

April 12011 April 2.2019 March 27 2009

Interest rate swap net of tax $SSi $35

Capital Lease Obligations

The Company leases certain computer hardware and office equip

ment at an aggregate annual rental of approximately $762 The

equipment is capitalized at its fair market value which approx

imates the present value of the future minimum lease payments

and is amortized over the useful life of the asset The following

table is schedule by year of future minimum lease payments

under capital leases together with the present value of the net

minimum lease payments as of April 2011

Fiscal Year

2012 $761

2013 19

2014

Total minimum lease payments 780

Less amount representing interest

Present value ot net minimum lease payments $754

13 Income Taxes

Income tax disclosures in this footnote relating to fiscal year 2009

have been retrospectively adjusted for the impact of adopting ASC

470-20 Debt Debt with Conversion and Other Options as discussed

in Footnote 12 Debt The provision for income taxes from continu

ing operations is detailed below

2011 2010 2009

Current tax provision

Federal $36384 $429 19 $23233

State 4926 6112 3064

.Ttal current provision 413.0 49031 26297

Deterred tax benefit provision

Federal 2863 7234 5242

State 388 1030 691

Total deterred benefit

provision 3251 8264 5933

Total income tax provision $44561 $40767 $32230

Total income tax expense
for the

years
ended April

2011 April 2010 and March 27 2009 was allocated as follows

2011 2010 2009

Tax expense per Consolidated

statements of operations $44561 $40767 $32230

Other comprehensive income

Unrealized holding gains on equity

secunties recognized for financial

reporting purposes 1342 29
Unrealized losses on interest rate

swap recognized tar financial

reporting purposes 339 21

Total income tax expense benefit

allocated to other comprehensive

income 1003 245
Benefit for compensation expense tar tax

purposes in excess at amounts

recognized tar financial reporting

purposes 3273 25 1700

Total income tax expense $41288 $37248 $30285

page 67



Port II Item

The difference between income tax computed at the Federal stat

utory rate and the actual tax provision is shown below

2011 2010 2009

Income from operations before

orovision for income taxes $119225 $110130 $83116

Tax provision at the 35% statutory rate 41729 38546 29301

Increase decrease in taxes

State income tax net of Federal

benefit 3454 3304 2427

Other net 622 1083 502

Total increase in taxes 2832 2221 2929

Total incme tax provision 44561 40767 $32230

Effective tax rate 7.4% 37.0% 8.5%

As of April 12011 and April 22010 the Company recorded an

income tax payable of$ 1233 and $237 respectively related to

current income tax filings

Deferred income taxes for fiscal years 2011 and 2010 reflect the

impact of temporary differences between the financial statement

and tax basis of assets and liabilities The tax effect of temporary

differences which create deferred tax assets and liabilities as of

April 2011 and April 2010 are detailed below

2011 2010

Deferred tax assets

Deferred compensation 1649 1050

Original issue discount on 2008 Notes 13197 6438

Net operating loss and tax credit

carrytorwards 4722 5554

Allowance for doubtful accounts and sales

retums 7418 5079

Accrued expenses and incentive

compensation 8927 10734

Inventory uniform cost capitalization 3725 3504

Inventory obsolescence 2305 1789

Other 733 735

Gross deferred tax assets 72676 74883

Deferred tax liabilities

Excess of tax depreciation over book

depreciation 25548 22608
lntrstnn 2004 Nntc 17316 17389
Discount on 2008 Notes related to ASC

470 20 12822 16078
Excess of tax amortization over book

amortization 11043 123

Other 703 646

Gross deferred tax liabilities 67432 63844

Deferred tax assets net 5244 11039

The deferred tax accounts as of April 2011 and April 2010

include current deferred income tax assets of $20533 and

5629 respectively included in Current ossets and noncurrent

deferred income tax liabilities of 5289 and $4590 respectively

included in Other noncurrent liobilities

As of April 2011 and April 2010 the Company had federal

and state net operating loss NOL carryforwards resulting in

deferred tax assets of $4593 and $5245 respectively The federal

NOL carryforzvards result in deferred tax assets as of April 2011

and April 2010 of $3286 and $378 respectively which expire

between 2025 to 2028 The state NOL carryforwards result in

deferred tax assets as of April 2011 and April 2010 of $1307

and $1464 respectively which expire in 201 to 2028 Manage

ment expects to utilize these NOL carryforwards prior to their

expiration

Management believes it is more likely than not that the deferred

tax assets will be realized through the reversal of existing deferred

tax liabilities and future taxable income and therefore no valuation

allowance has been recorded as of April 1201

The Company has not provided for U.S income taxes on accumu

lated and undistdbuted earnings attributable to foreign operations

as the Company intends to permanently reinvest these undis

tdbuted eamings These earnings relate to ongoing operations and

were $10547 and $6429 as of April 2011 and April 2010

respectively

reconciliation of the beginning and ending amount of

unrecognized tax benefits is as follows

Unrecognized Tax Benefits as of March 27 2009 $1670

Gross Increases for tax positions of prior years 201

Gross Decreases for tax positions of prior years 648
Gross Increases for tax positions of current year 369

Lapse of Statute of Limitations 26

Unrecognized Tax Benefits as of Apnl 2010 1466

Gross Increases for tax positions of prior years 295

Lapse of Statute of Limitations 284

Unrecognized Tax Benefits as of
April 12011 $1477

The Company classifies intrest and penalties related tn income tax

matters as component of income tax expense
As of April

2011 and April 22010 the Company had $179 and $127 of

accrued interest related to uncertain tax positions respectively

The total amount of unrecognized tax benefits that would affect

the effective income tax rate if recognized is $1 142 as of April

2011 The unrecognized tax benefit with respect to certain of the
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Companys tax positions may increase or decrease over the next

twelve months however management does not expect the

change if any to have material effect on the Companys financial

position or results of operations within the next twelve months

The Company files United States federal income tax return and

income tax returns in various states and foreign jurisdictions With

limited exceptions the Company is no longer subject to income

tax examinations for years prior to the fiscal year ended March 30

2007

During fiscal year 2011 the IRS began an examination of the

companys federal income tax return for the fiscal year ended

March 27 2009 Whiledhe Company is not presently aware of any

proposed adjustments it remains ongoing and therefore the

Company cannot determine at this time the impact this examina

tion will have on the Companys financial condition or results of

operations

14 Equity

Stock Pepurchose Pro groms

The Company repurchases its common stock under stock

repurchase programs authorized by the Companys Board

Directors As of April 2011 there were 3.4 million shares avail

able for repurchase under existing stock repurchase programs

From time to time the Companys Board of Directors authorizes

the purchase of its outstanding common shares Depending on

current market conditions and other factors the Company is

authorized to repurchase determined amount of its total com

mon stock Repurchases can be made in the open market privately

negotiated transactions and other transactions that will be dis

closed publicly through filings
with the SEC This authorization is in

addition to any shares remaining available under existing

repurchase programs

The following table summarizes the common stock repurchases

and Board of Directors authorizations during fiscal years 2011

201 2009 as well as the shares available for repurchase under the

stock repurchase program as of April 2011 April

2010 March 27 2009 and March 28 2008

in thousands Number of
.hares

Shares available for repurchase at March 28 2008 403

Shares authorized for repurchase 3092

Shares repurrhased Ot77

Shares available for repurchase at March 27 2009

Shares authorized for repurchase 5966

5hares..repurchased 2767

Shares available for repurchase at April 2010 33 17

Shares authorized for repurchase 2763

Shares repurchased 2728

Shares available for repurchase at April 2011 3352

During fiscal year 2011 the Company repurchased approximately

2.7 million shares of common stock at an average price of $20.07

per common share for approximately $54761 During fiscal year

2010 the Company repurchased approximately 2.8 million shares

of common stock at an average price of $20.66 per common share

for approximately $57176

15 /ncentive ond Stock bosed Compensot/on

Equity /ncentive Plons

The Company has equity incentive plans for the benefit of certain

officers directors and employees The Cunipensation Comirettee

of the Board of Directors has the discretion to make grants under

these plans in the form of incentive stock options nonqualified

stock options stock appreciation rights restricted stock perform

ance units dividend equivalents other stock based awards or

other rights or interests relating to common stock or cash

On June 2006 the Board of Directors approved the PSS World

Medical Inc 2006 Incentive Plan the 2006 Plan stock

incentive plan under which equity may be granted to the Compa

n/s off cers directors and employees The 2006 Plan became

effective as of August 24 2006 the date on which shareholders

approved the plan The 2006 Plan replaced the 1999 Long Term

Incentive Plan and the 999 Broad-Based Employee Stock Plan

collectively the Prior Plans Grants under the 2006 Plan may be

made in the form of incentive stock options nonqualified stock

options stock appreciation rights restricted stock restricted or

deferred stock units performance awards dividend equivalents

performance based cash awards and other stock-based awards

Subject to adjustment as provided in the plan the aggregate

number of shares of common stock reserved and available for issu

ance pursuant to awards granted under the 2006 Plan is approx

imately 2154 as of April 2011

In addition to the 2006 Plan the Company maintains the

2004 Non-Employee Directors Compensation Plan the

2004 Directors Plan which permits the grant of restricted stock

to the Companys non employee directors Subject to adjustment

as provided in the plan the aggregate number of shares of com

mon stock reserved and available for issuance pursuant to awards

granted under the 2004 Directors Plan is approximately 248 as of

April 2011 It is the Companys policy to issue shares of common

stock upon exercise of stock options or the grant of restricted

stock from those shares reserved for issuance under the stock

incentive plans
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Outstanding stock based awards granted under equity incentive

plans are as follows

in thousands
April 12011 Apni2 2010 March 272009

Stock optionsa 220 558 1306

Restricted stock@ 830 969 1015

Restricted stock unitsa 670 593 221

feed stockyit is

Total outstanding stock

based awards 1735 2131 2551

Amounts are excluded from shares of common stock issued and

outstanding Amounts for Performance Share units are based on the

Companys current estimate of shares expected to vest

Amounts are included in shares of common stock issued and outstanding

on the face of the balance sheet and in
calculating weighted average shares

outstanding but are not considered outstanding for accounting purposes

until restrictions lapse

ASC 71 requires companies to recognize the cost of employee

seniices received in exchange for awards of equity instruments in

the financial statements based on the grant date fair value of those

awards net of estimated forfeitures over the awards vesting pen

od ASC 71 requires forfeitures to be estimated at the time of

grant and adjusted if

necessary
in subsequent periods if actual for

feitures differ from those estimates When estimating forfeitures

the Company considers voluntary termination behaviors as well as

trends of actual equity based awards forfeited

Stock Option Awords

On June 2008 the Compensation Committee of the Companys

Board of Directors approved retention award of 200 stock

options under the Companys 2006 Incentive Stock Plan to the

Companys former Chairman and Chief Executive Officer The

stock options awarded were to cliff vest on the five-year anniver

sary of the grant date

The fair value of stock options granted was estimated as of the

date of grant using Black Scholes option-pricing model with the

following weighted average assumptions

2009

Expected stock
price volatility 29%

Risk-free interest rate 3.9400

Expected term of options years 10

The risk free interest rate used in the calculation is the rate that

corresponds to the weighted average expected life on an option

The expected term of the options granted is derived from the

expiration date of the options Expected volatilities are based upon

historical volatilities of the Companys shares Based on these

assumptions the estimated fair value of the options granted during

the first quacter of fiscal year 2009 was approximately $1481

During the fiscal year ended 201 the shares were forfeited due to

the departure of the Companys former Chairman and Chief

Executive Officer As result $580 $358 net of tax was recog

nized as an adjustment to reduce stock based compensation during

the current fiscal year

The following table summarizes the number of common shares to

be issued upon exercise of outstanding options and the number of

common shares remaining available for future issuance under the

existing stock incentive plans as of April 2011

Number of

securities to be issued Number of secunties

upon exercise of remaining available

in thousands outst nding options fprfuprp issuance

Equity compensation plans

approved by shareholders

1999 Long Term

Incentive Planal 69

Amended and Restated

Directors Stock Plants 33

PSS World Medical Inc

2006 Incentive Plan5 2154

2004 Non Empluycc

Directors

Compensation Plants 248

202 2402

Equity compensation plan not

approved by shareholders

1999 Broad Based Employee

Stock Pana 18

Total 220 2402

These
plans are terminated however options remain outstanding as of

April
2011 which are exercisable

Thic
plan cupercedod the 1999 Lnng Term Inrentive Plan and the 1999

Broad Based Employee Stock Plan and was approved by shareholders on

August 24 2006

This
plan superseded the Amended and Restated Directors Stock Plan

and was approved by shareholders during fiscal year 2005
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The following table summarizes the stock option activity during the period from March 28 2008 to April 2011

Weighted Weighted

Average Average Aggregate

Exercise Contractual Intrinsic

Shares Pnce Term Value

Outstanding at March 28 2008 1774 9.00 2.3 $13729

Granted 200

Exercised 605
Expired 63
Outstanding at March 27 2009 1306

Exercised 548

Expired 200

Outstanding at April
2010 558

Exercised 338

The aggregate intrinsic value in the table above represents the

total pretax intrinsic value the difference between the Companys

closing stock price of $27.17 on the last trading day of the

Companys fiscal year end and the exercise price multiplied by the

number of outstanding stock options that would have been

received by the option holders had all option holders exercised

their options on April 2011 This amount changes over time

based on changes in the fair market value of the Companys stock

The total intrinsic value of stock options exercised during fiscal

years ended April 2011 and April 2010 was $5684 and

$6495 respectively Cash received from stock option exercises

during the fiscal year ended April 2011 and April 2010 was

approximately $2079 and $4489 respectively The actual tax

benefit realized for the tax deductions from stock option exercises

totaled approximately $2 and $2468 during the fiscal years

ended April 2011 and April 2010 respectively

Restricted Stock Awords

The Company issues restricted stock which vests based on the

recipients continued seniice over time Time Based Awards
and restricted stock or restricted stock units which vest based

on the Company achieving specified performance measurements

Performance-Based Awards

Time Bosed Awords

The Company measures the fair value of Time Based Awards

on the date of grant based on the closing stock price The

related compensation expense is recognized on straight-line

basis over the vesting period net of estimated forfeitures

Perfbrmonce Bosed Awords

The Company issues performance-based restricted stock

units Performance Shares performance accelerated

restricted stock PARS which were issued in fiscal
years

201 and 2009 and Ui performance accelerated restricted

stock units PARS Units which were issued in fiscal year

2011 under the Companys 2006 Incentive Plan

The Performance Shares cliff vest three years from the date of

grant and Lonvert tu shares uf common stuck based on the

Companys achievement of certain cumulative earnings per

share growth targets These awards which are denominated in

terms of target number of shares will be forfeited if perform

ance falls below designated threshold level and may increase

up to 250% of the target number of shares for exceptional

performance The ultimate number of shares delivered to

recipients and the related compensation cost recognized as

expense will be based on actual performance The Company

recognizes compensation expense on straight line basis net

of estimated forfeitures over the awards vesting period based

on the Companys estimate of what will ultimatelyvest This

estimate may be adjusted in future periods based on actual

experience and changes in management assumptions

The PARS and PARS Units awards vest on the five
year anniver

sary of the grant date subject to accelerated vesting after three

years
if the Company achieves an earnings per

share growth

target The Company measures stock based compensation at

the grant date based on the estimated fair value of the award

and recognizes the cost as compensation expense on straight-

line basis net of estimated forfeitures over the awards vesting

period of five years based on the Companys estimate of its

cumulative earnings per share growth rate This estimate may

be adjusted in future periods based on actual experience and

changes in management assumptions

Outstanding and Exercisable at April 2011

17.98

0.26

21.37

9.20

8.15

17.98

7.05

6.15

3.4 $7909

1.9 $9252

1.7 $4115220 8.44
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Change in Estimate

During the fiscal year ended April 2010 the Company changed

its estimate of the number of shares to be delivered on its per

formance based awards This change reflected an increase in esti

mated achievement of performance conditions based on actual

and expected future financial performance The change in estimate

increased Performance Share Units outstanding by approximately

303000 shares Additionally PARS awards issued during fiscal year

2009 and fiscal year 2010 are now estimated to vest on the three

year anniversary of the grant date As such the Company adjusted

the forfeiture rate related to certain PARS awards to reflect

reduction in expected forfeitures over the remaining vesting peri

od

As result of the change in performance estimate stock based

compensation expenses increased $9 33 $5640 net of tax or

$0 10 per diluted share during the year ended April 2010

These estimates may be adjusted in future periods based on actual

experience and changes in management assumptions

Change in Management

During the fiscal
year

ended April 20 restricted stock awards

were forfeited due to the departure of the Companys former

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer As result $3837 $2370
net uf tax was recognized as ar adjustment to reduce stock

based compensation related to restricted stock during the year

ended April 2010

Restricted Stack Activity

The following table summarizes the
activity

of restricted stock and restricted stock units during the period from March 28 2008 to April

2011

Time Based

Pertoance

Based Awards Awards

Performance

Sharpc PARS

Weighted Weighted Weighted Weighted

Average Average Average Average

Grant Grant Grant Grant

Date Fair Date Fair Date Fair Date Fair

share amounts in thousands Units Value Units Value Shares Value Share Value

Balance March 28 2008 99 18.52 610 18.49 344 16.64

Granted 122 18.47 191 18.04 78 19.26

Vested 156 16.90

Forfeited 34 18.50 18 18.82

Balance March 27 2009 221 18.49 767 18.38 248 19.23

Granted 241 17.00 132 17.00 21.84 171 2fr06

Addition from change in estimate 303 8.39

Vested 90 19.42

Forfefted

...

250 17.97 44 17.00 122 18.50 12 19.50

Balance April 22010 515 $17.98 88 17fl0 652 $18.40 317 $19.68

Granted 94 22.23 103 22.23 460 21.85 87 20.00

Addition from change in estimate 34 23.41

Vested 164 18.52 547 18.40 91 19.55

Forfe4ed 33 19.11 IS 18.42

BalanceApril 12011 479 $19.01 191 $19.82 532 $21.34 298 $19.88

Total compensation expense
for restricted stock grants during the fiscal

years
ended April 20 April 201 and March 27 2009 was

$9 198 $12 64 and $5570 respectiv0ly with related income tax benefits of $3495 $46 and $2119 respectively The total fair value

of shares vested during the fiscal
years ended April 2011 April 2010 and March 27 2009 was $1758 $1897 and $2824

respectively
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Scheduled vesting for outstanding restricted stock and restricted

stock units is as follows

Number of

in thousands Shares/Units

Fiscal Year

2012 306

2013 424

2014

2015

2016 and thereafter

Total 1500

As of April 2011 there was $17656 of unrecognized compensa

tion cost related to non-vested restricted stock and restricted stock

units granted under the stock incentive plans The estimated stock

based compensation expense for the next five fiscal years is

expected to be recognized over weighted average period of .8

years as follows

Fiscal Year

2012 6600

2013 4727

2l4 2P4P

2015 2403

2016 and tereflfter 1078

Total $17656

Corporate Lang Term Executive Cash Based Incentive Plans

During fiscal year 2009 the Compensation Committee approved

the 2008 Shareholder Value Plan 2008 SVP for non-executive

officers and leaders The performance period under the 2008 SVP

is the 36 month period from March 2008 to April 2011

Target awards under the 2008 SVP are calculated as three times

the participants base salary times an award factor ranging from

10% to 38% and performance goals are based on planned cumu

lative earnings per
share As result of an increase in accounting

estimate related to expected achievement of long term perform

ance measures related to the 2008 SVP long-term incentive based

compensation increased $2276 $1405 net of tax or $0.02 per

diluted share during fiscal year 2010 The Company accrued

approximately $10697 and $6820 of compensation cost as of

April 2011 and April 20 10 respectively

/6 Emp/ayee Benefit Plans

P55 World Medica Inc Savings Plan

The P55 World Medical Inc Savings Plan the Plan provides an

opportunity for tax-deferred savings enabling eligible employees to

invest in variety of investments including an interest in the

common stock of the Company Employees become eligible to

participate in the Plan upon the completion of 30 days of service

Employees may elect to defer up to 85% but not less than 1% of

their compensation to the Plan subject to certain limitations

imposed by the Internal Revenue Code The Company matches an

amount equal to the lesser of 50% of the employee deferrals up

to 6% of their compensation or ii $1250 This match can be

invested in various mutual funds or the common stock of the

Company at the discretion of the participant and vests over

181
six year period During the fiscal years ended April 2011 April

26 2010 and March 27 2009 the Company contributed approx

imately $1 14 $1821 and $1840 respectively to the Plan under

this matching arrangement The Plan owned approximately

1.2 million .5 million and .7 million shares of the Companys

common stock as of April 2011 April 2010 and March 27

2009 respectively

Employee Stack Purchase Plan

The Company also has an employee stock purchase plan available

to all employees with at least six months of service The plan

allows eligible employees to purchase Company stock acquired in

the open market through after tax payroll deductions

Deferred Compensation Program

The Company offers deferred compensation program the

Program to qualified executives management and sales repre

sentatives The Program is nonqualified plan governed by Sec

409 of the IRS internal revenue code and consists of deferred

compensation plan and also previously consisted of stock option

program Under the deferred compensation plan participants can

elect to defer up to 100% of their total compensation however

the Company matching contribution program only applies to

deferrals of up to 10% or 15% of the participants compensation

The Companys matching contribution ranges
from 0% to 25c

of the pdrticipdrits deferrdl Participant contributions aro always

100% vested The Companys matching contribution vests in 20%

increments beginning after participating in the plan for years and

becomes fully vested after participating in the plan for years

Upon retirement or termination from the Company and ii at

age 60 or at age 55 with ten years of participation in the Program

the retirement benefit is distributed to participants in five equal

annual installments or in lump sum payment if the vested

account balance is less than $25 The retirement benefit is dis

tributed in lump sum upon death and over five years upon dis

ability In the event of termination of employment lflO% nfthe

participants vested balance will be distributed in five equal install

ments or in lump sum payment if the vested account balance is

less than $25 In the event of change in control if the successor

terminates the plan all participants become 00% vested in their

accounts including the Companys matching contributions discre

tionary Company contributions and allocated return thereon The

Company has purchased corporate owned life insurance policies
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for certain participants in the Program as the underlying assets will

fund future payments related to the deferred compensation liability

During fiscal years 2011 20/0 and 2009 the Company matched

approximately $2230 $1 19 and $1930 respectively of

employee deferrals The cash surrender value of the corporate

owned life insurance policies which is recorded in Other ossets in

the accompanying Conso/idoted So/once Sheets was approximately

$89132 and $72500 as of April 12011 and April 22010

respectively In addition the deferred compensation liability
which

is recorded at fair value in Other noncurrent /iobi/ities in the accom

panying Consolidoted Bo/once Sheets was approximately $84 65

and $69312 as of April 12011 and April 22010 respectively

Director Deferred Compensotion P/on

Effective january 2004 the Company offers deferred compensa

tion plan to non-employee members of the Board of Directors

Participants may elect to defer
up to /00% of their annual retainer

meeting fees other directors fees and other cash compensation

and invest their deferrals in variety of investment options par

ticipants deferred compensation account balance will be dis

tributed at the election of the participant in single lump sum

payment following the participants termination OF service on the

board of directors or in up to ten annual installments The

deferred compensation account balance will be distributed in

lump sum payment upon the death of the participant or in the

event of change in control of the Company

Operoting Leose Commitments

The Company leases various facilities and equipment under operat

ing leases Certain lease commitments provide that the Company

pays taxes insurance and maintenance expenses related to the

leased assets Many of the Companys leases contain pre

determined fixed escalations of the minimum rentals during the mi

tial term For these leases the Company has recognized the related

rental expense on straight line basis and has recorded the differ

ence between the expense charged to income and amounts pay

able under the leases as other noncurrent liabilities in the

accompanying balance sheets

Rent expense for operating leases approximated $30149 $29803

and $280 for fiscal years 2011 2010 and 2009 respectively As

of April 2011 future minimum payments by fiscal year and in the

aggregate required under non cancelable operating leases are as

follows

Fiscal Year

2012 $25834

2013 /9232

2014 13587

2015 7058

2016 3542

Thereafter 3852

Total $73105
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/8 Segment Information

The Companys reportable segments are strategic businesses that

offer different products to different segments of the healthcare

industry and are the basis on which management regularly eval

uates the Company These segments are managed separately

because of different customers and products Refer to Footnote

Noture of Operotions for descriptive information about the

Companys operating segments The Company evaluates the oper

ating performance of its segments based on net sales and income

from operations Corporate Shared Services allocates portion of

its costs and interest expense to the operating segments The allo

cation of shared operating costs is generally proportionate to the

revenues of each operating segment Interest expense is allocated

based on an intemal carrying value of historical capital used to

acquire or develop the operating segments operations The follow

ing tables present financial information about the Companys busi

ness segments

2011 2010 2009

NET SALES

Physician Business $1425012 $1 437B23 $1357382

Elder Care Business 607750 614937 594509

Corporate Shared Services 2027 2411 800

Total net sales $2034789 $2055 171 $195269

NET SALES BY PRODUCT
TYPE

Consumable products $1504255 $1563462 $1440993

Pharmaceutical products 330572 333026 327502

Equipment 138414 134067 154092

Physician dispensing

solutions 36899

Billing
services 11956 13219 13698

Customer freight charges 13382 10926 13482

Vendor incentive and other

income 689 471 2924

Total net sales $2034789 $2055 171 $195269

INCOME FROM
OPERATIONS

Physioan Business 137995 /37261 109800

Elder Care Business 37782 38017 30140

Corporate Shared Services 42221 54297 3901

Total income from

operations 133556 120981 100927

DEPRECIATION

Physician Business 9515 7983 7494

Elder Care Business 5024 4984 4948

Corporat Shamd Srvicrs 10526 B73 7560

Total depreciation 25065 21940 20002

2011 2010 2009

AMORTIZATION OF

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Physician Business 2956 2343 3008

Elder Care Business 2757 2432 2290

Corporate Shared Services 665 346 191

Total amortization of

intangible assets 6378 5121 5489

PROVISIONS FOR

DOUBTFUL ACCOUNTS
AND NOTES RECEIVABLE

Physician Business 1792 1944 1547

Elder Care Business SI 185 133

Total provision for

doubtful accounts

and notes

receivable 1741 3795 3680

INTEREST EXPENSE

Physician Business 463 4110 405

Elder Care Business 8157 8192 7982

Corporate Shared Services 4333 4993 101 25

Total interest

expense 17121 17295 22158

PROVISION FOR INCOME
TAXES

Physician Business 49951 49982 41115

Elder Care Business 11212 11103 8496

Corporate Shared Services 16602 20318 17381

Total provision for

income taxes 44561 40767 32230

CAPITAL EXPENDITURES

Physician Business 1554 1282 5201

Elder Care Business 1659 509 568

Corporate Shared Services 15014 241 32 21571

Total
capital

expenditures 18227 25923 27340

ASSETS

Physician Business 570278 440916 426117

Elder Care Business 298016 298063 272311

Corporate Shared Services 83378 133087 60196

Total assets 951672 B72066 BSB624

Commitments ond Contingencies

Other Litigotion Motters

The Company is party to various
legal

and administrative proceed

ings and claims arising in the normal course of business While any

litigation
contains an element of uncertainty the Company after

consultation with
legal counsel believes that the outcome of such

other proceedings or claims which are pending or known to be

threatened will not have material adverse effect on the Compa

nys consolidated financial position liquidity or results of oper

ations
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The Company has various insurance policies including produd

liability insurance covering risks and in amounts it considers

adequate With respect to products manufactured by others and

distributed by the Company the manufacturer may provide

indemnification There can be no assurance that the insurance

coverage maintained by the Company is sufficient or will be avail

able in adequate amounts or at reasonable cost or that

indemnification agreements will provide adequate protection for

the Company including agreements with foreign vendors

Purchase Commitments

Periodically the Company enters into various purchase agree

ments with vendors to ensure the
availability and pricing of prod

ucts and services These commitments represent future obligations

to purchase goods and services that are enforceable and legally

binding on the Company and that specil3 all significant terms

including fixed or minimum quantities to be purchased fixed

minimum or variable price provisions and the approximate timing

of the transaction Included in these agreements are contracts that

specify minimum payment regardless of whether the Company

takes delivery of the contracted products or services take-or pay

as well as rommitments that involve penalty in order to cancel

the purchase commitment

Commitments and Other Contingenoes

The Company has employment agreements with certain executive

officers which provide that in the event of their termination or

resignation under certain conditions the Company may be

required to pay severance to the executive off cers in amounts

ranging from one fourth to two times their base salary and target

annual bonus In the event that termination or resignation fol

Quarterly Results of Operations lJnaudited

lows or is in connection with change in control the Company

may be required to pay severance to the executive off cers in

amounts ranging from three-fourths to three times their base sal

ar and target annual bonus The Company may also be required

to continue welfare benefit plan coverage
for the executive offi

cers following termination or resignation for period ranging

from three months to three
years

If supply agreement for Select products between vendor and

the Company were to be terminated then the Company may be

required to purchase from the vendor all remaining finished and

unfinished products and product materials ordered or held by the

vendor As of April 201 the Company had no material obliga

tion to purchase remaining products or materials due to termi

nation of supply agreement with vendor who supplies Select

products to the Company

20 Supplemental Cash Flow Information

The Companys supplemental disclosures for the years ended

April 20 April 2010 and March 27 2009 are as follows

2011 2010 2009

During the fiscal year ended April 2011 and April 2010 the

Company had approximately $171 and $1706 in non-cash inves

ting activities related to acquisition related adjustments

During the fiscal year ended March 27 2009 the Company had

approximately $2306 in non cash adjustments related to new

capital lease obligations

The following tables present summarized unaudited quarterly results of operations for fiscal years 2011 and 2010 The Company believes all

necessary adjustments have been included in the amounts stated below to present fairly
the following selected information when read in

conjunction with the consolidated financial statements of the Company Future quarterly operating results may fluctuate depending on

number of factors including the number of
selling days in quarter the timing of business combinations and changes in customers buying

patterns of supplies equipment and pharmaceutical products Results of operations for any particular quarter are not necessarily indicative

of results of operations for full year or any other quarter

Fiscal Year 2011

QI Q2 Q3 Q4 Total

Net sales $478856 $496188 $510087 $549658 $2034789

Cross
profit 147846 157125 157895 172905 635771

Net income attributable to PSS World Medical Inc 13753 19557 19549 21626 74485

Eamings per common share attributable to P55 World Medical Inc

Basic 0.25 0.36 0.36 0.40 1.35

Diluted 0.24 0.35 0.35 0.38 1.32

Selling days 64 63 61 65 253

Cash
paid

for

Interest

Income taxes net

7837 9620 9608

$36382 $42605 $26986
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Fecal Year 201

QI Q2 Q3 Q4 Total

Net sales $493554 $561976 $502764 $496877 $2055 171

Gross
profit 145974 172571 154700 154450 627695

Net income attributable to P55 World Medical Inc 13304 21686 17921 16452 69363

Eamings per common share attributable to P55 World Medical Inc

Basic 0.23 0.37 0.31 0.29 1.20

Diluted ff23 037 0.30 ff28 1.18

Selling days 64 68 61 65 258

The Company reports its year end and quarter end financial posi

tion results of operations and cash flows as of the Friday closest

to calendar month end determined using the number of business

days As disclosed in the table above the selling days may fluctuate

between each quarter and/or differ from the previous fiscal year

Fiscol Yeor2O/

additional consideration of
up to $6000 if the company achieves

defined eamings targets over one year period Net sales related

to the DSl acquisition during the three months ended April

2011 was approximately $6595 Refer to Footnote Purchose

Bus/ness Comb/notions for further discussion

F/sco/ Yeor 20

During the three months ended April 2011 the Company

purchased 100% of the outstanding stock of Dispensing Solutions

Inc DSl DSl formerly privately held company based in Cal

ifornia markets proprietary system to primary care physicians for

dispensing medications to patients on site within their practices

The acquisition price for DSl was approximately $36000 with

As result of the departure of the Companys former Chairman

and Chief Executive Officer during the three months ended

April 20 the Company recognized decrease of $4.4 mil

lion in long term incentive compensation and ii decrease of

$1 .3 million in annual cash based incentive compensation partially

offset by $2.9 million in separation expenses
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SCHEDULE

PSS WORLD MEDICAL INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

SCHEDULE II Valuation and
qualifying accounts

For the Years Ended April 2011 ApnI 200 and March 27 2009

Balance

Balance at Provision at End

Dollars in Thousands Beginning Charged of

Descdption of Period to Expense Whte-offsC Penod

Valuation Allowance for Accounts Receivable

Fiscal year ended April 2011 $63 10 $1741 $2243 $5808

Fiscal year ended April 2010 $7041 $3795 $4526 $6310

Fiscal year ended March 27 2009 $7011 $36B0 $3650 $7041

Other

Fiscal year ended April 2011 $5923 N/A N/A $8961

Fiscal year ended April 2010 $5044 N/A N/A $5923

Fiscal year ended March 27 2009 $69BB N/A N/A $5044

Uncollectible accounts written off net of recovenes

Includes sales returns and allowance and reserve for rebates receivable

See Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firrn
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Item Changes in and Disagreements with

Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

None

Item 9a Controls and Procedures

Disclosure Controls ond Procedures

The Companys management with the participation of the Compa

nys Principal Executive Officer and Principal Financial Officer has

evaluated the effectiveness of the Companys disclosure controls

and procedures as defined in Exchange Act Rules 3a 15e and

l5d 15e as of the end of the period covered by this report the

Evaluation Date Based on the evaluation the Principal Executive

Officer and the Principal Financial Officer concluded that as of the

Evaluation Date the Companys disclosure controls and proce

dures are effective in recording processing summarizing and

reporting on timely basis information required to be disclosed by

the Company in the reports that it files or submits under the Secu

rities Exchange Act of 934 as amended the Exchange Act and

are effective in ensuring that information required to be disclosed

by the Company in the reports that it files or submits under the

Exchange Act is accumulated and communicated to the Compa

nys management including the Companys Principal Executive

Officer and Principal Financial Officer as appropriate to allow

timely decisions regarding required disclosure

Internol Control Over Finonciol Reporting

Monogements Annua/ Report on Internal Control Over Financial

Reporting

The Companys management is responsible for establishing and

maintaining effective intemal controls over financial reporting as

such term is defined in Exchange Act Rules 3a- 15f and

15d 15f

Internal control over financial reporting is process designed to

provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability

of financial

reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external

purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting princi

ples The Companys internal control over financial reporting

includes those policies and procedures that pertain to the main

tenance of records that in reasonable detail accurately and fairly

reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Com

pany provide reasonable assurance that transactions are

recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements

in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and

that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made

only in accordance with authorizations of management and direc

tors of the Company and iii provide reasonable assurance regard

ing prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition use

or disposition of the Companys assets that could have material

effect on the Companys financial statements

Management with the participation of the Companys principal

executive and principal financial officers assessed the effectiveness

of the Companys internal control over financial reporting as of

April 2011 This assessment was performed using the criteria

established under the Intemal Control-Integrated Framework estab

lished by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the

Treadway Commission COSO
In making this assessment as of April 2011 management has

excluded the operations of Linear Medical Solutions Inc Linear
and Dispensing Solutions Inc DSI which were acquired on

November IS 2010 and January 19 201 respectively as the

Company has not completed its initial assessment of their intemal

controls using the COSO criteria in accordance with Section 404

of the Sarbanes Oxley Act of 2002 Linear had total assets of $15.5

million excluding allocated intangibles and goodwill and total

revenues of $30.3 million as of and for the fiscal year ended

April 2011 that were included in the Companys consolidated

financial statements DSI had total assets of $8.8 million excluding

allocated intangibles and goodwill and total revenues of

$6.6 million as of and for the fiscal year ended April 2011 that

were included in the Companys consolidated financial statements

Management excluded Linear and DSl from its assessment in

accordance with the guidance from the Division of Corporation

Finance and Office of the Chief Accountant of the Securities and

Exchange Commission contained in the release captioned

Managements Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

and Certification of Disclosure in Exchange Act Periodic Reports Fre

quendy Asked Questions revised October 2004 Management

intends to complete its assessment of the effectiveness of intemal

control over financial reporting for the acquired Linear and DSl

businesses within one year from the date of the acquisition

Internal control over financial reporting cannot provide absolute

assurance of achieving financial reporting objectives because of its

inherent limitations including the possibility of human error or cir

cumvention or overriding of internal control Accordingly even

effective internal control over financial reporting can provide only

reasonable assurance with respect to financial statement prepara

tion and reporting and may not prevent or detect misstatements

Also projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future peri

ods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate

because of changes in conditions orthatthe degree of compliance

with the policies or procedures may deteriorate
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Based on the assessment performed using the criteria established

by COSO management has concluded that the Company main

tained effective internal control over financial reporting as of

April 12011

KPMG LLP the independent registered public accounting firm that

audited the financial statements included in this Annual Report on

Form 10 for the fiscal year ended April 2011 has issued an

audit report on the effectiveness of the Companys internal control

over financial reporting Such report appears immediately below

Attestotron Report of the Registered Public Accounting Firm

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Shareholders

P55 World Medical Inc

We have audited PSS World Medical Inc and subsidiaries the

Company internal control over financial reporting as of April

2011 based on criteria established in Internol Control Integroted

Fromework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations

of the Treadway Commission COSO PSS World Medical Inc.s

management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control

over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness

of intemal control over financial reporting included in the accom

panying managements annual report on internal control over

financial reporting Our responsibility is to express an opinion on

the Companys internal control over financial reporting based on

our audit

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the

Public Company Accounting Oversight Board United States

Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to

obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective internal con

trol over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects

Our audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control

over financial reporting assessing the risk that material weakness

exists pnd testing and evaluating the design and operating

effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk Our

audit also included performing such other procedures as we

considered necessary in the circumstances We believe that our

audit provides reasonable basis for our opinion

companys internal control over financial reporting is process

designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability

of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for

external purposes in accordance with generally accepted account

ing principles companys internal control over financial reporting

includes those policies and procedures that pertain to the main

tenance of records that in reasonable detail accurately and fairly

reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the com

pany provide reasonable assurance that transactions are

recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements

poge 80

in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and

that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made

only in accordance with authorizations of management and direc

tors of the company and provide reasonable assurance regard

ing prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition use

or disposition of the companys assets that could have material

effect on the financial statements

Because of its inherent limitations internal control over financial

reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements Also projec

tions of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject

to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of

changes in conditions or that the degree of compliance with the

policies or procedures may deteriorate

In our opinion PSS World Medical Inc maintained in all material

respects effective internal control over financial reporting as of

April 2011 based on criteria established in Internol Control

Integroted Fromework issued by Committee of Sponsoring Orga

nizations of the Treadway Commission COSO

PSS World Medical Inc acquired Unear Medical Solutions Inc

Linear and Dispensing Solutions Inc DSl during fiscal year 2011

and management excluded from itc asceccment of the effectiveness

of PSS World Medical Inc.s internal control over financial reporting

as of April 2011 Linear and 051s internal control over financial

reporting Linears internal control over financial reporting asso

ciated with total assets of $15.5 million excluding allocated

intangibles and goodwill and total revenues of $30.3 million as of

and for the fiscal year ended April 2011 were included in the

Companys consolidated financial statements 051s internal control

over financial reporting associated with total assets of $8.B million

excluding allocated intangibles and goodwill and total revenues of

$6.6 million as of and for the fiscal year ended April 2011 were

included in the Companys consolidated findilcial statements Our

audit of intemal control over financial reporting of PSS World

Medical Inc and subsidiaries also excluded an evaluation of the

internal control over financial reporting of Linear and 051

We also have audited in accordance with the standards of the

Public Company Accounting Oversight Board United States the

consolidated balance sheets of PSS World Medical Inc and sub

sidiaries as of April 2011 and April 2010 and the related con

solidated statements of operations equity and cash flows for each

of the years in the three year period ended April 2011 and the

financial statement schedule and our report dated May 26 2011

expressed an unqualified opinion on those consolidated financial

statements and financial statement schedule

Is KPMC LLP

May 26 2011

jacksonville Florida

Certified Public Accountants
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Changes in Internal Cantral Over Financial Re parting

There were no changes in the Companys internal control over

financial reporting that occurred during the three months ended

April 20l1 that have materially affected or are reasonably likely

to materially affect the Companys internal control over financial

reporting

item 9b Other in formation

None

page 81



Part III

Item Directors Executive Officers and Corporate

Governance

The information called for by this Item 10 regarding the Companys

diredors executive officers and corporate govemance is

incorporated herein by reference to the Companys definitive

proxy statement to be filed with the SEC under the Exchange Ad
relating to the Companys fiscal year 20 Annual Meeting of

Shareholders under the sedions Corporate Governance and

Management

The Company has adopted Code of Ethics that applies to the

Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer and Corporate

Controller The Code of Ethics may be viewed free of charge on

the Companys web site www.pssworldmedical.com The Com

pany intends to post amendments to or waivers from its Code of

Ethics to the extent applicable to the Companys Chief Executive

Officer Chief Financial Officer or Corporate Controller on its

web site

Information required this item conceming compliance with Sec

tion 16a of the Securities Exchange Ad of 1934 is hereby

incorporated by reference to the Sedion entitled Sedion 6a
Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance

There have been no changes to the procedures by which stock

holders may recommend nominees to the Companys Board of

Diredors since the Companys last disclosure of such procedures

which appeared in the Companys definitive 201 Proxy Statement

filed pursuant to Regulation 4A on july 17 2010

Item Executive Compensation

The information called for by this Item is incorporated herein by

reference to the Companys definitive proxy statement to be filed

with the SEC pursuant to Regulation 4A of the Exchange Ad
relating to the Companys fiscal year 2011 Annual Meeting of

Shareholders under the caption Executive Compensation

Item 12 Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial

Owners and Management and Related Stockholder

Matters

The information called for by this Item is incorporated herein by

reference to the Companys definitive proxy statement to be filed

with the SEC pursuant to Regulation 4A of the Exchange Ad
relating to the Companys fiscal year 2011 Annual Meeting of

Shareholders under the captions Security Ownership of Certain

Beneficial Owners and Management and Executive Compensation

Item 13 Certain Relationships and Related

Transactions and director independence

The information called for by this Item 13 is incorporated herein by

reference to the Companys definitive
proxy statement to be filed

with the SEC pursuant to Regulation 4A of the Exchange Ad
relating to the Companys fiscal year 2011 Annual Meeting of

Shareholders under the captions Related Persan Tronsactians and

Director Independence

Item 14 Principal Accountant Fees and Services

The information called for by this Item 14 is incorporated herein by

reference to the Companys definitive
proxy statement to be filed

with the SEC pursuant to Regulation 14A of the Exchange Ad
relating to the Companys fiscal year 2011 Annual Meeting of

Shareholders under the caption Ratification of Independent Regis

tered Public Accounting Firm
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Part IV

Item IS Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules

ol The following flnonciol stotements ore included in Item of this

report

Page

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm 42

Consolidated Balance Sheets

April 1201 nrl
April jfl0

Consolidated Statements of Operations

forthelears Ended April2011

April 2010 and March 27 2009

Consolidated Statements of Equity

forthe Years Ended April 12011

April 2010 and March 27 2009

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 47

o2 The following supplementol schedule is included in this report

Page

Schedule II- Valuation and Qualifrng Accounts

forthe Years Ended April 12011

April 2010 and March 27 2009 72

of3 Exhibits required by Item 601 of Regulotion

Exhibit

Number Description

3.1 Restatement of Amended and Restated Articles of

Incorporation dated December 12 20081

3.2 Amended and Restated Bylaws dated December

20081i91

Registration Rights Agreement dated as of March

2004 by and among the Company Goldman Sachs

Co Banc of America Securities LLC and Lehman

Brothers mcI6

4.2 Indenture dated as of March 2004 by and between

the Company and Wachovia Bank NA as Trustee.I6

4.3 Form of 2.25% Convertible Senior Note due 2024.16

4.4 Indenture related to the 3.125% Convertible Senior

Notes due 2014 dated as of August 2008 among

PSS World Medical Inc as issuer U.S Bank National

Association as trustee.1i81

Exhibit

Number Descriptiun

4.5 Form of 125% Convertible Senior Note due 2014.08

Amended and Restated Directors Stock Plan.14

0.2 1994 Employee Stock Purchase Plan.0

Q3 1999 Long term Incentive Plan Amended and

Restated as of July 25 200l

10.4 1999 Broad-Based Employee Stock Plants

10.5 PSS World Medical Inc 2006 Incentive PIani4

10.6 Shareholder Value Plan Portions omitted pursuant to

request for confidentiality treatment separately filed

with the SEC.2i

Description of Executive Officer Annual Incentive

Bonus Program.i3

Conformed Amended and Restated Savings Plartl2t

March 2011 Amendment to the Conformed Amended

and Restated Savings Plan

Amended and Restated Credit Agreement dated as of

May 20 2003 by and among the Company each of

the Companys subsidiaries therein named the Lenders

from time to time party thereto Bank of America

NA as Agent and Banc of America Securities LLC as

Arranger.I2s

0.9a Second Amendment to Credit Agreement dated as of

December 2003 by and among the Company

each of the Companys subsidiaries therein named the

Lenders from time to time party thereto Bank of

America N.A as Agent and Banc of America Secu

rities LLC as Arranger.I25

0.9b Third Amendment to Credit Agreement dated as of

March 2004 among the Company each of the

Companys subsidiaries therein named the Lenders

party to the amendment and Bank of America NA
as agent for the Lenders.6

0.9c Fourth Amendment to Credit Agreement dated as of

June 2004 among the Company each of the

Companys subsidiaries therein named the Lenders

party to the amendment and Bank of America N.A

as agent for the Lenders.8

0.9d Fifth Amendment to Credit Agreement dated as of

October 2004 among the Company each of the

Companys subsidiaries therein named the Lenders

party to the amendment and Bank of America NA
as agent for the Lenders.9

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

for the Years Ended
April 2011

April 2010 and March 27 2009 46 10.9

0.8
4S

I0.8a
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Sixth Amendment to Credit Agreement dated as of

June 30 2005 among the Company each of the

Companys subsidiaries therein named the Lenders

party to the amendment and Bank of America NA
as agent for the Lenders.2

0.9f Seventh Amendment to the Credit Agreement dated

as of january 23 2008 among the Company each of

the Companys subsidiaries therein named the Lend

ers party to the amendment and Bank of America

N.A as agent for the Lenders.7

10.10 Employment Agreement dated as of April 2003 by

and between the Company and David BronsonP

Employment Agreement dated as of August

2005 by and between the Company and Gary

Corless

10.12 Employment Agreement dated as of April 2004 by

and between the Company and Kevin English.7

10 Employment Agreement dated as of January 2002

by and between the Company and Bradley

Hilton

10.14 EmploymentAgreement dated as ofApril 1998 by

and between the Company and john Sasen Sr.2

10 4a Amendment to Employment Agreement dated as of

April 17 2000 by and between the Company and

john Sasen Sr.2

10.15 PSS World Medical Inc Amended and Restated Off

cer Stock Option Grant Program as amended

through july 2004

10 5a PSS World Medical Inc Amended and Restated Direc

tors Deferred Compensation Plan as amended and

restated effective January 200920

5b PSS World Medical Inc Amended and Restated Off

cer Deferred Compensation Plan as amended and

restated effective january 200920

PSS World Medical Inc Amended and Restated

ELITe Stock Option Grant Program as amended

through July 2004

6a PSS World Medical Inc Amended and Restated ELITe

Deferred Compensation Plan as amended and

restated effective january 200920

PSS World Medical Inc Leaders Stock Option Grant

Program as amended through July 2004

10 PSS World MediLal IL Airiended and Restated

Leaders Deferral Plan as amended and restated

effective January 2009@0

PSS World Medical Inc 2004 Non-Employee Direc

tors Compensation Plan.9

10 8a Amendment No to the PSS World Medical Inc

Amended and Restated 2004 Non-Employee Direc

tors Compensation Plan as amended through

August 24 2006

Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement

Form of Performance-Accelerated Restricted Stock

Award Agreement

0.2 Form of Performance Based Restricted Stock Unit

Agreement

10.22 Form of Non statutory Stock Option Award.8

0.23 Purchase Agreement dated as ofjuly 29 2008 among

PSS World Medical and Goldman Sachs Co 25

10.24 Convertible Bond Hedge Transaction Confirmation

dated july 29 2008 between Goldman Sachs Co
and PSS World Medical Inc.8

10.25 Issuer Warrant Transaction Confirmation dated july

29 2008 between Goldman Sachs Co and PSS

World Medical lnc.8

10.26 Amended and Restated Employment Agreement

related to 409A dated as of December 30 2008 by

and between the Company and David Bronson20

0.27 Amended and Restated Employment Agreement

related to 409A dated as of December 30 2008 by

and betwn the Company and john Sasen Sr.20

0.28 Amended and Restated Employment Agreement

related to 409A dated as of December 29 2008 by

and between the Company and Gary Corless20

0.29 Amendment to Employment Agreement related to

409A dated as of December 30 2008 by and

between the Company and Kevin English20

10.30 Amendment to Employment Agreement related to

409A dated as of December 30 2008 by and

between the Company and Bradleyj Hilton20

0.31 Form of Performance Accelerated Restricted Stock

Unit Agreement22

0.32 Separation Agreement dated as of February 2010

by and between the Company and David Smith24

Exhibit

Number Deschption

I0.9e

10 19

10.20
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Exhibit
Incorporated by Reference to the Companys Quarterly Report on Form 0-Q

Number Dmcnption
for the quarter ended October 2004

12 Computation of Consolidated Ratios of Earnings to 10 Incorporated by Reference to the Compan/s Annual Report on Form 10 for

Fixed Charges
the

year
ended Apnl 2005

II Incorporated by Reference to the Companys Quarterly Report on Form

21 List of Subsidiaries of PSS VVorld Medical Inc for the quarter ended September 30 2005

12 Incorporated by Reference to the Companys Current Report on Form

23 Consent of Independent Registered Public Account-
filed July 2005

ing Firm 13 Incorporated by Reference to the Companys Annual Report on Form for

31 Rule 3a 14a Certification of the Chief Executive
the year ended March 31 2006

14 Incorporated by Reference to the Companys Current Report on Form

Officer
filed Auguet 29 2006

1.2 Rule 3a- 14a Certification of the Chief Financial IS Incorporated by Reference to the Companys Quarterly Report on Form 10

officer
for the quarter ended September 29 2006

16 Incorporated by Reference to the Companys Quarterly Report on Form 10

32 Section 350 Certification of the Chief Executive for the quarter ended June 29 2007

Officer 17 Incorporated by Reference to the Companys Current Report on Form

filed January 29 2008

32.2 Sedion 350 Certification of the Chief Financial 18 Incorporated by Reference to the Companys Quarterly Report on Form 10

Officer for the quarter ended June 27 2008

19 Incorporated by Reference to the Companys Current Report on Form

101 INS XBRL Instance Document
filed December 17 2008

20 Incorporated by Reference to the Companys Quarterly Report on Form 10

101 .SCH XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document
for the quarter ended January 2009

.CAL XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase 21 Incorporated by Reference to the Companys Annual Report on Form 10 for

Document the year ended March 27 2009

22 Incorporated by Reference to the Companys Quarterly Report on Form 10

101 LAB XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Docu- for the
quarter

ended June 26 2009

ment 23 Incorporated by Reference to the Companys Quarterly Report on Form 10

for the
quarter

ended
January

20 10

101 .PRE XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase 24 Incorporated by Reference to the Companys Annual Report on Form 10 for

Document the year ended Apnl 2010

25 Incorporated by Reference to the Companys Quarterly Report on Form 10

101 .DEF XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase
for the

quarter
ended October 2010

Document

Represents management contract or compensatory plan or

arrangement

Certain portions of this Exhibit have been omitted upon request for

confidential treatment pumuant to 24b of the Securities Exchange

Act of 1934 as amended The omitted portions have been filed

separately with the Securities Exchange Commission

Footnote
References

Incorporated by Refemnce to the Companys Registrahon Statement on

Form
Registration

No 33 80657

Incorporated by Reference to the Companys Annual Report on Form 0-K for

the year ended March 30 2001

Incorporated by Reference to the Companys Annual Report on Form 10-K for

the
year

ended March 28 2003

Incorporated by Reference to the Companys Quarterly Report on Form 10

for the
quarter

ended lune 30 2003

Incorporated by Reference to the Companys Quarterly Report on Form 10

for the
quarter

ended December31 2003

Incorporated by Reference to the Companys Current Report on Form

filed March 2004

Incorporated by Reference to the Companys Annual Report on Form 10 for

the
year

ended AphI 2004

Incorporated by Reference to the Companys Quarterly Report on Form

for the
quarter

ended June 30 2004
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Port IV

Signatures

Pursuant to the requirements of Section or 15d of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 the Registrant has duly caused this report to

be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized in the City of Jacksonville State of Florida on May 26 201

P55 World Medicol Inc

By Is David Bronson

David Bronson

Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

Principal Financial Officer/Principal Accounting Officer

Pursuant to the r.quirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 this report has been signed below by the following persons on behalf

of the Registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated

Signatures Title nate

/s/ Gary Corless President Chief Executive Officer and Director May 26 20

Gary Corless Principal Executive Officer

/s/ Charles Adair Director May 26 2011

Charles Adair

/s/ Alvin Carpenter Director May 26 2011

Alvin Carpenter

/s/ jeffrey Crowe Director May 26 2011

jeffrey Crowe

/s/ Steven Halverson Director May 26 2011

Steven Halverson

/s/ Melvin Hecktman Director May 26 2011

Melvin Hecktman

Is Delores Kesler Chairman of the Board of Directors May 26 2011

Delores Kesler

/s/ Stephen Rogers Director May 26 2011

Stephen Rogers

/s/ David Bronson Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer May 26 20

David Bronson Principal Financial Officer/Principal Accounting Officer
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Corporate Tnformation

Independent Registered

Public Accounting Firm

KPMG LLP

Jacksonville Florida

Registrar and Transfer Agent

American Stock

Transfer and Trust Company

59 Maiden Lane Plaza Level

New York NY 10038

Corporate Secretary

Joshua DeRienzis

Corporate Headquarters

PSS World Medical Inc

4345 South point Boulevard

Jacksonville Florida 32216

904 332-3000

Website

www.pssworldmedical.com

Form 10-K Report

copy of the Companys Annual Report on

FormlO-K for the fiscal year ended April 2011

is available to each shareholder upon request or

by accessing the Companys Web site at

www.pssworldmedical.com or the U.S Securities

and Exchange Commissions Web site at

www.sec.gov

Shareholders may obtain an additional copy of

this report without charge by writing

Robert Weiner

Vice President Investor Relations

PSS World Medical Inc

4345 Southpoint Boulevard

Jacksonville Florida 32216

Common Stock

Shares of the Companys Common Stock are

traded on the Nasdaq Global Select Market

under the symbol PSSI

Shareholder Records

Correspondence concerning PSS World Medical

share holdings or changes of address should be

directed to the
Registrar

and Transfer Agent

American Stock Transfer Trust Company

As of June 18 2011 there were approximately

1410 holders of record and approximately 16870

beneficial holders of the Companys stock Since

inception the Company has neither declared nor

paid cash dividends on the Common Stock PSS

World Medical expects earnings will be retained for

the growth and development of the Companys

business Accordingly PSS World Medical does

not anticipate that any dividends will be declared

on the Common Stock for the foreseeable future

Duplicate Mailings

When shareholder owns shares in more than

one account or when several shareholders live at

the same address they may receive multiple

copies of annual reports To eliminate multiple

mailings please write to the transfer agent or

contact your broker

Certain statements in this Annual Report are forward looking statements made pursuant to the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 and other

federal securities laws These forward-looking statements are identified by the use of words such as expect may will should believe plan anticipate

and estimate among others These statements involve number of risks and uncertainties many of which are outside the control of the Company Actual

results may differ materially from those identified in the forward looking statements Among the factors that could cause results to differ materially are the

following fluctuating demand for our products and services rIatiuldI drid glubal ewnumic conditiuns including uur and uur customers ability to obtain

financing the introduction of new products and services offered by us and our competitors uncertainty of the impact of the presidential administrations

health care policies
and recently enacted healthcare reform legislation proper functioning of our data processing and information technology systems our

ability to successfully execute our global sourcing strategy pricing pressures on large national and regional accounts and GPO5 customer credit quality and

our ability to collect our accounts receivable particularly in states with significant budget deficits our ability to compete with other medical supply companies

and direct manufacturers multi-tiered cost structures where certain institutions can obtain more favorable prices for medical products than us our ability

to maintain relationships with our suppliers and customers our ability to retain sales reps and key management our ability to execute our growth strategy

increased operating costs including fuel prices risks involved in maintaining large amount of inventory our indebtedness may limit our ability to obtain

additional financing or react to market conditions we face litigation and product liability exposure weather-related events such as hurricanes may disrupt

our and our customers business we may be deemed to infringe
other persons intellectual property our business is subject to numerous federal state and

foreign laws and regulations including state pedigree laws and
regulations and the increased enforcement environment with respect to such laws and regulations

general business competitive and economic factors and conditions and other factors described from time to time in the Companys reports filed with the

Securities and Exchange Commission PSS assumes no obligation to update the information in this Annual Report except as otherwise required bylaw Readers

are cautioned not to place undue reliance on these forward looking statements that speak only as of the date hereof

Endnotes

Return on committed capital R.O.C.C equals income from continuing operations plus
the provision for income taxes net interest expense amortization

and special items divided by total assets less cash goodwill net intangibles and total liabilities excluding current and long term debt

2This graph compares the cumulative total stockholder return on $100 invested assuming reinvestment of dividends if any on March 31 2008
the last trading day before the beginning of the Companys fiscal year 2009 through the end of fiscal year 2011 with the cumulative return on $100
invested for the same period in the Nasdaq Stock Market U.S Companies Composite Index

The graph also compares the cumulative stockholder return to an index of companies management believes comprise the Companys peer group which

includes the following Amerisourcebergen Corporation Baxter International Inc Cardinal Health Inc McKesson Corporation Owens Minor Inc Patterson

Companies Inc and Henry Schein Inc

Fiscal 2011

First Quarter

Second Quarter

Third Quarter

Fourth Quarter

Fiscal 2010

First Quarter

Second Quarter

Third Quarter

Fourth Quarter

High Low

$24.45 $20.51

$21.79 $18.15

$24.11 $20.50

$27.26 $22.47

High Low

$18.53 $13.72

$22.52 $17.61

$22.83 $19.32

$23.96 $18.58
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Executive Management Team

Gary Corless President and Chief Executive Officer

David Bronson Executive Vice President

and Chief Financial Officer

John Sasen Sr Executive Vice President

and Chief Marketing Officer

Bradleyi Hilton Chief Service Officer

Edward Dienes President Physician Sales and Service

Mark Steele President Gulf South Medical Supply

Kimberly Marshall Senior Vice president

Human Resources

Joshua DeRienzis General Counsel

and Corporate Secretary

Kevin English Chief Sourcing Officer

Board of Directors

Delores Kesler234

Chairman of the Board

Chairman and CEO Adium LLC

Director since 1993

Melvin Hecktman14

President Hecktman Management

Director since 1998

Charles AdairlS

Partner Cordova Ventures

Director since 2002

Stephen Rogers15

Chairman Csllaway Partners LLC

Retired Managing Partner

Arthur Anderson LLP

Director since 2DD4

Alvin Pete Carpenter 234

Retired Vice Chairman CSX Corporation

Director since 2005

Jeffrey
Crowe 25

Chairman Landstar Systems Inc

Director since 2007

Steven Halverson4S

President and CEO

The Haskell Company

Director since 2008

Gary Corless3

President and CEO
pss world Medical Inc

Director since 2010

1Audit committee

2cnmpensahsn csmmieee

3txecstive camreieee

4corparate Governance committee

55trategic Planning tammittee

committee chairperson

LR Joshua DeRienzis Bradley Hilton John Sasen Sr Edward Dienes Gary Corless
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